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PROCEEDTINGS

(Transcript continues from Volume 18.)

COMMISSIONER DEASON: If the City of Venice
was not one of the data points, that line would shift
from the carryover, would it not?

WITNESS WHITCOMB: fes.

COMMISSIONER DEASCN: It would flatten a
great deal, would it not?

WITNESS WHITCOMB: Yes.

I would like to just comment that you
shouldn’t read too much into that information because
all these other factors have not been controlled for
in the analysis.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yesterday when you
were talking about the income effect of the rate
structure and the effect of a change in base facility
charge keeping the gallonage charge constant, that
would result -- everything else being equal == that
would result in a marginal income effect. And that
would, in your opinion, result in higher usage,
perhaps very marginally, so but nevertheless higher
usage.

WITNESS WHITCOMB: Correct.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I believe you gave

the example of a base facility charge of $5 with say
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a gallonage charge of a dollar, and then a base
facility charge of $10 with a gallonage charge of a
dollaxr. That under those two rate structures you
would think that the higher usage would be with the
base facility charge of $5.

WITNESS WHITCOMB: In a very theoretical --

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It would be $5 more
of disposable income.

WITNESS WHITCOMB: In a theoretical way,
yes.

COMMISSIONER DEASCON: In a theoretical
way. In a common sense way, let me ask you a
question about that. Do you think it is possible
that a customer, a customer under one rate structure
-- that is the five-dollar base facility charge and
another customer with a ten-dollar base facility
charge, that it may be conceivable that the customer
with the ten-dollar base facility charge may consume
more gallonage if the customer is only concerned
about the bottom line of the bill, and they know that
their bill only increases marginally; so bottom line,
when there is a higher base facility charge.

For example, the customer with the
five-dollar base facility charge would show a lower,

I'm sorry, a higher percentage increase in bottom
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line bill for every additional gallon consumed,
perhaps to some type of a breaking point. I don’t
know where that would be. Have you ever observed
that phenomenon at anytime in your studies?

WITNESS WHITCOMB: No. The economic theory
is based, the economic theory supports the marginal
price, is the price signal that a rational customer
with perfect information woqld respond to. I think
there is some defection from that standpoint in that
I believe that certain people think it should be an
average of some of these prices on the block rate
gtructure, which ié sending the signal to these
customers. But in all these studies, they are
concentrating on the gallonage charge, because that
is, that is affecting, that decision affects their
bill.

You bring out it can change the percentage
of the total bill. So this is even a different
perception issue, and even an alternative price
gpecification that you could then run and test and
see the results of that. You would say some function
of the total bill,

And in all the studies that are out there,
120 empirical studies, that particular price signal

gpecification hasn’t been used.
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Are you aware of any
economists that describe to the theory that customers
are concerned with bottom line bills?

WITNESS WHITCOMB: No.

COMMISSIONER DEASCON: I would invite you to
attend some of our demand side management héarings.
That’s just an aside. That’s all the gquestions.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Redirect.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

JOHN B. WHITCOMB
resumed the stand on behalf of Southern States
Utilities, and having previously been duly sworn,
testified as follows:
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HOFFMAN:

Q Dr. Whitcomb, I think that we can at
minimum glean from the extensive cross examination
regard concerning your two studies, that the study
that you rely on in support of your proposed
elagticity adjustment in this proceeding was the
first study, the WATERATE 2.1, which is attached as
JBW-3 to your testimony; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Let me ask you this, first. If you were to

have used the second study in support of a price
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elasticity adjustment in this case, that is the
WATERATE 2.2, what would the impact be on the
proposed elasticity adjustment that you are
recommending?

A The second study, which I call the updated
study, has price elasticities that are slightly
higher than the original studies at the price ranges
that we are looking at. To that extent, the price
elasticity adjustment would be higher if using the
updated model than the original model.

Q Okay. And therefore, under the second
model the impact on projected consumption and,
therefore, projected revenue would have been greater.

A Projected consumption would be lower under
the updated model; and thus, the rates would be
slightly higher.

Q Ckay. You helped me with that. I didn’t
state that correctly. ©Ckay. There would have been,
the impact on projected consumption as a result of
your second study would be what as compared to your

first study?

A The impact on projected consumption would
be less.
Q Now, in response to some questions from Mr.

McLean, there was some discussion concerning one peer
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reviewer’s comments. Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q Now, that peer reviewer's comments were
directed to your second study, not your first study;
ig that correct?

A Correct.

Q Now, we learned from those questions that
your second study was not accepted for publication
because of what was characterized by one reviewer as
a fatal flaw; do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q Let me.first ask you this. In light of
that c¢criticism why then has SMFWMD moved forward with
the implementation of your second study through the
WATERATE software program?

A Well, as I described at length yesterday,
the inference that the demand curve should be assumed
to be relevant outside the range of experience is a
standard that is set which would eliminate almost 90
percent of almost all research done in a situation.

We believe that within this range of $0.40
to §7.05, that we have come up with the best demand
curve possible to fit the situation. We'’'ve also
looked at coming up with the most credible and

accurate information. It is very important to SWFWMD
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that they have the mostlcredible study. They have
amassed the largest database on the subject.

It is important that the analysis is also
done at that level. If we assumed -- we could have
got the paper published as laid out in cross
examination Exhibit No. 136, Page 2, as that letter
describes. We could have got that paper published if
we had gone ahead and used the conventional demand
function. There wouldn’t be any controversy about
it. But we wouldn’t do that. I wouldn’t do it. My
colleagues wouldn‘t do it and SWFWMD didn’t want to
do that because that would assume, that would assume
the price elasticity is constant over the whole price
spectrum. All evidence sugdests that is not the
case.

Now, the Commissioners here have to render
some judgment -- and the staff -- have to render some
judgment on credibility of this new innovative
technique that we’ve come up with. I point out that
if you want to go and use the conventional technique,
we’'ve already calculated the data, we’ve presented it
to OPC and can be used in this rate case. The net
effect would be that the price elasticity adjustment
would be greater.

Now, you can use that, but myself and my
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team aren’t going to stand behind that number because
we know that the price elasticity is a function of
price level. All the evidence supports that. That
is our stance.

) Dr. Whitcomb, you have published before, as
I understand it?

A Yes. I have published a number of articles
in water demand analysis.

Q All right. And those are outlined in your
Exhibit JBW-17

A Yes.

Q All right, sir. All you needed to do in
order to get published again was to concede to this
alleged fatal law; is that correct?

A Yegs. If we, if we had gone the
conventicnal way, it is my impression it would be, it
would have been accepted for publication. We weren'’'t
going to sacrifice our integrity just to get another
publication. It is too important to -- we have, we
have done so much work to get this database together
that we want to have also the besgt analytical tools
employed in this case.

0 Well, you mentioned that you are not alone
in your assessment that there is not a fatal flaw

with respect to your second study.
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A That’s right. All my colleagues that I‘ve
shared this comment with, Jay Yingling of SWFWMD, who
is going to be testifying here, alsc feels the same
way. And it is our intent for these more than 50
registered users here in Florida to have the best
information. That is why we sent out WATERATE 2.2.

Q Well, is the fact that the WATERATE 2.2
software is being used by I think you said 50 other
utilities in Florida indicative of the fact that
there is not a fatal flaw in that study?

MR. MCLEAN: Objection, leading.

MR. HOFFMAN: Do you want me to rephrase
it, Madam Chairman?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes.
BY MR. HOFFMAN:

Q Dr. Whitcomb, are you aware of any
circumstances which would indicate to you, any other
circumstances, which would indicate to you that there
ig not a fatal flaw in your second study?

A Well, the fatal flaw -- you mean, you have
this mantra of fatal flaw. Again, it is not the
model. It is not the model. It is the inference
where the fatal flaw is. All the research we worked,
we’'ve done, is not applicable to prices above the

$7.05 per thousand gallons.
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And in this case, we have a model that is
being widely used, and we believe is credible.
Q Well, to your knowledge, how many other

utilities in Florida are using the WATERATE 2.2

model?
A Somewhere around 75 now.
Q Thank you. Let me go back to one of my

first line of questionsg concerning the impact of the
second study, just for purposes of clarification. As
I understand it, the impact of the second study, the
WATERATE 2.2, would be that projected consumption

would be less as compared to the first study; is that

correct?
A Yes.
Q aAnd therefore, that would result in a

higher elasticity adjustment?

A Yes.

Q Thank you. Now, there were a number of
questions concerning the applicability of your study

to 88U‘s various service areas; do you recall those

gquestions?
A Yes.
Q You have testified on a number of occasions

now with respect to the climate issue, do you recall

that?
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A Yes.

Q You’'ve testified on the similarity and
variance of the net irrigation requirement when you
compare the SWFWMD utilities to the SSU plants and
facilities; do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q Let me ask you this. Is there any degree
of similarity between the rate structures of the
utilities that were looked at in the étudy and the
rate structure of SSU’s customers which lead you to
conclude that the studies should be applied to SSU’'s
customers?

A Yes. I would say, first of all, we have
gone to extensive steps to account for differences
that rate structure may have on this case. We, as in
Commissioner Deason’s line of questioning, we
accounted for the income effect that can happen from
these, from different rate structures.

One of Dr. Dismukes’ claims is that we
didn’t account for this factor when we actually did.

The other point to be made is that about 50
percent of SSU’s customers have a non-block quantity
charge and about 50 percent have an effective
declining block rate when you lock at both water and

sewer components.
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If you look at the SWFWMD study, about 39
percent of the customers in that study faced a
non-block rate. That’'s when you include -- effective
non-block rate -- when you include those that have
minimum bills. If you look at those that had a
declining block rate or some mixed declining block
rate, that was 57 percent of the sample. Hence,

there is very close similarity also in rate

structure.

) All right. Were you finished, Dr.
Whitcomb?

A Yes.

Q Commissioner Deason did ask you some

questions about the income factor. Can you explain
for us the degree of significance that a customer’s
income has in your study on a proposed elasticity
adjustment?

A The primary factor effecting price
elagsticity is price level as reflected in our
report. There is some difference in price elasticity
related to income.

I believe you are mixing up the income and
how income effects price elasticity and this other
issue, which is the income effect, which has to do

with a -- 1t is more of a theoretical point based on
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disposgable income.
Q Okay. What has a greater impact on

consumptilon, price or rate structure?

A Price.
Q Why is that?
A Price is the relevant information that a

customer leooks at when deciding to consume another
unit or to cut back on water use by one unit. It is
the reward they get for doing that. It is the direct
impact.

Q In one of Mr. Twomey'’s questions you stated
that a goal of the rate structure in terms of the 40
percent based facility charge and 60 percent
gallonage charge that you are recommending in this
case is to encourage conservation. Do you recall
that?

A That is one of two goals.

Q Okay, you are getting to my next question,
which was are there any other goals that are
reflected by that proposal?

A Water conservation was one objective.
Financial risk is the other objective. They are
competing goals. You can’t get more without
gacrificing the other. You have to come to some

level of compromise to come to the desired point.
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Q Dr. Whitcomb, are you aware that interim
rates were placed in effect in this rate proceeding
in January of 19967

A Yes.

Q In light of that fact, would you agree that
50 percent of the elasticity impact will be felt by
SSU's customers by December 31 of 19967

A I would say that you, the price elasticity
impact is certainly in effect right now; that is,
precisely 50 percent of whatever gets proposed here
is not known.

Q You adjusted for 75 percent of the total
expected elasticity in the MFRsg; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q If that adjustment is reduced below that

level, then all else being equal, what would be the

expected impact on Southern States’ revenues in 1997
and thereafter?

A Well, to the extent that you are
underestimating the price elasticity adjustment, you
are overstating projected revenues, which decreases
the gallonage charge, which when water consumption
becomes lower will actually be a decrease in SSU's
revenue.

Q There would be an underrecovery of
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revenue?
A Correct.
Q I alsoc want to be clear on the issue of the

weather normalization charge. Does the weather
normalization charge address only weather impacts or
all variables that impact weather?

A As I said earlier, I believe it should
probably be recalled the water normalization clause

and not the weather normalization clause,

Q So it ig impacted by all those variables?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Dr. Whitcomb, based on your

knowledge and experience, have clauses like the gas
adjustment clause, fuel adjustment clause that is
employed by this Commission, a weather normalization
clause, all of these at some point were new
innovations in their respective industries; were they
not?

A That’s correct.

Q Well, take for example the fuel adjustment
clause. Do you believe that implementation of the
fuel adjustment clause would have required the
extensive level of analysis that is being applied to
your proposed weather normalization clause in this

proceeding?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1965

A It seems like that would be a smaller issue
than this one.

Q Let me follow up with another question on
that, Dr. Whitcomb. In considering the weather
normalization clause or the water normalization
clause, what is it that requires scrutiny on your
part? What is it that is more difficult about it, 1in
your opinion?

Is it the actual implementation of the
clause and calculating the appropriate
overcollections or undercollections, or is it the
principles that ought to be considered by the
Commission in determining whether or not the
application of the clause is appropriate?

A I believe it is going toc take some work to
set it up and get it going. Once it does get going
the way that SSU has proposed, then it would become a
minor administrative task just adjusting the
consumption from -- actual consumption with projected
consumption for each month and making the
calculations from that.

Q In your opinion, is thefe anything that is
complex concerning the igsue of whether or not the
Commisgion should accept for SSU the weather

normalization clause?
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A Well, if you went to the stand-alone rates
it would be much more difficult to make the
calculationg for WNC. You would then have to make
the calculations on a system-by-system basis.

Q That would be an application issue, isn’t
that correct?

A Correct.

Q I'm talking about concepts. In-your
opinion, is there anything that is significantly more
complex about the weather normalization clause when
you compare it with, say, the fuel adjustment clause
in terms of the goals that SSU is attempting to reach
through the clause?

MR. TWOMEY: Pardon me, Madam Chairman. I
don’t believe it has been established, unless I
missed something, one, this is beyond the scope of
the cross examination; and two, I don’t think it has
been established that Dr. Whitcomb understands how
fuel adjustment clauses or the other clauses
mentioned operate here in Florida in terms of their
complexity.

MR. HOFFMAN: Madam Chairman, if I may, I
would like to go back then and ask Dr. Whitcomb if he
does have a familiarity with, for example, the fuel

adjustment clause here in Florida.
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CHAIRMAN CLARK: Go ahead.
BY MR. HOFFMAN:

Q Dr. Whitcomb, are you familiar with the
fuel adjustment clause mechanism in Florida?

A In general terms.

Q Okay. Could you give us your general
understanding of how that clause works and why it
existsg?

A The clause exists because there are certain
uncontrollable factors to the utility, that they
cannot control the price of fuel. And hence, when
the price of fuel changes, the fuel adjustment clause
egsentially passes that along directly in a very
timely fashion into rates on an automatic basis.

Q Do you see any similarities between that
fuel adjustment clause and SSU’s proposed weather

normalization clause?

A Of course.
0 What would those be?
A That the -- I guess the point here is that

Florida’s water consumption is the most variable in
the country on an annual basis, if you look at it,
mainly due to weather. Its unpredictability is,
makes it very likely, actually the risks, it is a

tremendous risk that actual consumption will not
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equal potential projected consumption. To that
extent, the WNC is going to mitigate that for the
customerg and the company.

Q Yesterday Mr. McLean asked you a number of
questions concerning your qualifications. And I
believe at one point Mr. McLean asked you yesterday
if you are an expert on water demand elasticity. Do
you recall those questions?

A Yes.

Q And I believe that your response to Mr.

McLean was that you are an expert on water demand

elasticity, do you recall that?

A Yes.
Q What is the basis for your statement?
A Well, if you look at my education through

undergraduate, and then into graduate schocl, it is
focused on water demand analysis almost exclusively.
In graduate school at Johns Hopkinsg University I was
the -- my faculty adviser was one of the foremost
authorities on water demand analysis, John Bowland.
Since then I‘ve published a number of
articles on water demand analysis. I’ve conducted
over 30 studies on water demand analysis in a
consulting capacity over the last ten years

concerning almost exclusively water and sewer
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customers.

I’'ve worked for the World Bank. I've
worked for two utilities on water demand, on water
price elasticity studies here in Florida. And
currently, I am the principal investigator of a large
empirical project going on in the southwestern U.S..
The folks cut in the socuthwest reviewed the swiwmd
price elasticity study, and a companion or sister
project is currently on way going -- being conducted
there. That’s the states of California, Arizona and
Nevada.

And I would like to point out that Dr. Phil
Halberson at the Las Vegas Valley Water District was
very impressed with the SWFWMD study. That is why he
funded this next project.

0 Dr. Whitcomb, do you.believe Dr. Dismukes
to be qualified to analyze and comment on a water
demand elasticity study?

MR. MCLEAN: Objection, way beyond the
gscope of cross.

MR. HOFFMAN: Madam Chairman, there were
numerous questions directed by Mr. McLean yesterday
to Dr. Whitcomb on the issue of Dr. Dismukes’ ability
to comment on the price elasticity study. I think --

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I will allow the
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guestion.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank you.

WITNESS WHITCOMB: I would think in this
capacity before the Commission of reviewing the
credibility of our study, that someone like Dr.
Beecher that was here earlier, who has a command of
water pricing policy, and knows -- I know she has
done literature reviews and knows the subject matter
very well -- may have, would have been a, I would
have accepted as more of a more appropriate peer.

In looking at Dr. Dismukes’ resume I cannot
see that he has ever done an empirical water price
elasticity study. 1In his comments he makes in his
direct testimony, he shows to me that he doesn’t have
a mastery of the literature on the subject.
Specifically, he declares that the SWFWMD price
elasticity study has low explanatory power.

If you look at the genre of models that are
in the literature, those look at a cross section of
homes among utilities, they look at monthly
observations over a tiﬁe seriesg. Within the genre,
the SWFMD study has relatively high explanatory
power, unlike what he claims.

There is one other factor, I think Dr.

Dismukes probably is a very good energy economist.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




i0

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

1571

And he has some impressive credentials. But when you
move into the water field there is a number of
specific factors that are specific to the water
industry, which you have to learn about. And one
point is that Dr. Dismukes claims that SSU’'s prices
are essentially a non-block, uniform rate structure,
and he characterizes that when he compares it to the
SWFMD study.

It is a very common mistake for people that
don’t deal with this on a daily basis, they ignore
the sewer side of it all. Sewer prices, of course,
can be part, are an important part or the other half
of the price signal being sent out here of rates in
Florida. So that he didn’t recognize the total
pricing, the pricing going on.

Q I think in response to one of Mr. McLean’s
questions yesterday concerning Dr. Dismukes’
recommendation that 50 percent of the price
elasticity adjustment be approved, I think one of
your responses to that suggestion was that he just

tock the number out of a hat; is that correct?

A Correct.
Q What is wrong with that?
A There is no evidence that he has to base it

on. The important point here to be made, and it is

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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an important one, is that it is not between what the

estimate, water rate estimate and zero. That is not

the basis.

It is just as equally likely that the

price elasticity adjustment will be greater than our

egtimate than lower.

So in looking at that it is almost saying,

well, it could be just as equally likely be 20

percent instead of about the 11 percent, 10 percent,

11 percent level that I've estimated. So on that

basis, you know, you can’t just arbitrarily pick a

number that seems -- that doesn’t have any evidence

to support it.

Q

Whitcomb.

I just have a few more questions, Dr.

Commissioner Deason asked you some

questions concerning your Exhibit JBW-3, page 20 of

153.

o O R

Q

Correct.
Do you have that in front of you?
Yes.

I think he asked you the based facility

charge and gallonage charge information for the City

of Venice utility. Do you recall that?

A

I provided the gallonage charge information

and I didn’t have the base facility charge

information available.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Thank you. Do you have the gallonage
charge information or other rate information for the
other utilities which are shown on that page?

A Yes.

Q Could you please provide that information
right now? |

A The list of all the gallonage charges over

time is listed on pages 97 through 100, JBW-3.

Q So that information is in the record?
A Yes.
0 All right. Dr. Whitcomb, Mr. McLean asked

you a number of gquestions concerning what was
identified as Exhibit 136. Do you have that document

in front of you?

A Sorry, I can’'t find it right at this
minute.

Q I will hand you a copy of it.

A Yes.

Q If you would turn to page 10 of exhibit
136.

A Yes.

Q You executed a release; 1s that correct?

A Yes.

Q What is the date you executed that
release?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A January 10, 1996.

Q Okay. As I understand it, you were
requested to do so earlier in your deposition; is
that correct?

A That’s correct.

Q Did Public Counsel thereafter request you
to take any further action with respect to the
information that is identified in that release?

A There was an interrogatory where I was
egssentially asked to provide all the information on
the first set of peer review of the article. I told
them at, through that, in that interrcgatory or
document request response that had been discarded
back in 1994. Later on he comes and I was sent a
release form which I sent to the journal. The
journal did not -- ended up not having this first
round either. They had discarded it. And that is
what I have done in this effort.

o] Has anyone from Southern States advised you
to be anything less than full and forth right in
responding to the discovery request in this case?

A No.

MR. HOFFMAN: Thank vou, Dr. Whitcomb.
That’s all I have.

CHATRMAN CLARK: Exhibitsg.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. HOFFMAN: We would move Exhibit 135.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Without objection
Exhibit 135 will be admitted in the record.

(Exhibit No. 135 admitted.)

MR. HOFFMAN: 136.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Without objection Exhibit
136 will be entered in the record.

{(Exhibit No. 136 admitted.)

MS. CAPILISS: Staff moves Exhibits 137
through 141.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Without objection,
Exhibits 137 through 141 will be admitted in the
record.

(Exhibit Nos. 136 through 141 admitted.)

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you, Dr. Whitcomb.
You are excused. We will take a break until a
quarter after 12:00. You can order what you want or
make arrangements for lunch. We will take no further
long breaks after that. Thank you.

(Brief recess.)

CHAIRMAN CLARK: We will call the hearing
back to order. Mr. Armstrong, I take it Ms. Lock is
your witness.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Yesg, she is, Madam Chair.

CHATRMAN CLARK: OCkay. Let’s just hang on

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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just a minute. Mr. Beck, we are just beginning to go
through the formalities for Ms. Lock.

All right. Go ahead, Mr. Armstrong.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Madam Chair.

DALE G. LOCK
wag called as a witness on behalf of Southern States
Utilities and, having been previously duly sworn,
testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

Q Ms. Lock, do you have before you 30 pages
of questions and answers which constitute your
prefiled direct testimony in this case?

A Yes, I do.

Q If I were to ask you the questions
contained in that 30 pages would your answers be the
same?

A Yes. There would except I would like to
make one change in my direct testimony.

0 What change would that be?

Y.\ On Page 11, line 10, I would like to change
the figure 16.03 percent to 12.9 percent.

Q With that change would you -- if I asked
you the gquestions contained in that 30 pages would

your answers be the same?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A Yes, they would.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, we would
request that the 30 pages of prefiled direct
testimony of Ms. Lock be incorporated into the record
as though read.

MS. CLARK: Before I do that, let me just
check and make sure she has been sworn in.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Ms. Lock, have you been
sworn in?

WITNESS LOCK: Not today.

BY MR. ARMSTRCONG:
Q You were the other day?
A Yes.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. Then you were for

this proceeding.

BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

Q That carries over until today.
A Thank you.
Q You are algo sponsoring four exhibits, is

that correct?

A Yeg, that’s true.
Q Do you have any changes to those exhibits?
A No, I do not.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, we request

that the prefiled exhibits of Ms. Lock be identified

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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with the next available exhibit number.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: First, the prefiled direct
testimony Ms. Dale Lock will be inserted in the
record as though read. And give me the page numbers
or the numbers on her exhibits.

MR. ARMSTRONG: That would be DGL-1 through
DGL-4. |

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. DGL-1 through 4
will be marked as Compogite Exhibit 142.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Thank you.

(Prefiled direct testimony inserted as

follows:)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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WHAT IS YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS?

My name is Dale G. Lock and my business address is 1000 Color Place,
Apopka, Florida 32703.

WHAT IS YOUR POSITION WITH SOUTHERN STATES
UTILITIES, INC.?

My position is Manager of Human Resources for Southern States Utilities,
Inc. which I will refer to as "SSU" or the "Company".

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND WORK
EXPERIENCE?

I am a Certified Compensation Professional by the American
Compensation Association with 20 years of human resources management
experience, 13 years of which are in the regulated utility industry. I
obtained my Bachelor of Science degree in 1973 and a Masters in Science
degree in Industrial Psychology from the University of Central Florida in
1977. 1 was employed for six years in the Human Resources department
of Florida Power Corporation where I was responsible for administering
compensation, benefits and policies. I also spent five years with General
Telephone of Florida where I was responsible for employment test
development and validation; compensation, supervisory and management
skills assessment; and EEO and affirmative action programs. 1 also
worked for the University of Central Florida for five years where I was

responsible for all aspects of personnel administration. Finally, I spent
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three years with Assessment Designs, Inc. where I designed management
and supervisory skills assessment center simulation exercises and
performed assessor training.

WHAT ARE YOUR PRESENT DUTIES AS MANAGER OF HUMAN
RESOURCES ?

1 began my employment with Southern States in February 1993 as Human
Resources Administrator. In November 1994, I was promoted to the
position of Manager of Human Resources. My duties include the
development and administration of SSU’s human resources programs and
policies in the areas of recruitment, equal employment opportunity,
employee relations, training, benefits, compensation, job evaluation, and
performance appraisal. I am responsible for the content and administration
of our employee benefits programs including the Defined Benefit Pension
Plan, 401(k) Savings Plan, Medical/Life/Dental Plans, Short Term
Disability, Group Long Term Disability Plan and Pre-tax Dependent &
Medical Reimbursement Account, Employee Assistance Program,
Unemployment and Worker’s Compensation.

WHAT ARE YOUR PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS?

I am a member of the American Compensation Association, the Society for
Human Resources Management and the Industrial Relations Research
Association.

HAVE YOU EVER TESTIFIED BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC
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SERVICE COMMISSION?

Yes. I testified on behalf of Southern States in Docket No. 930945-WS,
the statewide jurisdiction docket.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

I will describe Southern States’ experience with FASB 106, provide
information supporting Southern States’ requested payroll costs, and give
an overview of Southern States’ human resources, payroll and training
departments’ operations which are designed to maximize efficiencies,
reduce costs and provide our customers with a labor force capable of
providing safe, efficient and sufficient service statewide.

COULD YOU BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE HISTORY OF FASB 106,
CONCENTRATING SPECIFICALLY ON HOWIT HAS IMPACTED
SOUTHERN STATES?

In December, 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards Board adopted
SFAS No. 106 which was generally effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 1992, I will refer to SFAS No. 106 as "FASB 106."
FASB 106 addresses the recognition and measurement of post-retirement
benefits other than pensions, which I will refer to as "OPEBS." OPEBS
are benefits that the employee receives from the employer when the
employee retires and are made up of medical care, dental care, life
insurance and other miscellaneous benefits. FASB 106 changed the

accounting for OPEBS from the "pay as you go" method (cash basis) to
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an accrual basis which recognizes the expense when the employee earns
the benefits. In other words, FASB 106 requires Southern States to
recognize OPEB costs as a liability on the Company’s financial statements
when they are eamned, over the employee’s working life similar to pension
benefits and not when the benefits are paid.

HAS SOUTHERN STATES ADOPTED FASB 106?

Yes. The Company adopted FASB 106 on January 1, 1993.

IS SOUTHERN STATES REQUESTING RECOVERY OF ITS OPEB
COSTS IN THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes. Southern States seeks OPEB cost recovery since the expense for
OPEBs should be recovered as the employer accrues them. OPEB
expenses should be paid for by the ratepayers for whom the employee is
performing services rather than future ratepayers. Southern States’ OPEB
costs for the year ended December 31, 1994 were $848,032. Exhibit
% (DGL.-1) contains a copy of the actuarial valuation report of our
OPEB costs projected for the year ended December 31, 1994, The
valuation study was performed by Godwins, Booke and Dickinson.
WHAT IS THE PROJECTED 1995 NET PERIODIC OPEB COST
INDICATED IN THE MFRS?

The actarially estimated 1994 net periodic OPEB cost is $848,032. We
are not yet in receipt of the 1995 actuarial valuation report as of the time

of submission of the application for a rate increase in this proceeding. In
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1995, to reflect prior Commission orders, SSU budgeted only $787,150 for
above the line cost and $60,882 for below the line cost based upon a
weighted average of Commission disallowances in those prior proceedings.
In other words, SSU did not increase this budgeted cost in the MFRs to
reflect the prior total company OPEB costs of $992,525 which the
Commission had previously authorized in the Marco Island rate
proceeding, Docket No. 920655-WS. The company will update the 1995
and 1996 OPEB costs upon receipt of the actuarial valuation which is
expected in late June.

Since the Company is requesting final revenue requirements for the
projected year ending December 31, 1996, we have increased the 1995
OPEB costs indicated in the MFRs ($787,150) for that period by 8%. The
8% increase reflects the 1996 rate of medical inflation projected by
Godwins, Booke and Dickinson. Using an 8% medical inflation factor
results in a 1996 total OPEB cost of $850,122. We believe the 1996
projection to be a conservative estimate based upon preliminary analyses
of 1995 OPEB costs conducted by Godwins, Booke and Dickenson.
HAS THE COMMISSION AUTHORIZED SOUTHERN STATES TO
RECOVER OPEB COSTS IN THE PAST?

Yes. As ]l just mentioned, most recently, in Order No. PSC-93-1070-FOF-
WS in Docket No. 920655-WS, (Marco Island), the Commission approved

total Company OPEB costs of $992,525. The Commission’s determination
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related to a projected test year ended April 30, 1993. AsI also indicated
earlier, SSU did not include the $992,525 in the MFRs. However, we
intend to request that the Commission permit SSU to recover the actual
OPEB costs to be reflected in the Godwin’s Actuarial Valuation report for
1995, increased by 8%, in final rates. If the actuarial valuation we will
receive shortly exceeds the foregoing OPEB cost indicated for 1996 in the
MFRs, SSU will so notify the Commission and parties to this proceeding
and will request that the difference be used as an offset to any deduction,
if any, which the Commission may make to SSU’s requested revenue
requirements.

PLEASE DESCRIBE SOUTHERN STATES’ EFFORTS TO
CONTROL OPEB COSTS SINCE THE COMMISSION ISSUED ITS
ORDER IN DOCKET NO. 920655-WS.

Before describing our efforts since the order was issued, it must be
understood that the record in Docket No. 920655-WS confirmed that
Southern States already had taken significant steps in 1992 and 1993 to
control OPEB costs prior to the issuance of that order. These cost control
measures included: significant steps to reduce costs by adopting and
communicating specific cost containment measures such as increasing
employee deductible amounts, decreasing SSU"s reimbursement amounts
for using out-of-network medical providers and user cost sharing by

significantly increasing both retiree and active employee premium
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contributions. Since then we have implemented further cost control
measures in each of the plan years for 1994 and 1995. Some highlights
of additional cost containment measures are as follows: significant medical
plan and coverage re-design to reduce excessive utilization costs;
additional new coverages provided for preventive care and physicals;
adoption of more aggressive managed care with professional utilization
review and use of a primary care physician as a gatekeeper; hospital,
surgical and mental health care precertification requirements; increased
deductible and coinsurance amounts; introduction of a two (2) tier plan;
and escalated premium structure and conversion from an insured plan to
a lower cost, self-funded plan governed by ERISA. I note that if it were
not for SSU’s size, we would not have been able to convert to a lower cost
self-funded plan at all. The specific control measures implemented during
the period 1992 through 1995 are provided in Exhibit /_%? (DGL-2).

As further confirmed during Docket No. 920655-WS, Southern
States’ OPEB benefits program as a whole provided somewhat lower
benefits to our retirees than the average plan of 77 utilities nationwide,
eight of which were Florida utilities. In fact, Southern States’ medical
plan benefits to retirees at age 65 and over were the least generous of the
Florida utilities. Since that docket, we have not increased medical plan
benefits to active employees nor retirees and have been very aggressive in

medical plan cost control measures. In view of the forgoing, I believe it
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is likely that SSU’s benefits remain below the average of utilities
nationwide.

DO YOU HAVE ANY OTHER INFORMATION WHICH
CONFIRMS THE REASONABLENESS OF THE OPEB COSTS
SOUGHT BY SOUTHERN STATES FOR THE YEAR ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 1996?

Utilities have traditionally attempted to offset lower pay rates than general
industry by providing superior employee benefits. SSU’s medical plan
benefits, however, are only average when compared to general industry.
SSU’s medical, life, dental and long term disability costs as a percent of
payroll, are 11.1%. This ratio of medical benefits dollars as a percent of
total payroll dollars is identical to the national average of 11.1% for 1,057
employers reported in the most recent 1994 national Chamber of
Commerce Employee Benefits Survey.  Further evidence of the
effectiveness of our benefits cost containment measures is the fact that
SSU’s medical related benefits increased by 2.28% from 1992 to 1993
while the same 1,057 Chamber of Commerce surveyed companies
increased medical related benefits costs by 7.7% in the same period.
Based on these facts, we believe that SSU’s medical benefits are
consistent with the average for all industry and are thus reasonable. Further
SSU’s medical cost containment measures have been more successful than

general industry as a whole.
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COULD YOU DESCRIBE SOUTHERN STATES’ REQUESTED
PAYROLL AMOUNT FOR THE PROJECTED YEAR ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 1996, INCLUDING AN EXPLANATION OF THE
COMPANY'’S PROJECTION OF PAYROLL INCREASES SINCE
THE HISTORIC YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19947
Yes. For purposes of this filing, Southern States began with the actual
payroll for the historic year ended December 31, 1994. Pay increases for
merit increases are budgeted at 3% for both the years 1995 and 1996.
Three percent was the percentage of 1994 actual merit spending. Pay
increases for promotion are budgeted at 1.0% in both 1995 and 1996, again
based on 1% actual promotion increase spending in 1994. Pay increases
for license attainment are budgeted at .25% in both 1995 and 1996 again
based on the same percent of 1994 actual spending. The step adjustment
pay increases for hourly non-technical employees have been phased out
following the last increase given on March 2, 1995. The market
adjustments recommended in the Hewitt Study will replace the step
adjustment increases. Market and equity adjustments are budgeted at 1.5%
in 1995 and 1996. |

In addition to the 1.5% equity adjustments budgeted, SSU is
seeking an additional 4.77% market pay adjustment to bring SSU and
Buenaventura Lakes employees closer to competitive market levels. This

market adjustment represents a significant addition to payroll expense
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included in the Company’s request for the projected test year ending
December 31, 1996.

WHY IS SSU PROPOSING MARKET BASED SALARY
ADJUSTMENTS?

Hewitt Associates conducted an independent external market compensation
study for SSU which incorporated pay data from eighteen different survey
sources. Hewitt compared SSU’s pay for 50 different benchmark job
classifications against other state and national employer actual average pay.
Hewitt used data from employers who operate within the geographic
locations where SSU recruits and hires employees. I will refer to this
study as the "Hewitt Study." A copy of the Hewitt Study is provided as
Exhibit 4_%? (DGL-3). The most notable below market pay rates were for
those paid to: plant operators, plant maintenance, rate department and
customer service personnel. These job categories comprise over 60% of
all SSU positions. To ensure the survey comparisons were relevant, all
plant operations, maintenance and meter reading jobs were compared
exclusively against the Florida League of Cities Wage Survey. Florida
cities and counties are among our toughest competitors for employees. In
1994, Florida cities and counties paid from 11% to 22% more than SSU
for the same job. Overall, SSU’s pay rates for the job categories analyzed
were found to be on average 17.3% below the surveyed market.

HAVE YOU EXCLUDED RATE DEPARTMENT POSITIONS FROM

10
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YOUR REQUESTED 1996 PAYROLL ADJUSTMENTS, AND IF SO,
WHY?

The SSU company-wide comparison of average pay to market average pay
was recalculated excluding the Rate Department positions. The
comparison group for the majority of Rate Department positions was the
electric utility industry. Because the Rate Department positions were so
far below the comparison market it was believed that including the Rate
Department positions would skew the study results. This is confirmed by
the fact that by excluding solely the Rate Department positions, the SSU
company-wide comparison number drops to 1{2?—63?% gelow the average
market pay. According to Hewitt, when actual pay levels are within +/-5%
of the market, they can be considered to be fully competitive. Assuming
that pay rates within 5% of the market are reasonably competitive, even
after excluding Rate Department positions, SSU currently is still more than
11.03% below competitive market pay levels.

HAS SSU CONDUCTED ANY ANALYSIS TO COMPARE THE
COMPANY’S SALARY STRUCTURE, AVERAGE SALARY AND
TURNOVER RATES TO THE SALARY STRUCTURE, AVERAGE
SALARY AND TURNOVER RATES OF OTHER COMPANIES?
Yes, and in summary, SSU’s salary structure and average salaries are far
below market while SSU’s employee turnover rates exceed the market

significantly.

11
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Salary Structure. Salary structure refers to the pay ranges to which
jobs are assigned, in other words, the minimum and maximum of pay
ranges to which specific jobs are assigned. The SSU salary range
structures were originally established based upon 1988 salary survey data.
The last time SSU revised these salary ranges was in 1990 when they were
adjusted npward by 2%. No adjustments in salary structure have been
made since then.

According to the Hewitt survey data, southern U.S. companies, on
average, raised their salary structure annually by 2.5% for hourly and 3.2%
for exempt employees in 1992, 2.6% hourly and 3.0% exempt in 1993, and
2.3% hourly and 3.0% exempt in 1994. All Florida companies on average
raised their salary structures by 2.1% hourly and 2.4% exempt in 1992,
2.2% hourly and 2.7% exempt in 1993, and 3.0% hourly and 3.1% exempt
in 1994. The foregoing demonstrate that for these three (3) years the
Florida labor market experienced a 7.8% compound growth rate in salary
range structures. This indicates that Florida employers on the average
increased their salary pay grade minimums and maximums by 7.8% in
those three years. During this same period, SSU was unable to increase
the salary ranges for our positions, thus SSU fell farther behind the
competitive labor market.

Salaries. According to the Hewitt survey data, in 1993, average

overall salary increase budgets in Florida were 4.0% hourly and 4.4%

12




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

1992

exempt and, in 1994, 4.1% hourly and 4.4% exempt. In the two years
from 1993 to 1994, the average Florida employee thus received an 8.57%
compound increase in earnings. At SSU, during this same two year 1993-
1994 interval, SSU’s more conservative salary increase budgets for merit,
equity and step adjustments reflected a compound growth rate of 7.2%.
The actual growth in SSU’s actual average pay increased by only 1.44%
or from $27,168 in 1993 to $27,560 in 1994. This fact confirms that,
proportionately, SSU is filling more lower paid operator, maintenance and
customer service classifications than higher paid positions. Despite SSU
efforts to keep up with external market annual pay rate increases in the
past few years, SSU’s pay rates have remained significantly below the
external labor market. As I indicated above, the average SSU employee
earned a base compensation of $27,168 as of 12/31/93. In contrast, in the
most recent 1993 National Association of Water Companies (NAWC)
survey of Investor-Owned Water Utilities, the average compensation for
employees of investor-owned water utilities in the southern United States
was $34,585.97. Average compensation nationally for investor-owned
water utility employees in 1993 was $39,109.15.

SSU has not been financially able to implement company-wide
salary adjustments due to our current and historically low earnings
position.

Turmover. As a result of our non-competitive wage and salary

13
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scale, SSU also has experienced high rates of turnover, as well as
difficulty recruiting. The percentage of turnover in 1992 was 13.2%, with
62 out of 469.5 employees separating from SSU’s service. The percentage
of turnover in 1993, was 13.5 %, with 66 of 489 employees separating
from SSU’s service. Excluding the Venice Gardens sale and customer
service office consolidation which took place in 1994, the percentage of
turnover was 11.54% with 58 out of 502.5 employees separating from
S8U’s service in that year. SSU turnover to date in 1995 has been 11%
on an annualized basis, with 13 employees separating from service in the
first quarter.

These turnover rates are substantially higher than the national and
southern United States averages. According to data published by the
Bureau of National Affairs ("BNA"), which tracks monthly turnover and
reports the national average for all companies nationwide, all U.S.
companies averaged 10.8% turnover in 1994, The significance of this
statistic is that it includes turnover experienced by retailers and the fast
food industy which have turnover rates which can exceed 100%.
Approximately 65% of SSU’s preventable turnovers in 1993 and in 1994
were employees who had less than 3 years of service. In fact, in 1993,
nearly 31% of the personnel who separated had less than 1 year of service.
In 1993, we compared our average annual turnover to that of other

utilities: Orlando Utilities Commission 4.8%, Florida Cities 3.96%, Collier
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County’s Utility Division 9.72% and Minnesota Power 5.4%. Obviously,
our 13.5% turnover rate is abysmal by comparison to these other utilities.
High turnover contributes to higher recruitment costs as well as lowered
employee productivity and added retraining costs. Ultimately, SSU’s
customer service and operating efficiency suffer when trained employees
cannot be retained.
HAS SSU DONE ANYTHING IN THE PAST TO CONTROL
TURNOVYER?
Yes. As new inexperienced employees are hired at entry level rates, they
are compressed at the low end of their respective pay ranges. To improve
retention of these employees and offset lower salary range compression,
administrative and clerical employees in salary grades 10 and below
previously were compensated with up to three step adjustments, one in
each successive six month period. Each step adjustment was equivalent
to approximately 3.5%. In anticipation of SSU’s implementation of the
market based adjustments indicated in the Hewitt Study, the step
adjustment program was discontinued after the last step increases on
March 2, 1995.

Also, in response to the loss of field employees, and as a means of
improving competitive pay, plant operators and distribution and plant
maintenance employees are given hourly pay adjustments for attainment

of additional or higher level licenses. The intent of this pay practice is to
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give new hires an incentive to attain the training necessary to obtain
licenses on an expedited basis and reward them for doing so. However,
the job specific market data available in the Hewitt Study indicates that
these licensing adjustments alone have not been sufficient t bring SSU
pay levels into line with the market.

HAS TURNOVER FOR FIELD PERSONNEL DECREASED SINCE
THE LICENSING ADJUSTMENTS WERE IMPLEMENTED?

Yes, there has been a modest improvement. Turnover has been reduced
to 11% in 1995 from the 13% levels in 1992. The Hewitt study, however,
demonstrates that for many SSU positions, we are still far below
competitive market levels and must remedy the problem to bring turnover
to acceptable levels. Please note the double digit percentage increases
indicated in the Hewitt Study which would be required for SSU to bring
operators to competitive market rates in comparison with the Florida
League of Cities Survey.

HAS SSUDONE ANYTHING FURTHER TO CONTROL PAYROLL
COSTS?

Yes. As aresult of SSU’s poor 1994 financial results, $600,000 was cut
from the 1995 labor budget in anticipation of savings resulting from a
hiring freeze which was put into effect on 1/1/95. All 1995 vacancies are
now being subjected to re-justification and committee review to determine

that refilling is absolutely essential to meet regulatory compliance
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requirements or to avoid the cessation of critical work.

Also, each year reductions are made in the labor budget to account
for turnover. In 1995, $125,000 was cut from the budget to account for
payroll lapse as a result of historical turnover and ongoing vacancy levels.
As 1 indicated earlier, the turnover rate has been high in the past so this
reduction to accommodate the high tarnover rate is larger than it would be
if turnover rates were reduced to more normal levels -- as SSU hopes will
occur if the Commission approves our request for salary adjustments
consistent with the Hewitt Study.

DOES SOUTHERN STATES PROPOSE TO IMPLEMENT THE
CHANGES SUGGESTED BY THE HEWITT STUDY?

Yes. In 1995, SSU began implementing competitive market adjustments
equal to 1.5% of payroll in order to accommodate a portion of the
adjustments indicated in the Study. Southern States believes it is necessary
to acknowledge and remedy the salary deficiencies identified in the Hewitt
Study and reduce resulting high turnover rates as quickly as possible.
SSU’s inability to adequately adjust salaries to competitive market levels
has been occasioned by our very poor financial results. However, we
believe that the high turnover levels we have been experiencing cannot
continue indefinitely without adversely impacting quality of service and
ultimately costing SSU and our customers more in the long run than the

salary adjustments we are proposing. Already, our deficient salary levels
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have resulted in SSU’s inability to recruit and retain employees. The high
rates of turnover have caused increased recruitment and re-training costs
as well as reduced efficiencies and lowered productivity due to a loss of
trained personnel. Ultimately these costs harm our customers. Once
Southern States’ salary structure is adjusted to better reflect market
realities, we believe that reduced productivity during training and
orientation, deficiencies in experience and training levels of our employees,
employee recruitment costs, and other costs will be mitigated. For these
reasons, we have projected adjustments of our salary structures. In 1996,
adjustments of $711,405 or 4.77 % for SSU and $27,916 or 4.76%, for
former employees of Orange Osceola Utilities who will be SSU employees
by 1996 (serving the Buenaventura Lakes facilities) were budgeted
separately to achieve one-half of the balance of the pay adjustments
necessary to bring SSU into a competitive market posidon. As I
previously indicated, our ultimate objective is to pay within 5% of the
comparable labor market so adjustments in future years also will be
required.

PLEASE INDICATE WHETHER SSU MAINTAINS THE SAME
EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND BENEFITS FOR ALL SSU
EMPLOYEES.

SSU maintains the same employee policies and benefits for all of its

employees, wherever in Florida they may be located or providing service.
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These policies and benefits will apply to the current employees of Orange
Osceola Utilities who will become SSU employees. Employee policies
and benefit programs are developed, implemented and administered by the
Human Resources Department in Apopka.

For example, with regard to timekeeping practices specifically, SSU
has established uniform policies regarding work hours, overtime, breaks,
meals, shift differentials, sick time off, vacations, etc. The interpretation
and application of these policies or any pertinent laws or administrative
rules regarding working hours is the responsibility of the HR Department
in Apopka.

Payscales also are uniform within the same job classification,
regardless of where an employee is based, with the exception of Marco
Island which has a geographic wage deferential for licensed operators.
Payscale, wage and salary administration, job classification, job
description, job evaluation, job placement, performance appraisals, annual
merit increases, promotional/demotional salary adjustments, salary surveys,
and incentive pay plans are centrally developed, implemented, and/or
administered by the HR Department in Apopka. I will discuss these issues
later in this testimony.

Benefit programs include, but are not limited to, comprehensive and
major medical benefits; a medical/dependent care flexible reimbursement

account; life insurance; accidental death and dismemberment insurance;
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long-term disability insurance; 401(k) savings defined contribution plan;
defined pension plan and employee assistance plan.

Additional policies and programs developed, implemented and
administered statewide from Apopka by the HR Department include, but
are not limited to, the following list: Equal Employment Opportunity,
Hiring Practices, Sexual Harassment, Alcohol and Drugs, Smoking Policy,
Conflict of Interest, Pre-Employment Physical, Relocation Policies,
Employee Records Administration, Training and Educational Assistance,
Safety and Health Standards, Separations Procedures, Employee Discipline,
Death of an Employee, Death of a Retiree, Exit Interview Process, and
Discipline.

CAN YOU IDENTIFY ANY RECENT CHANGES BY SOUTHERN
STATES” HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT WHICH HAVE
ASSISTED THE COMPANY IN CONTROLLING COSTS?

Yes. In 1995, Southem States became a self-insurer for our medical plan.
Were it not for SSU’s size, we would not be able to enjoy the lowered
costs associated with a self insured medical plan. According to our medical
plan consultants, only employers with 500 or more employees can cost
effectively self fund a medical plan. Self funding the medical plan will in
the long term not only reduce SSU’s costs, but also allow us to provide
more affordable medical benefits to our employees and lower costs to our

customers. A conglomeration of small independent utilities could never
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attain the economies of scale that SSU has achieved in its benefit
programs.

As another example of cost savings, in 1993, SSU consolidated its
employee 401(k) Savings Plan and Pension Plan under one lower cost plan
administrator. Consolidation of both plan assets under one investment
fund manager and single plan administrator lowered asset fees which are
incrementally reduced based on a larger combined dollar volume of assets
under management. This consolidation also reduced plan record keeping
fees and administrative and testing charges.

DOES THE APOPKA OFFICE APPROVE ALL HIRING AND
TERMINATION OF EMPLOYEES?

Yes. The HR Department in Apopka assists company supervisors with all
disciplinary actions. The HR manager reviews and approves the hiring and
termination of all employees. In fact, all aspects of the hiring process are
controlled by the recruiter position within HR, Given the location of
SSU’s statewide facilities, we consider our hiring pool to also be
statewide. When a vacancy exists or a new position is requested, the
requesting supervisor must complete a "Position Requisition"” form. HR
reviews Position Requisitions to ensure that they are authorized. All
recruiting advertisements are written by the HR Department and placed in
appropriate periodicals and newspapers by HR. A statewide recruiting

budget (to cover the cost of ads, physicals, drug screens, criminal record
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checks, interview expenses and any relocations) is developed annually and
administered by HR. Across the state, candidates are instructed to apply
in person, or send a resume, to the Apopka office. Applications and
resumes are pre-screened by the HR department. A panel of qualified
candidates is recommended to be interviewed. A Team Interview
composed of panelists from the hiring department or a cross-section of
departments and facilitated by HR is conducted on selected candidates.
The team reaches a hiring decision and recommends selection of a
candidate. HR conducts background and reference checks on finalist
candidates. A "Recommendation to Hire"” form is submitted to HR which
reviews the recommendation and supporting documentation (application,
reference checics, etc.), obtains any additional information to ensure that
a proper hiring decision has been made, approves hiring and approves or
negotiates a starting pay rate with the potential employee.

Following verbal acceptance of an offer by the candidate, a written
offer of employment (contingent on successfully completing a job-related
physical examination and drug screen) is prepared by HR and signed by
the candidate accepting the offer. Once the letter is signed by the new
employee, the employee is referred to the company-designated physician
for a post-offer physical examination and drug screening, consistent with
established corporate policy. The results of the physical are phoned in and

sent to HR by the medical provider. Results of the drug screen are phoned
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in to HR by the Company’s Medical Review Officer. HR informs the
local manager of the results of both the physical and drug screen. HR
informs any candidate who tests positive on a drug screen of these results
in writing through registered mail, indicating that the offer of employment
has been withdrawn because the candidate failed to meet the conditions of
employment and explaining the candidate’s rights of appeal and retesting.
If the medical provider suggests that the candidate may not be physically
able to safely perform in the vacant position, HR assumes responsibility
for determining whether there may be some "reasonable accommodation”
(under the Americans with Disabilities Act) that might be made to allow
the candidate to perform the essential functions of that job. HR hosts a
formal orientation in Apopka for all new employees once every quarter.
New employees from throughout the state travel to Apopka for this
orientation which lasts about 6 hours.

ARE THERE ANY OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE HUMAN
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT WHICH DEMONSTRATE HOW
SSU’S SERVICES APPLY STATEWIDE TO ALL SERVICE
AREAS?

The HR department is responsible for employee relations activities through
the state. All disciplinary actions are discussed, tracked and reviewed by
HR to ensure consistency and the fair weatment of all employees.

Recommendations to discharge any employees must be submitted to the
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Manager of Human Resources for review and then approved by the
President. No discharge is approved without full and complete
investigation and documentation by the HR Department.

Employee complaints are frequently addressed by HR either directly
(in person or by phone) or through the "Pipeline" program which is
administered by the Communications department and offers employees an
avenue to anonymously submit any complaints or problems through
Communications to senior management. HR investigates, documents and
resolves charges of sexual, racial, age or disability discrimination or
harassment, initiating corrective action when necessary and warranted. HR
is constantly seeking avenues to keep their fingers on "the pulse” of SSU’s
proactive employee relations program. Drug testing mandated by the
Department of Transportation (DOT) and by the Florida Drug-Free
Workplace Act, is monitored and controlled by HR. Drug testing is
accomplished on a number of occasions: Post-Offer, Assignment into a
position covered by DOT regulations, Post-Accident (DOT regulated
employees), Random (DOT), Routine Fitness for Duty (DOT), Return to
Duty and Reasonable Cause testing. All "reasonable cause” drug testing
must be recommended by the local manager to the Manager of Human
Resources and approved by the Vice President of Finance and Accounting,

The HR department also administers and controls the staffing

budget for the entire company, statewide, without exception. All operating
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regions and support divisions, departments and locations submit
justification for current positions as well as requests for additional staff.
Overtime, on-call hours and shift differential hours also are requested in
the process. New authorizations must be approved by the President.
Finally, the HR department researches and analyzes new or existing
legislation and develops the corporate-wide response to these new laws
with the assistance of outside counsel, if necessary. Most recently, this
analysis has included the Americans with Disabilities Act, Civil Rights
Acts and the Family Medical Leave Act. Local Managers and employees
at all SSU facilities throughout the state, without exception, are provided
information and training on these new laws, as appropriate. In additional,
HR serves as a consultant to other departments, examining legislation and
assisting in the interpretation of that legislation and the development of
Company-wide responses to these laws in concert with other departments.
Examples include: the new Family Medical Leave Act, Americans with
Disabilities Act, Department of Transportation (DOT) Regulations
concerning Commercial Drivers Licenses, DOT Regulations on LP Gas
Pipeline Safety, Bloodborne Pathogens Rule, Safety Procedures, Confined
Space Entry, Florida Worker’s Compensation Law, Equal Employment
Opportunity Law, and other legislation. SSU compliance with these
requirements, and necessary reports to govemment agencies, are

determined on a company-wide basis, not by plant.
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PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW THE INFORMATION YOU HAVE JUST
PROVIDED TO THE COMMISSION RELATES TO SOUTHERN
STATES’ ABILITY TO PROVIDE SAFE, EFFICIENT, AND
SUFFICIENT SERVICE TO ITS CUSTOMERS.

Human Resources is responsible for ensuring that employees are qualified
and able to successfully and efficiently perform the functions of their
positions, HR works with each department to set the minimum training,
experience and educational requirements for each company position and
determines the proper pay grade assignment using a formal job evaluation
program. HR ensures that all employees meet the qualifications for the
positions for which they are hired and ensures that proper job related
training is conducted to keep employees competent to meet their assigned
responsibilities. HR ensures that fair employment laws are adhered to and
that discipline is fair and necessary to the proper conduct of the business.
Through adequate compensation and benefits, the HR department strives
to recruit, motivate and retain qualified employees necessary to provide
efficient, quality water and wastewater to our customers. All these
elements are the essential tasks entrusted to the HR department.

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW SSU PROVIDES EMPLOYEE

TRAINING?
All aspects of the training and development of SSU’s employees (with the

exception of "on-the-job" training) originate from the Apopka office. The
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training function is accomplished by personnel from Apopka and is
conducted on site, at individual plants throughout the state, as well as at
centralized locations at or near the headquarters in Apopka; depending on
the topic and the target audience.

As explained by SSU witness Raphael A. Terrero, the Technical
Services and the Environmental Compliance and Permitting departments
(both located in Apopka) provide technical training on water and
wastewater operations-related topics.

SSU also provides management and supervisory training as well as
training on Customer Service Techniques, Telephone Etiquette, Computer
Use, Computer Software (Word Perfect, Quattro Pro, Windows and others),
Leadership, Organizational Development, Team Building and a variety of
other topics.

 The Communications Department hosts a Quarterly Manager’s
Meeting at a location near the Apopka headquarters. All local managers
throughout the state travel to this location every quarter to receive training
on a number of topics and to receive presentations from various
departments. This includes the training of managers and employees
concerning corporate policies, programs and procedures which affect all
employees at all SSU facilities throughout the state.

The HR department is responsible for HR-related training of

managers and all employees. This includes, but is not limited to, Drug
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Awareness to comply with the Florida Drug-Free Workplace Act, benefits
information sharing including 401(k) savings plan enroliments, general
benefits awareness and education, medical plan and wellness, personnel
and pay policies, supervisory training, for example, how to interview,
discipline, etc., familiarization with new legislation, for instance, ADA,
Family Medical Leave Act, etc., formal employee orientations held in
Apopka each quarter for new employees, and communication of personnel
policies and other topics.

SSU also offers company-wide training and education assistance
programs to reimburse employees for external training/education. Courses
which satisfy the requirements for a college degree are covered, as is
education that satisfies the requirements for license(s) in:

Water Treatment (A, B, and C)

Wastewater Treatment (A, B, and C)

Distribution Systems (A, B, and C)

Collection Systems (A, B, and C)

Backflow Prevention/Tester

Backflow Assembly/Repair and Maintenance

Cross Connection Control Management

These courses are available either by correspondence course or in
a classroom setting at local junior colleges or vocational-technical schools

approved by either the Florida Department of Professional Regulation, in
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the case of water and wastewater treatment courses, or the Florida Water
and Pollution Control Operators’ Association or University of Florida
TREEO Center in the case of Distribution, Collection, Backflow and Cross
Connection licenses. All requests for outside training and education are
submitted to the local supervisor and then to HR for review, approval and
processing for payment.

The Information Systems department provides specific training
pertaining to mainframe computers, the PC network, data security and
specialized software and provides programming services to any facility or
department wherever located, on request.

Other Apopka based divisions and departments provide training on
technical areas within their respective disciplines as well. For example,
the Finance Department, which also is located at SSU’s Headquarters in
Apopka, provides training annually on the preparation of all budgets,
annual reports, purchasing, risk management and other finance-related
topics in Apopka and at a central location within each region, Other
Apopka based departments may be called upon periodically to provide
training on a subject within their respective areas of expertise. These
include, but are not limited to, Safety, Rates, Customer Service,
Engineering, Legal, Environmental Services, Operations Administration,
Corporate Development and other areas. Attached as Exhibit]_ %GLA)

is a copy of a recent schedule of training events conducted by Apopka
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based personnel for SSU employees.
Q. DOES THAT CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

A. Yes, it does.

30




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

i8

1°

20

21

22

23

24

25

2010

BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

0 Ms. Lock, do you have a summary of your

direct testimony?

A Yes.
Q Could you please present that now.
A Yes, I will. My name is Dale G. Lock. My

position with --

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: I'm sorry, Ms.
Lock. Could you get right into the mike. I’'m having
trouble hearing you.

WITNESS LOCK: Is this better?

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Much better, thank
you.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I might suggest that
you might want to move over so you don’'t end up doing
it later because I think they like locking into the
eyes of -- just one over.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, do you need for
her to move over?

MR. BECK: No. There are fewer people here
today.

WITNESS LOCK: It is okay then?

MR. BECK: It is ockay. Are we ready to
begin?

BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Yes.

A My name is Dale G. Lock. My position with
Southern States Utilities is the Manager of Human
Resources. I’ve specialized in the area of
compensation and benefits within the Florida utility
industry. I have a Master of Science Degree in
industrial psychology, and I'm also a Certified
Compensation Professional.

I have more than 14 combined years of
experience as a human resources professional working
for General Telephone Company, Florida Power
Corporation, and currently working for Southern
States Utilities since February of 13993.

I am personally very involved in the design
and analysis cf competitive wage and salary surveys
and implemented and administered the same
compensation programs for Florida Power Corporation,
as well as GTE of Florida.

It is my testimony that SSU has acted
prudently and is in line with common industry pay
practices regarding its requested 5.75 percent
overall pay increases.

In my written direct testimony on Page 9, I
explained that these pay increases which total 5.75

percent are not, quote, attrition adjustments, but

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2012

rather are increases to be granted for merit, license
adjustments, for license attainments, promotion and
equity adjustments.

8SU has not significantly changed the
percentage it has annually budgeted and gpent for
these increases since 1993. Thesge wage and salary
increases paid by SSU are lower than those paid on
average by other comparable employers.

In SSU’'s response to OPC discovery, SSU
documents the actual amount and percentage of total
payroll dollars granted to our employees for merit
increase, promotion, equity and license adjustments,
in the years 1992, ‘93 and 94. The historical
average paid out.for those years was 5.9 percent.

So for the 1996 projected test year, the
budgeted 5.75 percent is consistent with SSU’s past
actual pay practices. 88U granted merit increases of
three percent of payroll in 1995; and we expect to do
the same, three percent, as projected in 19%96. Three
percent for merit increases, I would like to point
out, barely keeps up with the 1995 rate of general
inflation, which was 2.8 percent for the year.

The 1993 Natiocnal Association of Water
Company Survey of Investor-Owned Utilities showed

that in the south the average pay was over $34,000 a
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year for investor-owned water employees. SSU'Ss
average pay was only $27,000 per year, which was
about 27 percent below the average paid by other
gsouthern U.S. investor-owned water utilities.

One effect resulting from SSU’'s
uncompetitive labor rates has been high turnover.
88U cannot recruit and compete for gqualified
employees, nor can we retain them. §SSU’s turnover
rate was 13.5 percent in 1993, 11 and a half percent
in 1994, and up to 16 ﬁercent for the year of 1995.

SSU’s turnover rate is triple that of
Orlando Utilitieg Commission, which is 4.8 percent.
It is four times the turnover rate for Florida
Cities, which was 3.96 percent in that same time.

Two-thirde of those employees who terminate
from our employment are hourly paid operators,
maintenance technicians, meter readers, and customer
service personnel. Of the 16 percent turnover we
experienced in 1995, 40 percent of those employees
stated in exit interviews that the reason they left
S8U was for better paying jobs elsewhere.

SSU Commissioned Hewitt Associates,
therefore, to conduct a custom study and make
recommendations regarding our pay rates. Hewitt

obtained and analyzed comparative pay data from
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salary surveys of employers primarily located in the
Florida labor market.

For the operations and maintenance
positions, they surveyed the counties and municipal
utilities surrounding the majority of our locations.
8SU’s actual average pay would have to be increased
by 17.3 percent in order to reach just the average
market pay levels, according to Hewitt Associates.

On page 15 of Exhibit DGL-3, Hewitt
Associates shows the specific percentage amounts
needed to increase each of the benchmark jobs to even
reach average pay levels. For specific examples, the
SSU Customer Service Rep I position, the employees
average pay was 16,600, which was 30 percent below
the average of $21,700 being paid by other émployers
in Orlando and across Florida for the same job.

88U‘'s Treatment Plant Operator I positions
average pay of $21,900 was found to be 11.4 percent
below the average paid of 24,000. SSU’s Operator II
employee pay, actual pay, was 12.5 percent below
average. And for Operator IIIs, our most senior
level, they were 22 percent below the average paid by
the other utilities.

Based on the results of that study, SSU is

asking for an additional 4.765 percent in market base
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pay adjustments in the 1996 projected test year. As
you can see from the numbers in the exhibit from
Hewitt, the 4.765 percent ig only a starting point to
begin to make progress towards reaching average pay
levels in Florida.

88U is not asking the Commission to allow
S8U to become a top payer in Florida among water
utilities.' At the 4.7 percent, SSU is projecting we
are not even asking for an increase in an amount
necessary to bring us up to average pay levels. As a
result of our current and historically low earnings
position, SSU has not been financially able to
implement company-wide market base salary
adjustments. S8U’s below market pay levels have had
a cause and effect relationship on our ability to
recruit and retain gqualified employees.

Thank you
BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

0 Does that conclude your summary?
A Yes, it does.

MR, ARMSTRONG: The witnegg is available
for cross.

CHATRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck.

MR. BECK: Thank yvou, Madam Chairman.

CROSS EXAMINATION
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BY MR, BECK:

Q Ms. Lock, with regard to the Hewitt study,
you sent out proposals to a number of different
companies to have a market base salary survey done;
is that right?

A Yes, I believe we.checked gseveral, at least
three of them.

Q You sent out a specific request for
proposals to the three companies?

A Yeg, we did.

Q aAnd did Hewitt Associates provide you the
lowest quote for doing that survey?

A At this point I can’t recall, but I know
that cost was a major component in our decision to
select Hewitt. One of the reasons that Hewitt was
selected was because I had prior knowledge of their
capabilities in working for Florida Power Corporation
where they had also done pay studies.

Q and one of the reasons, is it not, that
they were a lower cost than others is that there was
very little custom surveying they had to do for
Southern States Utilities?

A No, sir,'that’s not correct. In fact,
Hewitt did a custom sur%ey which basically amounted

to telephone calling other utilities in employed rate
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positions. The study that they did was a custom
survey overall.

Q Okay. The custom survey they did for the
rate position is the only position for which they did
that type of telephone survey, is it not?

A Yes, that is true. 2and if the Commission
would like, we could have conducted a telephone
survey of a number of different utilities. However,
that would probably have increased our cost somewhere
in the neighborhood of 75 to $100,000.

It is not customarily the practice of other
utilities, such as the ones I can speak from
experience, GTE and Florida Power, to do telephone
surveys. First of all --

MR. BECK: Objection, excuse me,
objection.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes, Ms. Lock, I think you
are going quite beyond the question he asked. Yéur
attorney will have the opportunity to ask for further
explanation, if it is warranted. So if you would,
try and stick a little closer to the question.

THE WITNESS: Okay. We did a custom survey in
the same manner as would have been done by other
industries utilizing Hewitt and Associates. They use

the same methodology in conducting the, quote, custom
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survey for us as they would for any of their other
clients.
BY MR. BECK:

Q Except for the rate position, Hewitt
Associates relied on data they already had in their
databases, did they not, to provide this custom study
for you?

A Some of the data that was actually provided
by surveys that we had, for example, the Florida
League of Cities survey was the data that SSU had in
its position; but the majority of the surveys were
surveys in their database. I bhelieve they had in
excess of 18 different survey sources.

Q So you provided the Florida League of
Cities survey to Hewitt Associates; is that right?

A That’s correct.

Q Then they also utilized surveys that they
already had?

A Yes, that'’'s true,

Q And the one place they did the telephone
type of survey was for the rate position and that
only; is that right?

A That’s true. I would like to take the
opportunity to explain the nature of the custom study

at some point in my discussion today so you can
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better understand what was actually done.
Q Thank you. Would you turn to Page 10 of
your testimony.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Mr. Beck, while she
is doing that, I'm having trouble hearing you because
the mike is behind you and-thg one in front of you
isn't turned on. Try that.

BY MR. BECK:

Q Ms. Lock, are you at Page 10 of your
testimony?

A Yes.

Q Here is where you introduce a discussion of

the Hewitt study in your prefiled testimony; is it
neot?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And on line 12, you state that the
-- or beginning on line 12, you say, "The most
notable below market pay rates were for those paid

to: plant operators, plant maintenance, rate

department and customer service personnel;" is that
right?

A Yes, that’s what it says.

Q Could you turn to your Exhibit DGL-3. That

is the Hewitt study, is it not?

A That's correct.
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Q Okay. Could you turn to page 45 of 81 of
that exhibit.

A pPage 45 of 81 gives the market pricing
worksheet for Operator II positions.

0 That is the first item that you listed on
the line that we just read about being the most
notable below market pay rates?

A No, that is not correct. When I am
referring there to plant operators, we have Operator
I, Plant Operator II, Plant Operator III, which I
think you need to lock at Exhibit DGL-3, page 15 of
81. You can see we have a variety of positions that
are in the operations department.

We also have welders. We have
electricians. We have Maintenance Tech I. We have
Senior Maintenance Technician. I can go on, but I
think you can get the point.from looking at that
page. Those are the cperations positions.

Q Is Operator I of those positions the one I
just directed you to?

A Yes, just one, though.

Q Before we get to that, since you brought up
your page 15 of 81, the summary, that lists the 17.3
percent increase that, as I understood you to say in

your summary, that is the amount necessary to -- or
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that is the average amount necessary to bring your
average pay levels up to market; is that correct?

A If you take all of the percentages shown on
page 15, add those up and come up with a gimple
average, that will give you 17.3 percent. I think
there has been some confusion. I would like to
clarify this. If you start with a dollar and you add
$0.50, you’ve increased by 50 percent. But if you
take a dollar-fifty and you subtract $0.50, you’'ve
subtracted 33 percent.

So there is a difference in going up to a
certain level, going up to market level, versus going
down from the market level. And I know that was a
question that you had in numerous discovery requests

and during my deposition.

Q Is it a guestion I just asked you?
A I don‘t recall.
Q Now --

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Ms. Lock, let me just
caution you to stick to the question. Your attorney
is here to get the further explanation that might be
needed., Normally, I would be a little more lenient,
but we are not making good progress in this case.
And we need to have short answers, as well as short

questions. Okay?
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WITNESS LOCK: I understand.
CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you.
BY MR. BECK:

Q Like I was saying, Ms. Lock, the 17.3
percent on your page 15 of 81, the derivation of that
ie shown by adding up those percentages that are
shown on the last column; is that right?

A Right, in taking an average.

Q And the percentages are solely those that
the Hewitt study found to be below market; is that
right?

A These are the total of all of the positions
that were surveyed. The ones showing dashes are
those that were not below market.

Q And in computing your average, you excluded
those where the existing salaries were above market;
did it not?

A That’'s true.

Q So the 17.3 percent is solely an average of
those below market, and it excludes those where the

pay rates were above market; is that right?

A That's true.

o) Now, could you go to Page 45 of 817

A Okay.

Q This shows two sources that were used to
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derive the base pay for an Operator II; is that

right?
A Yes.
Q Is that a plant operator? Could you

describe briefly what an Operator II does?

A The designation of I versus II versus IIl
is a function of licensing. 8o an individual who is
a Plant Operator II would have to have a B level
license through the Department of Environmental
Regulation, Bureau of Professiocnal Regulation. And
these individuals could be involved in operating
either water or wastewater treatment plants,
monitoring plant levels, doing various types of
analyses and testing that are required by the DEP.

Q What I would like to do is go through this
exhibit to show the mechanics of how the numbers were
derived. Okay. Let’'s start with the first one where
it starts with the Florida League of Cities, 10,000
to 50,000 population. Do you see that?

A Yes, I do.

Q That iz one of two sources that were used
to derive the base ﬁarket value for an Operator II,
ig that right?

A Correct.

Q Okay. As we go across the columns, you see
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there is a column for number reported. There is two
items under there. What do each of those two items
represent?

A Okay. Under number reported, it indicates
-- COS would be companies or in this case utilities
-- so it would be 36 different utilities and 133
different individuals.

Q And it says a survey effective date of
October, 937

A Yeg, I would like to clarify that, if I
may. This data has been aged, which is a term used
by compensation firms whereby they would take average
utility increases for a given year and bring the
percentages up to the current date. So this data was
aged and amended for 1994.

0 Now, could you answer my question about the

October of 93, is that the date where the survey was

taken?

A Yes, that was the effective date of the
survey.

Q The next column is unadjusted database of
25.57

A Correct.

Q What, does that represent?

A That indicates the actual data in the
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survey as of the October, ‘93 date.

o] That’s the base salary for those
employees?

A Right, average base salary.

Q And now you have an update factor of 1.07,

what doesg that do?

A This is what I was talking about in terms
of bringing the salary up -- actually, I would like
to clarify. I think I said 1994. They have updated
the survey data to 1995. And this is showing that
they assume that during that period their pay would
increase by seven percent.

Q So that seven percent factor is applied to
the 25.5 to come up with the 1995 salary level of
27.3; is that right?

A That's correct.

Q Now, the second source was the Florida
League of Cities salary survey for 50,000 plus
population, is it not?

A Yes,

Q Okay. And again, we go through the same
analysis there to come up for cities and counties of

that size, that the basis 28.6 thousand dollars; is

that right?

A That’'s right.
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Q Now, up in the upper right-hand corner
there ig an estimated market value and a base of

27.9. Do you see that?

A Yes.
Q How was that derived?
A If you look in the last column, just beyond

base, it shows weight. That is a weighted average.
So in some instances if the surveys were more
relevant than others, they might be weighted two or
three times the value of a survey that was less
relevant. 8o the base is a weighted average of the
two surveys that you see represented for that
position on that page.

Q Since here the weights are one, it 1is just
a simple average of those two numbers; is it not?

A Exactly. But in some instances those
weightings could be different.

MR. BECK: I would like that as an exhibit
marked for identification.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, the next exhibit
number 1is 143. The exhibit keing marked, which is
143, is an Excerpt from Florida League of Cities
Cooperative Salary Survey, dated February, 1994.

BY MR. BECK:

Q Ms. Lock, would you tell me when you’ve had
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a chance to look through that exhibit.

A This is not complete. This is not a
complete representation of the data shown on Page
45. You are only reflecting one of the surveys.

There were two of them, as you can see there.

Q May I ask a question?
A Go ahead.
Q There are two surveys we just discussed in

your, that formed that basis for the Hewitt study on
Operator II; is that right?
A You only have one,
Q Right. Thank you. This is one for the
population 50,000 plus; is it not?
sy Yes, but it is not a reflection of
everything on that page. You don’t have the one for
the 10,000 to 50,000 population.
0 That will be the next exhibit, Ms. Lock, if
you don't mind.
COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Just answer his
question.
WITNESS LOCK: You have in this exhibit for
cities over 50,000.
BY'MRﬁ BECK:
Q Thank you. That is the basis for the line

or the item in the Hewitt study for that segment, the
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50,000 plus; is that right?

A I couldn’t hear what you said. Could you
repeat that?

Q Let me start over. When we would discuss
your page 45 of 81, we went through two sources; is
that right?

A Yes.

0 One was the 10,000 to 50,000 population.
The second one was the 50,000 plus population.

A That’'s right.

Q And we gaw that the base for the 50,000
plus was 26.7 thousand dollars; is that right?

a Right .

Q And the exhibit I have just handed you is
some detail behind that specific figure; is it not?

This is the source data for the figure 26.7 thousand

dollars.
A For that one figure, yes.
Q We will get to the other one in a moment.

Let’s focus on this one, if you could. This is the
data that Hewitt looked at to come up with the 26.7;
is that right?

A I will have to check the dates on this:
There is no date on it, so it is hard for me to

ascertain if this is the same survey or not.
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Q We provided the cover sheet showing the
February, 1994 survey of the Florida League of
Cities.

A Well, then in that case this is not the
same survey because this is Octeober, ‘93 updated, as
we discussed with the update factor. So this is not
the same survey date.

Q Doegn’t the February survey relate to data

that goes to Cctober of '937

A I cannot make any assumptions regarding
thig. I have not seen it. It was not used in this
study.

Q Let’'s go through this, Ms. Lock. In the

exhibit it includes some of the salaries that were
included in the exhibit, for example, Broward County,
do they not?

A Are you still referring to the exhibit or
where are you 1iow?

Q Yes, on the exhibit, the third page or last

page of the exhibit. I want to go through some of

the detail.
A Yes, Broward County is on this sheet. -
Q And the average pay for Broward County was

above the average, was it not?

A It looks like Broward County was not the
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highest, but it is one of the higher ones.
Q Was it above the average, Ms. Lock?
A Yes. The average is 26,000, and Broward

County was 28.

Q Ft. Lauderdale is listed at 33,488; is that
right?

A That’'s true.

Q And that is above the average, is it not?

A Right. There are also a number of well

below average, like Bay County at 18,000. .
Q Ms. Lock, could you just answer the
question, please.
A Yes.
MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chairman, could I have
one second?
CHATRMAN CLARK: Yes, we will také a break
for five minutes.
(Brief recess.)
CHATRMAN CLARK: We will go back on the
record. Mr. Beck, you were asking gquestions.
BY MR. BECK:
Q Ms. Lock, let's start again on the third
page. Broward County is included. And its amount is
above the average; 1s it not?

A Yes.
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Q The inclusion of Broward County, therefore,
tended to bring the average up; did it not?

A Yes,

Q Would the same be true for Ft. Lauderdale

at an average salary of 33.5 thousand dollars?

A Yes.

Q Metro Dade, is 32,129; is it not?

A True.

Q The inclusion of that of Metro Dade tended

to bring the average up; did it not?

A True.

Q Palm Beach County is at $30,630; is it
not?

A True .

Q The inclusion of Palm Beach County tended

to bring the average up; did it not?

A Right.

Q Southern States Utilities has no facilities
in any of thoge counties, does it?

A Not in those counties, but in the majority
of the others listed there.

Q You see Jacksonville where the average
salary is 40,3717

A Yes, we employ operators in Jacksonville.

Q You see the title there says Water Operator
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Supervisor, is it, or does it mean scomething else?

A Water Operator Supervisor, yes, that's what
it says.
Q Why would a supervisor be included in with

these other Plant Operator IIs, if you know?

A Yes. I can tell you the answer to that.
Each of the jobs included in these surveys contains a
job description that is supplied by the entity
regponding. And in that case, although they call it
a supervisor, it would be equivalent to the other
positions included on this page.

So it may be some kind of a lead worker or
maybe they just use that title for those who have the
Plant Operator B Level. There may be some additional
duties included.

0 Now, for different cities there are
different number of employees that were used to
calculate the average; is there not?

A Yes.

Q Is the 26,662 average a gimple arithmetic
average for all the different facilities, or isg it
weighted; if vou know?

A I believe that is a simple average.

MR. BECK: Could I have a second exhibit

marked for identification?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSICN




10

11

12

13

14

i5

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2033

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, how many do you
have?

MR. BECK: We have -~

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Can we get that done all
at once to speed things up?

MR. BECK: I have one more other than that,
then a confidential one that has three.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I think if we could ask
all the parties to sort of group their exhibits, that
may help speed up the time. You are excused this
time, Mr. Beck. The exhibit entitled "Excerpt from
Florida League of Cities Cooperative Salary Study,
April, ’'94, will be marked as Exhibit 144.

{Exhibit No. 144 identified.)

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Madam Chairman, and
the one before that was?

CHATRMAN CLARK: It was February of '94.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: No, the number of the
one before that.

CHATIRMAN CLARK: 143.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Is the one that Mr.
Beck handed out also, okay.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes.

BY MR. BECK:

Q Ms. Lock, do you have that exhibit in front
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of you?
A Yes.
0 And this is for cities 10,000 to 50,000

population; is that right?

A Yes.

0 And that is the other source that i1s in the
Hewitt study that we discussed earlier, is it not?

A Right.

Q The Hewitt study shows 25.5 thousand
dollars for this city population, does it not?

A Yes.

0 Is that not the -- is not the last page of
the exhibit I just handed you, where it shows an
average figure of 25,456, the source of that number?

A Could you repeat that?

Q On the exhibit I handed you for plant, it
has Plant Operator B on the last page of the exhibit.

A Right.

0 and the actual average listed there for
Plant Operator B is $25,456.

A Yes.

0 Is that not the scurce of the data that we
locked at in the Hewitt study where it shows 25.5
thousand dollars as the unadjusted databasge?

A Well, the numbers loock the same, but the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2035

dates are different. You are using a different dated
survey, but the number does seem to be comparable.

MR. BECK: I have the actual survey. Could
I just hand this to the witness and see if she can
confirm that’s where the numbers come from?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes.

WITNESS LOCK: My gquandary is not that I don’t
believe this is from the gurvey. It is just that the
information used in the Hewitt survey was the survey
from Cctober of 793. And you are.presenting me with an
April, ‘94 survey and asking me if it is the same number
in the Hewitt study. My answer to that is, no, these
are two different survey dates.

BY MR. BECK:

Q The date on the Florida League of Cities
cover is the date that entire publication is
published; isg it not?

A Yes, but it is not the same date as we used
in the Hewitt survey study.

Q The Hewitt survey study shows the date that
the salaries were effective, doeg it not?

A So your posgition is you believe this is the
same survey.

Q In the Hewitt study doesn’t it show you the

survey effective date of October of ’937
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A Yes.

Q And doesn’t the data that was published in
the April, ‘94, relate the salaries that were
effective on that time period of October, '937?

A I don’t know that. What I'm saying is my
belief would ke that they are not. I don’t see
anything in here that says October of ’93.

Q Do you have the survey that was used as a
bagis for the Hewitt study?

A I do not have it with me.

Q Okay. Do you know whether it is different
than the survey I just handed you?

A I do not know. That is why I'm concerned.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Ms. Lock, let me ask you a
question. I thought you said that the survey done
for you was from October, 1993 data, and then aged
for "94. 1Is that what you =said?

WITNESS LOCK: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: What does the survey date
indicate in that document that Mr. Beck gave you?

WITNESS LOCK: This says April of 1994.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, I thought you
indicated somewhere in that document it says the survey
was taken in October of 793.

MR. BECK: I can’'t point to it at this
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gsecond. The publication is April, ‘94. This is the
gsame data. Maybe we can speed this along, Ms. Lock.

BY MR. BECK:

Q You will be back on rebuttal, will you
not?

A Yes.

Q Could you check between now and the time

you come for rebuttal and confirm the data I am

giving you is, in fact, the data used for the Hewitt

survey?
A Yes, I can do that.
Q You will agree for the moment, will you

not, Ms., Lock, the number indicated on the actual
average indicated on the exhibit I gave you does
match the numbers that are taken or that appear in
your exhibit for plant operators.

A It is very close.

Q Okay. Let me ask you about some of this

data. Deerfield Beach is listed in this city

population for an actual average of 31,8917

A Yes.

0 And Lake City is at 16,932. Do you see
that?

A I do.

Q Could you explain why there could be that
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much variation for the pay for the same position
within the same population group?

A Well, I would only be speculating; but
apparently, from what I understand, each individual
employer has to pay based on their ability to pay.
and in that area perhaps they don’t have a large tax
base, and consequently, are significantly below
average as per this survey.

Q Likewise then for this survey, Deerfield
Beach, for example, would be on the high side based
on their ability to pay?

A Ability to pay or current market conditions
for South Florida.

Q And you don’t have any systems in Deerfield
Beach, do you? |

A No, we don't.

0 I have one more exhibit before we get to
the confidential one. Could I ask that be
identified.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: The next number I have is

145.

(Exhibit No. 145 identified.)

CHAIRMAN CLARK: While he is passing that
out, let me make two announcements. I had an inquiry

from Representative Tom Feeney’s office. He had

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION .




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

2039

indicated he wanted ﬁo be able to make some comments
if we took public testimony. I had thought-he was
going to be here today, but I suppose because things
went early this morning he is not here.

I just want to put everyone on notice he
has requested that he be able to come and appear.
we hear from him, and he does follow up on the
request, he may be here at some point in the
hearing.

The other thing is that we will reconvene
the hearing after the agenda on Tuesday. And I
expect next week will be a very full week. Let me
indicate this Exhibit 145 is the "Excerpt From
Florida League of Cities Cooperative Salary Survey
dated May, ‘94."

BY MR. BECK:

Q Do you have that exhibit in front of you,
Ms. Lock?

A Yes.

Q Could you turn to the last page of that
exhibit?

A Yes.

Q This lists wages for Plant Operator B in

cities under 10,000 population, does it not?

A Yes.
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Q And if you would, look at a few of them.
Clermont has an actual average of $14,248, does it
not?

A Yes, for one operator.

Q Okay. And do you have any, does Southern
States have any systems near Clermont?

A Not that I'm aware of, no.

Q What about Mount Dora, the actual average
wage is 19,3137

A Yes.

Q Does Southern States have any systems near

Mount Dora?

A Not in Mocunt Dora, no.
Q Do you have any in that vicinity?
A We have some in Lake County, but no where

near Mount Dora.

Q Mount Dora is also in Lake County?
A Yes.
Q Let me ask you about Neptune Beach. Do you

know where Neptune Beach is located?

A Ag a matter of fact, I do.
0 Where is Neptune Beach?
A Neptune Beach, if it is anywhere near

Neptune, it is down in the South Florida area.

Q Would you accept subject to check it is
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near Jacksonville Beach?

a Then I guess I don’t know where it is.

Q You are not familiar with the Jacksonville
Beach where you have Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach,
Jacksonville Beach altogether?

A I'm a Florida native. I’'ve been through
most of the parts of the state, but I don’t know
every city by heart.

Q Well, if you could accept that Neptune
Beach is in Duval County, my question to you is we
locked earlier at Jackscnville with a salary of about
40,000 for this category. Here is Neptune Beach at
20,000. How would you explain that type of variation
in such close proximity?

A Again, I would have to say it is because of
their size, complexity of the treatment plants that
they have, would have zsome bearing, their ability to
pay based on their tax base.

Q And would you agree that your Jacksonville,
or the system that Southern States has in
Jacksonville is somewhere between downtown
Jacksonville and the Jacksonville beaches; if vyou
know?

a I can‘t say because I don’‘t really know

where these facilities are located.
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Q Now, the actual average for cities of this
gize is $22,714; is that right?

F:y Yes. That'’'s what this demonstrates.

Q This survey was not an input into the
salary survey made by Hewitt, was it?

A No.

0 Why not?

A If you look at the first page, the cities
under 10,000 in population, a large number of them
have populations around 2,000 or less. So apparently
we didn’t feel that this was really relevant
information for some of these very small facilities.
Some of them are little more than package plants that
operators run as a side line, although apparently
theée cities do employ people on a regular basis; but
I would assume they have far less complex and size
facilities as would SSU.

Q You don't disagree that a number of the
locations in this size populaticon are near plants

where SS8U hag facilities, do you?

A I haven’t gone through and looked at them
one by one. I guess we can start at the top of the
list and go through. I would assume there could be

some, but I don’t know without locking at each cne

individually.
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Q And =o did you never provide the survey
with this population to Hewitt and Associates?

A No, we didn’'t.

] And it was your decision to withhold this
data from Hewitt Associates when they did their data

on the Florida League of Cities survey information?

A I did not decide to withhold it, no.

) But you did not provide it to them, did
you?

A No. In fact, I did not have it.

Q Why not?

A Apparently, we didn’t think it was relevant
data to lock at because of the small sizes of these
cities.

Q What do you mean apparently? Was this not
your decision? Aren’t you the interface between

Southern States and Hewitt Assoclates?

A Yes.
Q Why ig it apparently so?
A Well, we didn’t have this data available to

us. We contacted the Florida League of Cities, asked
them for their surveys, and actually we didn’t see
this. But even if we had, I don’t think we would
have necessarily included it. We might have, but we

didn’t.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2044

COMMISSICNER KIESLING: Mr. Beck, let me
interject gomething here. When you say "we", I don‘t
know who you are talking about. If you are talking
about you and the Hewitt people, or you alone, or you
and others at SSU. And it would be really helpful to
me if you answered the questions in relationship to
what you know; and if you include others, at least
identify who they are.

WITNESS LOCK: ©Okay. In this case I would
ha§e to say that I did not have this survey available
to me, and I did not send it to Hewitt for inclusion
in their study.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Thank you.

BY MR. BECK:

0 Now, you did include in your information
you gave to Hewitt the data for the city populations
over 50,000; is that right?

A Yes, as well as those for cities from
10,000 to 50,000.

Q And we saw earlier that the over 50,000
included a number of cities in southeast Florida that
brought that average up higher; did it not?

A Yes, but it also included Orlando, Tampa
and Jacksonville where we do have facilities.

Q But you don’‘t have any facilities in Palm
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Beach, Broward or Dade County; is that correct?

Y No, but we do have facilities in the Stuart
area of South Florida.

Q Why is the data there any more or less
relevant than the data for the c¢ities under $10,000
that was not provided to Hewitt and Associates?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, $10,0007
BY MR. BECK:

Q 10,000 population.

A I would think that the two surveys that we
included, which encompassed cities from 10,000 up to
those over 50,000, were representative of the
majority of the positions employed for operators in
the state of Florida.

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, I have
packages. Each package has three exhibits in it.
This is material that Southern States has claimed to
be confidential. I would like to pass that out now
to anybody that cares to see this data.

CHATIRMAN CLARK: Next available exhibit
number I have is 146, I will indicate it is a
confidential exhibit.

{Confidential Exhibit No. 146 marked.)

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, I guess for

clarity, are we going to have questions asked on this
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document?

MR. BECK: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: He is under an obligation
to not reveal the confidential part of the exhibit.
We have been fairly successful in accomplishing that
in other documents.

MR. ARMSTRONG: I’m sorry, I don’'t have any
experience with this being done. I apologize.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: It is just us you
have to worry about.

CHATRMAN CLARK: I would assume it is the
numbers that are confidential in here; is that
correct, Mr. Armstrong?

MR. ARMSTRONG: Yes.

MR. BECK: I will try to go over that
before.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I think Mr. Beck can
handle that.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: If I could get
clarified, there is actually three separate exhibits
in here. Do vou want to call all of them by that
number?

CHATIRMAN CIARK: Why don’t we do that, Mr.
Beck. We will indicate this is one composite

confidential documents. It consists of an excerpt
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from the Hewitt study which is VP Finance and
administration. It also contains a calculation of
1994 executive bonuses, and Southern States 1994
incentive compensation plan, all of which will
constitute Composite Exhibit 146.

BY MR. BECK:

0 Ms. Lock, let me ask you to direct your
attention first to the excerpt from Hewitt study VP
Finance and Administration.

A Could I have a moment with our attorney?

MR. BECK: Sure.

(Brief pause.)

WITNESS LOCK: Okay.
BY MR. BECK:

Q There is one pade attached to the cover
page, do you have that?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Thig is generally in the same format
of the exhibit we discussed eariier; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, let me ask Counsel -- well, my
first questioh is why is this being claimed
confidential and the other data isn't? I don’'t
understand why this is confidential, but the other

stuff is not, and whether you would like to waive

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

2048

that claim of confidentiality?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, does this have a
ruling on it yet?

MR. ARMSTRONG: That’s what I was
wondering.
| MR. BECK: Subject to a temporary
protective order.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I don’t mean to impede
your questioning her in any way. Can't we resolve
that later and move on?

MR. BECK: I will try the best I can.

Let me ask this, is it simply the numbers
that are claimed to be confidential? I can discuss it
if I don’'t identify the numbers? 1Is that agreeable
with you, Counsel?

MR. ARMSTRONG: That’s agreeable. I
apologize. 1I‘ve never seen the document.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: It is the numbers we need
to be --

MR. ARMSTRONG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. Go ahead, Mr.

Beck.
BY MR. BECK:
) Now, Ms. Lock, does thisg reflect the Hewitt

study for your VP of Finance and Administration?
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A This was draft data that Hewitt compiled
that was never actually formalized or used in any
fashion.

Q Did Hewitt do a study for your VP of
Finance and Administration?

2 We injitiated one, but it was never
completed. This is not complete data. This is a
draft.

Q Okay. What information do you have
justifying the salary of your VP of Finance and
Administration?

A We have other data, actually Minnesocta
Power conducted a study through a different.Hewitt
office. That data was never directly provided to
S8U; but they, through the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors, control SS5U officer level
salaries.

Q And that data, in turn, was never provided
to us either; was it?

A I don’'t believe so.

Q Did you ever disclose you had withheld or
that data wasn‘t provided because it was in Minnesota
Power's possession?

a I don‘'t think it was ever asked. I’m not

sure how you got this document because it is, as I
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say, a draft.

Q 1f you know, how is the information that
Minnesota Power, I guess you wouldn’'t know since
you’ve never seen the Minnesota Power information
yourself, right?

A The Board of Directors Compensation
Committee controls that information, and they
commissioned a separate study. We began to undertake
this study and we were told --

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Ms. Lock, I'm over here.
He simply asked you if you had seen that data from
Minnesota Power. Did you?

WITNESS LOCK: Not in this format, no.
BY MR. BECK:

o) Let’s Qo through this information at least,
that we have. There is a number of different socurces
of information for the vice-president of Finance and
Administration listed in this document; is there
not?

A Yes.

Q Okay. and up in the upper right-hand
corner we have a base and total figures given; is
that right?

A Yes.

Q At least for this draft document, that is
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the estimated market value of that position; is that

right?
A According to this, vyes.
Q And that number is derived as a weighted

average of the information that is provided in the
body of the document; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. So for example, the highest weighted
one is the sgecond to the last row for top financial
executive water utilities; do you see that? That
receives a weight of three?

A Yes.

Q That is higher than the weights for any
other data; is that correct?

y: No. It looks like the one for general

industry on the second row is higher than that

number,
Q The weight for that is two, is it not?
A Yes.
Q The weight for the top financial executive

of water utilities is three; is that right?

A Right.

9] The top financial executive for water
utilities is higher weighted than any of the others?

A It is higher weighted yes, but not a higher
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number.
Q I asked about the weighting.
A Yes, the weighting is higher.

Q Why, if vou know, is the weighting higher
for that than any of the others?

‘A Well, one would intuitively assume since we
are a water utility, what other water utilities are
paying would be more relevant than other types of
industry.

Q So is that the reason for the high
weighting for that?

A I did not asgsign that, and am not really
very familiar -- I'm not familiar with this
document. So I don‘t know the reason, but that would
be my speculation as to why.

Q The last row is the one item that deals
with Florida specific information; does it not?

A That is what it indicates, yes.

Q All right. In other woxrds, there are six
sources here; five of them are nationwide, and the
last one is Florida specific, is that right?

A Thatt 1s what it would show, yes.

Q The Florida specific is given the lowest
weighting with two others; is it not?

A Yes.
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Q Why would the Florida specific information
for a VP of Finance and Administration of water
utilities be given the lowest weighting?

A If you look at the survey source, it says
that it was a custom, informal survey source. And I
was going to tell you earlier that the reason that
many companies do not like to rely on telephone data
is because of the inaccuracy and inability to verify
that type of information.

One must rely on persons answering the
telephone and their credibility and whether they’ve
actually looked up the information appropriately or
not. So that may be one reason.

Q Would you agree with me that the Florida
specific information and the salary shown there is
significantly less than the overall estimated market
value shown in this document?

A It looks l1like it is about $4;000 lower,
which would be lessgs than 5 percent lower than the
base indicated on average.

Q You’'ve got to take me through how you see
only 4,000 difference there.

A Well, it looks like 82 versus 78 to me.

Q Ckay. The 78 figure that you just gave is

a total figure, is it not?
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A Yes.

Q I mean, there is figures for base and there

is figures for total; is there not?

a Right.
0 The 78 is the total figure?
A So you are talking about the base. I see

what you are saying.

COMMISSIONER GARCIZA: Mr. Beck, where are
you?

MR. BECK: On the last row.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Let me just caution you.

MR. BECK: I didn’'t give the number.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I know you didn‘t give the
number. Ms. Lock, Mr. Armstrong has indicated it is
the number that is a problem. One way you deal with
that is to indicate the ccolumns and the numbers. You
can avoid using the number. It is tedious, but you
can do it. Okay?

WITNESS LOCK: Okay.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: This isn't for our
benefit., This 1s because your company has said it
needs to be kept confidential.

WITNESS LOCK: Okay, thank you.

BY MR. BECK:

Q You just gave us the total number. Since
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it is out, I will go ahead and repeat it, 78, for the
Florida specific; is that right? It ig a figure of
78 for total in the Florida specific information?

A Yes.

Q Wouldn’t it be correct to compare that
against the amount under total in the upper
right-hand corner?

A Yes.

Q Would you agree the Florida specific
information is significantly less than the total for
the estimated market value related to total?

A Yes. But again, one must be cautioned by
the reliability of that number since it was a custom,
informal study.

Q Would you agree that, in turn, if we
compare the base figure for the Florida, and compare
it to the base figure in the upper right-hand corner,
that the Florida number is significantly less than
the estimated total base.

A Yes.

Q Could you turn to the exhibit marked
calculation of 1994 Executive Bonuses.

A Could I have a moment, please?

(Brief pause. )

WITNESS LOCK: You are on exhibit for 1994
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executive bonuses?

BY MR. BECK:

Yes.
A Okay.
Q There is one page attached to the cover

page, i1s there not?

A Yes.

And do you have that in front of you?

A I do.

MR. BECK: And Counsel, I‘m assuming that
the only thing I cannot discuss here are the actual
numbers, that you would have no objection to
degcribing the columns.

MR. ARMSTRONG: That'’'s accﬁrate.

BY MR. BECK:

0 Okay. Ms. Lock, this document describes a
calculation of kconuses for 1994 for executives; is
that right?

A Yes.,

Q Ckay. And one of the columns is estimated

VGU gain, do you see that?

A Yes.
Q To what doesg that refer?
A That 1s the Venice Gardens Utility gain on

sale.
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9] And the next column after the estimated

gain is the bonus portion. Do you see that?

A I do.

0 How was that determined?

A I would have to refresh my memory. Give me
a minute and I will read this over. {Brief pause.)} I

could probably try to wade through this, but I think
I would like to defer this schedule to Morris
Bencini, since he was the preparer whose name appears
at the bottom.

Q Okay. You think Mr. Bencini is a better
witness about bonuses than you?

A Well, Mr. Bencini is the one who actually
performed the calculations that you see. And I don't
have the plan document in front of me which would
indicate how these formulas were derived, so I would
be afraid I would make an error if I were trying to
do this off the top of my head.

Q OCkay. Let me try a few general questions
with you, if you can answer them. There is a base
VGU bonus and a VGU add-on bonus, both listed there;
is that right?

A Yes,

Q And those together make up the total VGU

bonus; is that right?
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A That’s what this shows.

Q What is the difference qualitatively
between the base VGU bonus and the VGU add-on bonus?

A .That’s what I’m saying. Without having the
documents that describe the methodology, I cannot
recall that.

Q Can you not just describe it in a general
way what the difference is?

A I don't know. I don‘t have that
information and I didn’t prepare this schedule. T
would have to have that document or else defer to
Mr. Bencini.

Q Do you know why bonuses were paid to
executives_on account of the sale of the Venice
Gardens Utilitiesg?

A Yes. Most executive incentive compensation
plans are tiec directly to the financial goals and
attainment of the company. So gain on sell would be
cne of the normal financial measures that would be
included in determining the overall financial
performance of the company.

Q Were the executives the only persons to get
a bonus relating tc the Venice Garden sale or were
all employees granted a bonus based on that sale?

A We did not have a program that would allow
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employees to be included in gain on sale for bonus or
incentive purposes.
Q So these were the only persons that are

listed here, are the only persons that received

bonuses on account of the sale;; is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Could you turn to the last- -document, a

Southern States 1994 Incentive Compensation Plan.

A Ckay.

Q Could you turn to the last page of this
document ?

A The last page?

Q Yes.

A I see it.

Q Okay.. There is two components, a component

one and a component two to the Incentive Compensation
Plan; is that right?
A Yes.

MR. BECK: And Counsel, would you have any
objection to verbalizing one of the component one
goals?

MR. ARMSTRONG: No.

BY MR. BECK:
Q Ckay. One of the component one goals in

the Incentive Compensation Plan was to maintain a
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uniform rate structure for SSU; is that right?

A Yes,

Q Why is that a component of an incentive
compensation plan?

A Becauge I think that is a very important
issue relating to the company’s financial success in
our ability to efficiently provide customer service.

Q And to whom is this incentive compensation
plan applicable?

A As you can see, the ‘94 incentive
compensation plan would apply to those individuals
listed on the earlier exhibit, which you provided.

Q Et would be to them and them only?

A Yes.

MR. BECK: Thank you, Ms. Lock. That’'s all
I have. Madam Chairman, I'm not sure how you want us
-- do you want us to gather up these exhibits or
keep them?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: That’s what usually
happens except the other -- the one confidential
exhibit the clerk has remains with the clerk and she
knows to keep them confidential.

MR. ARMSTRONG: I can keep one, too,
right?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, yes. You may,
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except you need to let Mr. Beck know that so we has
the right count on those exhibits.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Mr. Beck, I will keep it,
please. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. I assume
because Mr. Twomey ig not in here he has no guestions
for this witness.

MR. BECK: I do not know the answer to
that.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Staff, go ahead.

MS. O'SULLIVAN: The Staff has no
questions.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, Commissioners, do
you have guestions? Redirect.

MR. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

Q Ms. Lock, regarding one of the confidential
exhibits, there was reference to the column that
referred to a custom informal analysis, Florida
utilities, for the VP position; do you recall that?

A Yes, I do.

0 Is Southern States the largest water
utility in the State of Florida?

A Yes, we are. In fact, SSU is the largest
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investor-owned.

Q Would you have any idea about what the next
largest facility is, how much bigger Southern States
ig than the next largest facility?

A I éouldn’t give you a specific number, but
I know that the other utilities are so much smaller
that they do not even employ, for example, rate
position in-house, and that we have a great deal of
difficulty gathering data from them for that reason.
The number of employees is much smaller, and the
types of employees they have on staff is much smaller
and different.,

0 If you know, would the vast majority of the
Florida utilities even have a VP of Finance?

A I would sincerely doubt it.

Q Would those facts that we just discussed
have any influence on the weight being given to that
kind of information?

A Yeg, they would; because if they were not
able to find other investor-owned utilities of the
gsame sizes as 85U, or who employ the same types of
positions, then there would not be comparable salary
data for that position available.

Q Now, it is it your testimony the data

provided here is data that has been -- is MP data,
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Minnesota Power data?

A I do not know where this data came from.

Q Okay. And by that statement it is not your
data?

A That’'s correct.

Q You didn‘t do the informal survey?

A No, we did not. Imn fact, I was shocked to

see this data.

Q During your deposition do you recall
questiong regarding executive pay surveys conducted
by Hewitt?

MR. BECK: Objection. Asking about "during
your deposition do you recall" is not going over the
questions I asked. It is beyond the scope of the
cross examination,

MR. ARMSTRONG: There was some guestion
back and forth regarding whether or not information
was requested., I know that was the subject of
deposition.

CHATRMAN CLARK: I will allow the
question. I think he is pursuing the concern about
information being provided on executive sales.

WITNESS LOCK: I do recall some questions
regarding executive pay. And I believe at that time

I had also indicated to Ms. O’'Sullivan that the
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executive pay was handled by Minnesota Power and not
by Southern States, and we did not have a lot of
information other than some general information that
came through the comp committee of the Board of
Directors.

BY MR. ARMSTRONG:

Q If you would lock at that deposition
transcript, you wouldn’t see anybody from the office
of Public Counsel listed, would you? Page two of the
deposition.

A No, there isn‘t. It was only the Public
Service Commission Staff.

Q You attempted several times, and I‘'m going
to give you the opportunity now, to describe in some
summary fashion if you could.the customized survey
performed in this instance, and how it relates to
your experience regarding customized surveys of this
type.

A Yes. Hewitt Associates, first of all, is
prcbably one of the largest professional human
resources consulting firms in the world. They used
the same methodology in terms of collecting data from
the company, job descriptionsg, of all the positions
that we have. From a complete list of all the job

descriptions we have in the company, they were able
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to narrow it down to 50 jobs which represented a
benchmark sample of all of our jobs.

They then went about the process of
gathering other competitive data. They looked at 18
different sources of data, not only the Florida
League of Cities, but a number of different sources
from the Bureau of Labor Statistics to other
professional surveys and were able to look at a
number of different sources of information and come
up with average rates of pay for each of the 50
positions that we employ.

They then looked at the actual average pay
that we pay for each of our empléyees in those job
classifications, an Operator I, Operator II, Operator
III, Maintenance Tech, and see how far our actual
rateg of pay differed from the average. The average,
of course, is not the top paying level. It is not
the lowest paying level.

Obvionusly, most companies wouldn’'t want to
be the lowest payers in the State of Florida. So
what we endeavored to do is at least reach the
average level. 1In a lot of those survey sources that
were shown, there are companies that pay a lot more,
but then there are companies that might pay 40 or 50

percent within a range.
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So by averaging the lowest payers with the
highest payers you do come up with an average that
should be reflective of the overall market level for
that position. And what we found was that for all of
those 50 positions that our actual pay averaged about
17 percent below the average amount.

And we did look at, as I say, 50 different
actual positions that we employ, and had numerous
sﬁrveys that were differentially weighted based on
whether they were representative of our types of
positions.

(This concludes Veolume 19.)

(Transcript continues in sequence in Volume

20.)
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GODWINS BOOKE & DICKENSON

13535 Feather Sound Drive, Suite 600

Clearwater, FL 34622-5545

(813) 573-2884 Fax (813) 573-1073
(813) 571-1440

December 21, 1994

Ms. Dale G. Lock

Human Resources Administrator
Southern States Utilities

1000 Color Place

Apopka, FL. 32703

Dear Dale:
We respectfully present in this report the results of our actuarial valuation of the Company’s
postretirement medical, dental, and death benefit programs. This report’s principal purpose is to
provide information regarding:

the financial statement implications of applying FASB Statement No. 106 in 1994,

the deductible limit for funding your 501(c)(9) trust,

the projected FAS Expense for 1995, and

a comparison of actual and expected plan experience.
It is important to note that the Company’s true liability for postretirement medical, dental, and death
benefits depends greatly upon future experience and is very difficult to predict accurately. For
example, the Company’s liability for postretirement medical care bepefits depends greatly upon factors
such as future medical inflation, actual incidence of claims and the retirement and termination patterns

of participants. Due to the uncertainty of these events, Part II of this report analyzes the sensitivity of
the results to variations in future plan experience.

For your convenience, we have summarized the highlights and essential results of the valuation in the
Summary of Results found in Part I. The Table of Contents following this letter outlines the text and
tables included in this report.

Respectfully submitted,

Godwins Booke & Dickenson

Brian S. Broverman, F.S.A.
Principal

cc: Dwight S. Bell
Godwins Booke & Dickenson

Gaﬁ':m AnAON Company
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Part I. Summary of Results

A. Financial Information

01/01/94 01/01/93
1. FAS 106 Expense
a, Medical and Dental $ 814,480 § 941,710
b. Death Benefits 33,852 31423
c. Total $ 848,032 $ 973,133
2. Succeeding Year Cash Flow Projection
a. Medical and Dental $ 77,086 § 70,000
b. Death Benefits 3,537 2,500
¢. Total $ 80623 $ 72,500
3. Accumulated Postretirement
Benefit Obligation
a. Medical and Dental $ 3863738 § 4,058,182
< b.  Death Benefits 219,784 148,688
"l.,_} c. Total $ 4083532 $ 4,208,870
4. Expected Postretirement
Benefit Obligation
a. Medical and Dental $ 6,559,374 $ 7,087,009
b. Death Benefits 292754 209,133
c. Total : 6,852,128 $ 7.296,142
5. Plan Assets
a. Total $ 500040 § 0
6. Balance Sheet Asset (Liability)
Medical + Dental + Death
a.  Beginning of Year $ (400,633) $ 0
b. Net Employer Contributions in Year N/A 572,500
c. (Financial Statement
Expense for Year) (848,032) (973,133)
d.  End of Year
({a] + [b] + [c]) NA  § (400,633)
7. Assumed Discount Rate 7.0% 7.0%

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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B. Valuation Data

01/01/94 01/01/93
1. Number of Participants - Medical and Dental
a. Active 451 421
b. Retired 16 14
c. Total 467 435
2. Number of Participants - Death Benefits
a. Active 451 421
b. Retired __18 14
c. Total ’ 467 435
C. Projected FAS 106 Valuation Results
01/01/95
1. FAS 106 Expense $ 898,156
2. Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
Obligation $4,692,140
3. Expected Postretirement Benefit Obligation $7,248,332

Gopwins BOOKE & DICKENSON
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D. Deductible Limit for Funding 501(c){9) Trust

Year Beginning
01/01/94

1. Current Service Cost $ .230,65'8
2. Interest Cost $ 138,605
3. Expectt;d Return on Assets (25,002)
4. Amortization 152,781

$ 497,042

GopwiNs Bookke & DICKENSON
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A.

Part Il. Actuarial Commentary

Sensitivity Analysis

The Company’s true liability for postretirement benefits depends greatly upon future economic and
demographic factors which are difficult to predict accurately. The estimates in this report are based on
the actuarial assurmptions that are outlined in Part V. These assumptions are hereafter referred fo as
the current assumptions. Different assumptions could yield significantly different results. The following
table Hlustrates the sensitivity of the results to changes in the key assumptions. ’

Current Assumptions $660,338 $3,863,738 $6,559,374

$801,794
+21%

$4,542,9686
+18%

$8,042,732
+23%

1% Increase in Medical and
Dental Trend Assumptions

As shown above, the postretirement medical and dental results are very sensitive to changes in
assumptions. We believe that there are many different sets of reasonable assumptions. However, we
also believe that a reasonable range of resulis exists. For example, we think a reasonable estimate of
the 1994 FAS 106 expense for postretirement medical and dental benefits may be from $500,000 to
$900,000. ’

Beginning Medical and Dental Claim Level

The beginning medical and dental claim level is a major determinant of the FAS 106 annual expense
for post retirement medical and dental benefits.

The beginning claim level that is used for this report is based on a combination of actual claim data for
the period 1/1/93 - 9/30/94 for active employees and retirees and manual rates which represent the
expected claims based benefits, demographics, and geographic cost factors. Overall, medical claims
were 7% less than the manual rates so we used manual rates less 7% for retirees under 65 and over
65. The beginning dental claim level is based on the overall actual dental claims experience for actives
and retirees combined.

GODWINS BOOKE & DICKENSON
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Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

. Medical Trend Rate

The medical trend rate is an important assumption in projecting medical claim levels. Varying this
assumption produces dramatically different results for liabilities and expense amounts as shown in [A]
above. The calculations in this report are based on an assumed annual medical trend rate of 10%
beginning in 1994 grading down to an ultimate rate of 5% in 1998. This implicitly assumes that
medical costs will increase as a percent of GDP from 14.6% in 1983 to 17.2% in the year 1999 and
that they will remain constant thereafter.

. Gain and Loss Recognition ]

FAS 106 specifies a corridor approach as the minimum for recognizing gains and losses. Under this
approach, cumulative gains and losses are not recognized until they exceed 10% of the APBQ (or
market-related value of plan assets if greater). Once the cumulative gain or loss exceeds this
threshold, the excess is amortized over the average fulure service to expected retirement of active plan
participants.

Any systematic approach to recognizing gains and losses can be used instead of the minimum method
if the alternative method satisfies the following conditions:

1. The minimum amortization is recognized in any period in which it is greater than the amount that
would be recognized under the alternative method,

2. the method is applied consistently from year to year and on a similar basis for gains and losses,
and

3. the method is disclosed.

. Changes in Assumptions

The medical and dental trend rates were reduced by 1% for 1994 from the amounts used in the
previous valuation. Ultimate trend rates remain unchanged.

Gopwins BoOkE & DICKENSON
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Part lll. Actuarial Certification

We have made an actuarial valuation of the Company's postretirement medical and dental benefit programs
as of January 1, 1994. The employee data and the financial and claims information that were used in this
valuation were submitted to us by the plan sponsor, or at the plan sponsor’s direction. The demographic
data was collected as of the valuation date. We did not audit any of the submitted data. On the basis of
our review of the data, however, we believe that the information is sufficiently complete and reliable for the
purposes of this valuation. ’

In our opinion, the assumptions and methodology underlying this valuation are consistent with the criteria
outlined under FAS No. 106 and conform to the Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 6, Measuring and
Allocating Actuarial Present Values of Retiree Health Care and Death Benefits and Actuarial Compliance
Guideline No. 3, published by the Actuarial Standards Board.

We have no relationship with the client which may impair or appear to impair the objectivity of our work.
Godwins Booke & Dickenson

B B

Brian S. Broverman, F.S.A.
Enroliment Number 93-2784
3 One Corporate Drive, Suite 600

Clearwater, Florida 34622-5596
(813) 573-2884

‘GOoDWINS BoOkE & DICKENSON
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Part IV. Review of Reqgulatory Issues and Other Responsibilities

A. Regulatory Issues

1.

Document and SPD

The document and SPD should accurately reflect the retiree benefit plan and should
unambiguously reserve the employer’s right to modify or terminate the plan.

A recent ruling in the 3rd Circuit (PA, NJ, DE) prohibited an employer from modifying its
postretirement benefits, even though the employer had clearly reserved the right to do so. The
ruling was based on the fact that the plan document did not have the appropriate language
regarding amendment procedures and did not identify the person who had the authority to amend
the plan. The court did not allow the employer fo terminate plan benefits until it adopted a proper
amendment procedure.

FAS 112

FAS 112, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after 12/15/93, requires employers to show a
liability for benefits provided to nonactive employees who are not retired. This includes employees
who are terminated, laid off, disabled, on leave of absence, as well as surviving spouses and
dependents. )

Employers who provide benefits to long term disabled employees may have a choice to classify
these benefits as postretirement benefits subject to FAS 108, or postemployment benefits subject
to FAS 112 FAS 106 allows amortization of the transition obligation and includes a provision for .
delayed recognition of gains and losses.

Medicare Primary for Disabled, Non-working Employees

Effective August 10, 1883, Medicare is the primary payor on benefits for most disabled, non-
working, employees who are covered under Medicare because of disabifity. Under a recently
issued procedure, employers can have Medicare adjust payments so the employer plan pays
secondary, effective August 10, 1993.

Other Health Care Issues not Directly Related to Postretirement Benefits

Coverage under Qualified Medical Child Support Orders

Mandated coverage of pre-adoptive children

Pediatric vaccines vested as of May 1, 1993

Medicaid’s ability to use COBRA or forced enroliment to cost shift to employers
Self-funded must pay New York hospital surcharge or face stiff penalties

Family and Medical Leave Act

No required COBRA coverage for employees on Medicare because of kidney disease

Gopwins BoOOKE & DICKENSON
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Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

B. Other Responsibilities

1. Disclosure information required by FAS 106 must be included in year-end financial statements.

2. FAS expense must be calculated on an estimated and ultimately a final basis for accruing cost
throughout the year.

3. Retiree contribution rates should be updated to meet the intent of the postretirement plan.

4. Plan Administrator must provide the following:

a. For completion of the actuarial valuation report

A
ii.

iii.
iv.

Active and retiree census data

Experience data on active and retiree plans
Expense data

Descriptions of pian changes

b.  For completion of fiscal year end disclosure information

iii.

Descriptions of plan changes or significant events during the fiscal year
Retiree contributions paid to employer for medical and death benefit coverages
Employer cash payments for retiree medical and death benefits for the fiscal year

- If self-insured or participating insurance contract, cash payments should equal
retiree claims plus applicable administrative expenses, stop loss insurance

premiums, and other expenses related to the plan.

- {f insured on a pooled basis, cash payments should equal age-adjusted premiums.

Trust deposits and asset value at year-end.

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

Part V. Valuation Methods and Assumptions

. Valuation Methods

The Projected Unit Credit method is used to calculate all of the expense amounts that are included in
this report. The calculations are performed in accordance with the methodology set forth in FASB
Statement No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.
Generally, the method is intended to match revenues with expenses and attributes an equal amount of
an employee’s projected benefit to each year from date of pian entry to the date that he is first ehglble
to retire with full benefits.

All of the calculations in this report assume that the plan will continue without change except that
retiree cost-sharing provisions, including contributions, will increase over time at the same rate as the
total plan cost. This assumption does not necessarily imply that there is an obligation to do so.

. Valuation of Assets

A 501(c){(a) trust has been established effective December 30, 1993. Assets held in the trust fund are
valued on a market value basis.

. Employees Included in_the Calculations

All active employees who have met the plan’s participation requnrements as of the valuation date are
included in the calculations. Former employees or their survivors who are entitled to a benefit under
the provisions of the plan are also included.

. Actuarial Assumptions

1. Discount Rate 7.0%
2. Medical Trend Rate Year Medical Dental
{for gross eligible charges)
1894 10% 7%
1895 9% 6.5%
1986 8% 6%
1997 7% 5.5%
1898 6% 5%
1899+ 5% 5%
3. Increase in Retiree Contribution Amounts Year Medical Dental
for Postretirement Health Care Benefits
1994 10% 7%
1985 9% 6.5%
1996 8% 6%
1997 7% 5.5%
1988 6% 5%
1999+ 5% 5%

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON




eARISIT ( DGE;O

PAGE__|4 oF _ Y

Southern States Utilities- o
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

4, Beginning Medical and Dental Claim Level Retiree or Annual Cost
Per Person (used for the twelve Spouse Age Medical  Dental
month period beginning on the
valuation date) 57 $3,305 $106

62 4,034 106

67 988 106

72 1,154 106

77 1,338 106

82 1,422 106

87 1,455 106

5. Mortality 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table

for males, set back six years for
females

6. Disability None

7. Sample Termination Rates Annual

Age Rate
25 11.63%
30 10.89%
35 10.14%
3 40 9.40%
‘ . 45 6.87%
50 4.33%
- 55 - 1.80%
8. Retirement Rates Annual
Age Rate
55-59 2%
60-61 10%
62 30%
63-64 20%
65 100%
8. Percentage of Future Retirees Who Elect 80%

Postretirement Health Care Coverage

10.  Percentage of Future Retirees with
Postretirernent Heakh Care Coverage
Who Elect Family Coverage

a. Male Retirees 85%
b. Female Retirees 85%
11.  Expenses ' 5% Included in beginning claim level

12.  Assumed rate of annual compensation
increase Not applicable

Gopwins Boore & DICKENSON
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Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

13. Expected net after tax retum on assets 5%

E. Other Considerations
1. There are no significant liabilities for this plan other than for benefits.

2. Alihough we believe these to be accurate and complete as of the valuation date, employee data
supplied to us by the Employer has not been audited by us.

3. All employees who are assumed to be married and for whom we have no spouse information are
assumed to have a spouse with the husband three years older than the wife.

Gonwins Booke & DICKENSON
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Part VI. FASB Statement 106 Information’

The substantive plan which is the basis for this accounting is the plan described in Part ViI together with
the following assumptions about future modifications.

1. Retiree cost-sharing provisions (deductible, coinsurance, efc.) will increase over time at the same
rate as the total cost of the plan.

2. Retiree contributions will increase at the same rate as the total cost of the plan.
A. Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost

Fiscal Year Beginning

01/01/94 01/01/93
1. Service cost H $ 406,205 $ 4708486
2. Interest cost 283,026 291,943
8. (Expected retum on assets) ($25,002) (0)?
4. Amortization of unrecognized amounts: |
a.  Transition obligation (asset) 210,344 210,344
b.  Prior service cost 0 . 0
¢.  Net (gain) or loss (26.541) 0
5. Total $ 848,032 $ 973,133

Unless specifically noted otherwise, alf of the information in this Part is for the combined postretiremnent medical, dental and
death benefit programs.,

The expected retum on assets of $0 consists of an actual retum on assets of $40 and an asset (gain) or loss of $40.

Gopwins BOOKE & IDICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

B. Reconciliation of Funded Status

01/01/94 01/01/83
1. Fair value of assets - $ 500,040 $ 0
2. Accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation
a. Retirees and beneficiaries
eligible for benefits $ 536,229
b.  Active employees fully
eligible for benefits $ 1,613,307 0
c. Terminated employees fully
eligible for benefits 0 : 0
d. Active employees, not fully
eligible for benefits 1,933,996 0
e. Total $ 4083532 $ 4,206,870
3.  Funded Status ([1] - [2]) $ (3,583,492) $ 4,206,870
4.  Unrecognized transition
obligation {asset) 3,996,526 4,206,870
5. Unrecognized prior setvice cost 0 0
6.  Unrecognized net {gain) or loss {813.667) 0
7.  Balance sheet asset {liability)
(3] + [4] + [5] + [B]) $ (400,633) $ 0

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

C. Other Accounting Information

01/01/94 01/01/93

1.  Market related value of assets $ 0. $ 0
2. Unrecognized net {gain) or loss

to amortize® $ 1,704,560 $ 0
3. Average future service (in years)

a. To expected retirement 15.27 15

b. To full eligibility 8.63 10
4.  Medical Trend Rate

a. First year rale 10% 12%

b. Uitimate rate 5% 5%

c. Select period § years 7 years
5. Dental Trend Rate

a. First year rate 7% 8.5%

e b. Ullimate rgte 5% 5%
) c. Select Period 4 years 7 years

6. General Inflation 4% 4%
7.  Weighted average assumed discount rate 7.0% 7.0%
8.  Assumed rate of annual compensation

increases N/A N/A
8.  Weighted average expected long-term

rate of retum on plan assets (after-tax) N/A N/A
10. Estimated income tax rate

included in rate of return N/A N/A
11.  Effect of a 1% increase in assumed trend

rate on postretirement medical and dental care:

a. Service and interest cost +21% +21%

b. APBO +18% N/A

Minimum amertization of the unrecognized net (gain) or loss, calculated in accordance with paragraph 59 of FAS 108, is equal
to (i) the excess, if any, of the absolute value of the amount in fine (C)(2) over 10% of the greater of the amounts in lines
(B}2)(f) and (C)(1), divided by (i) the number of years in line (C)(3)(a).

Gopwins BoOkE & DICKENSON
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Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

12.

13.

14.

Amount of benefits of employees and
retirees covered by insurance contracts issued
by the Employer and related parties

Amortization methods and periods used to
amortize:

a Transition obligation

b.  Prior service cost

c. Net (gain) or loss

Employer commitments to make future
plan amendments (that serve as the
basis for the Employer's accounting
for the plan)

None

Straight Line
20 years from
1/1/93

N/A
Minimum Method

described
in FAS 106

None

None

Straight Line
20 years from
1/1/83

N/A
Minimum Method

described
in FAS 106

None

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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Part VIl. Summary of Current Plan Provisions

A. Postretirement Medical and Dental Benefits
1. Eligibility

Employees who retire at age 55 or later with 5 or more years of service are eligible to receive
postretirement medical benefits.

2.  Benefits Covered
Eligible retirees are covered by a comprehensive medical plan with a $200 deductible and a cap
on out-of-pocket cost when claims paid reach $5,000. Benefits are generaﬂy pald at 90% for

network providers and 70% for non-network providers.

Dental benefits have a $100 deductible, waived for preventive treatment. Coinsurance is 100%
for preventive, 80% for basic, and 50% for major services. Maximum annual benefit is $1,500.

3.  Coordination with Medicare
The benefits under this plan are coordinated with Medicare for retirees and spouses age 65 or
older on a "Carve-out" basis. That is, employer payments will equal the payment amount
i) calculated in the absence of Medicare minus the amount paid by Medicare.

4. Surviving Spouses

Survivin-g_spouse may continue in the plan for 90 days by paying the full cost, then they are
offered COBRA contribution coverage.

5. Retiree Contributions
Annual Contribution for 1995

Retiree Only Retiree and Spouse
Medical $ 263 $ 974
Dental $ 27 $ 54

GopwiNs Booke & DICKENSON
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B. Postretirement Death Benefits
1. Eligibility
Same as medical and dental.
2. Benefits Provided
Eligible retirees are provided withAa death benefit of $10,000.
3. Retiree Contributions

Annual retiree contribution is $10.

-GODWINS BOOKE & DICKENSON
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Part Vill. Demographic Information

A. Number of Participants and Dependents

01/01/94 01/01/93
1. Number of Active Employees Submitted ’ ’ 435 - <421
2. Number of Costed Participants and
Dependents
a. Active employees
(1) Fully eligible 44
* (2) Not fully eligible 391
(8 Total active employees 435 421
b.  Retirees and beneficiares
eligible for benefits ) 16 14
¢. Total costed participants
451 435

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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B. Age/Service Distribution - Actives

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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C. Summary Statistics

1.  Asof January 1, 1894

7

69.0%

31.0%

100.0%

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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D. Age Distribution - Retirees
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Part IX. Appendices

A. Gain/Loss Calculation

1. Expected APBO as of 12/31/93

a. APBO as of 01/01/93 " $ 4,206,870
b. Service cost for 01/01/83 to 12/31/93 470,{346
¢. Interest cost for 01/01/93 to 12/31/93 291,943
d. (Actual Net cash outflow for retirees in 1993) (72,500)
e. Effect of plan changes as of 12/31/93 0
f.  Expected APBO as of 12/31/83 ([a] + [b] + [c] + [d] + [e]) $ 4,897,159
2. Actual APBO as of 12/31/93 , $  4,083532
3. Net liability (gain) or loss for 1993 ([2] - [1f]) $ (813,627)
j 4. Net (gain) or loss for 1993 on the market related value of assets $ 7(40)
. 5. Unrecognized (gain} or loss as of 01/01/93 $ 0
6. Arnortizati:)r: of {gain) or foss in 1993 $ 0
7. Unrecognized (gain) or loss as of 12/31/93 ([3] + [4] + [5] - t33)] $ {813,667)
8. 10% of APBO (or market related value of assets, if greater)
as of 12/31/93 $ 408,353
8. (Gain)/loss in excess of comidor $ 405,274
10.Average remaining service period 15.27
11.Minimum required amortization ([9] + [10]) $ (26,541)

GODWINS BOOKE & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

B. Cash Flow Projections

1994 74,257 2,830 3,637 80,624
1995 102,079 3,842 4,409 110,330
1986 139,889 4,785 5,248 149,922
1997 153,407 5,969 6,273 165,649 1
1998 . 179,063 7,400 7.484 183,947
1999 211,696 8,812 8,737 229,245
2000 225870 9,976 9,854 245,500
2001 248,381 11,508 11,200 271,089
’ 2002 257,414 13,260 12,632 283,306
3 2003 299,222 14,777 13,961 327,960

GobpwiINS Booke & DICKENSON
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- Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

C. Funding Calculation
1. Assumption differences from FAS 106
a. No future medical or dental trend
b. Discount rate based is after-tax and assumed to be 5%.

¢.  APBO determined as of January 1, 1993 is amortized over 15 years, the future workmg lifetime
of active employees,

\
e’

Gopwins BOoRE & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

D. Detail Results by Benefit

1994 Medical Dental Life Total
EPBO $6,183,244 $376,130 ‘ $292,754 $6,852,128
APBO $3,638,014 $225,724 $219,794 $4,083,532
Service Cost $370,428 $22,146 $13,631 $406,205
Interest Cost $252,062 $15,702 $15,262 $283,026 i
Expected Return on ($22,274) ($1,382) ($1,346) ($25,002)
Assets

Amortization of ($23,645) ($1,467) ($1,429) {($26,541)
Gain/Loss

Amortization of $195,144 $7,766 $7.434 $210,344
Transition Obligation

FAS 106 Expense $771,715 $42,765 $33,552 $848,032
1993 Medical Dental Life Total
EPBO $6,820,449 $266,560 $209,133 $7.296,142
APBO -7 $3,902,865 $155.317 $148,688 : $4,206,870
Service Cost $440,172 $17,004 $13,670 $470,846
Interest Cost $270,846 $10,778 $10,319 $291,943
Expected Return on $0 $0 $0 $0 ;
Assets

Amortization of $0 $0 $0 $0
Gair/Loss

Amortization of $195,144 $7.766 $7.434 $210,344
Transition Obligation

FAS 106 Expense $306,162 $35,548 $31,423 $973,133

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

E. Glossary of Postretirement Welfare Benefit Terms

This Glossary contains definitions and examples of a number of terms frequently used when discussing
postretirement welfare benefits. [t is intended to assist people currently unfamiliar with FAS 106 accounting
rules and does not represent a complete or exhaustive description of the topic. .

Expected Postretirement Benefit Obligation (EPBO)

The actuarial present value as of the valuation date of the net postretirement benefits expected to be paid
to all current plan participants, including both active and retired employees. It equals the present value of
future benefits minus the present value of future retiree contributions.

Actuarial Present Value

The value of a series of expected future payments, progected based on a number of actuarial assumpttons
and discounted back to the valuation date.

Example: A $100 payment which has a 25% chance of occurring one year from now would have an
actuarial present value of ($100)(.25} + 1.08 = $23.15, assuming an 8% discount rate.

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation

The portion of the EPBO that is attributable to employee service prior to the valuation date. For active
employees who have reached full eligibility and retirees, the APBO equals the EPBO.

Attribution

The process of assigning postretirement benefits to years to service. For most plans, FASB requires
postretirement benefits to be atiributed to years of service from date of hire to full eligibility date on a pro
rata basis.

Example: The attribution period for an employee age 40 who was hired at age 35 and will reach full
eligibility at age 55 is 20 years (55-35). If the Total Plan Liabifity equals $20,000 for this employee, then
the Accrued Liability is 5/20 x $20,000 = $5,000.

Current Service Cost

The portion of the EPBO attributable to the current year of service. Current Service Cost is one component
of FASB Expense. Employees who have reached full eligibility and retirees have no current service cost.

Example: For the employee mentioned above, the Current Service Cost is (1/20) x ($20,000) = $1,000.

GopwinNs Booke & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

Full Eligibility

The point in time when an employee has met all of the age and service requirements to qualify for full
benefits from the plan.

“ Example: Plan A requires 10 years of service and attainment of age 55 to qualify for postretirement

benefits. Full eligibility would be as follows:

Full Eligibility
1. Employee Age 40 with 10 years of service Age 55 .
2. Employee Age 52 with 5 years of service Age 57

Example: Plan B is the same as Plan A but requires contributions from anyone retiring with less than 30
years of service. Full eligibility would be:

Full Eligibility
1. Employee Age 40 with 10 years of service Age 60
2. Employee Age 52 with 5 years of service Age 65

(expected retirement age)
Funded Status
The excess of the Plan Assets over the APBO.

Plan Assets

Assets that have been segregated and restricted (usually in a trust) to provide for postretirement benefits.
Actual Return on Plan Assets

A component of FASB Expense for funded plans equal to the increase in value of Plan Assets over the
accounting period, adjusted for contributions and payments.

Interest Cost
A component of FASB Expense which equals the discount rate times the APBO adjusted for cash flow.
Transition Asset (Obligation)

The funded status of the plan as of the date the FAS 106 accounting rules are adopted.

GoDWINS BooOkE & IDICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

Amortization of Transition Asset (Obligation)

A level amortization of the Transition Asset (Obligation) over the average future working lifetime of
current employees. [f the average working lifetime is less than 20 years, then a 20-year amortization may
be used. Amortization of Transition Asset (Obligation) is a component of FASB Expense.

Example: An employer adopts the new FASB accounting rules 01/01/93 and has a Transition Obligation of
$44 million at that date. Average future working lifetime of current employees is 22 years. The Transition
Obligation is $44 million and the amortization is $2 million per year from 1983 through 2014.

Amortization of Gains and Losses

Gains and losses arise when actual experience differs from the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the
EPBC. Net gains or losses are generally only recognized if they exceed 10% of the APBO (or the market -
related value of plan assets, if greater). Once they do, they are amortized over the average future working
lifetime of current employees.

FAS 106 Expense

The expense accrual for postretirement benefits required by FASB, generally effective in 1993. The
components of the FAS 106 Expense generally include:

Current Service Cost

interest Cost

Amortization of Transition Obligation
Actual Return on Plan Assets
Amorttization of Gains or Losses

FAS 106 refers to this amount as the Net Perodic Postretirement Benefit Cost.

Gopwins BOoke & DICKENSON
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- Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

F. Retiree Health/Life Accounting Example—Amortization of Transitional Liability
(FAS 106)

Assumptions:
Actuarial Expense - Service Cost $ 3,000,000
- Interest 5,000,000
i 8,000,000
- Amortization of Transitional Liability 2,000,000
$10,000,000

S —c——

Transitional Liability = $40,000,000
Employer adopts FAS 106 for first time this year.
" Employer cash payments for retiree healttvlife = $1,500,000
Retiree contributions (paid to employer) for retiree health/life = $500,000

Accounting Entries:

Step 1 - Enter actuarial expense of $10,000,000

Step 2 - Enter employer cash payments for retiree health/life benefit of $1,500,000 (entered throughout
year when paid) ,
A. |f self-insured or participating insurance contract, cash payments should equal retiree

claims plus applicable administrative expenses and stop loss insurance payments.

B. If insured on a pooled basis, cash payments should equal age-adjusted premiums.

Step 3 - Enter retiree contributions of $500,000 as contributions are received

Retiree Expense Retiree Liability Cash
) 1) $10,000,000
$10,000,000
2 2)
$1,500,000 51,500,000
3) $500,000 (3) $500,000

End of Year Balances:
Expense = $10,000,000 {(actual expense)
Liability = $9,000,000 (actual expense less net cash payments-does not balance to actuarial liability)

GopwinNs BOoke & DICKENSON
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Southern States Utilities
Postretirement Medical, Dental, and Death Benefit Programs

G. Retiree Health/Life Accounting Example—Immediate Expensing of Transitional
Liability (FAS 106)

Assumptions:

Actuarial Expense - Service Cost $3,000,000
- Interest 5,000,000
$830001000

Transitional Liability = $40,000,000

Employer adopts FAS 106 for first time this year.

Employer cash payments for retiree health/life = $1,000,000

Retiree contributions (paid to employer) for retiree health/life = $500,000

Accounting Entries: .
Step 1 - Enter transitional liability/expense of $40,000,000.
Step 2 - Enter normal actuarial expense of $8,000,000 (no expense for amorttizing transitional
obligation).
Step 3 - Enter employer cash payments for retiree heaith/life benefit of $1,500,000.
Step 4 - Enter retiree contributions of $500,000 as contributions are received.

o Transitional Cash
: j Retiree Expense Nommal Retiree Expense Retiree Liability
(1) $40,000,000 1} $40,000,000
’ 2) 2) $8,000,000
$8,000,000
(8) $1,500,000 3) $1,500,000
4} $500,000 {4) $500,000

End of Year Balances:

Transitional Retiree Expense = $40,000,000 {(shown after Net Income on Income Statement)
Normal Retiree Expense = $8,000,000
Liability = $47,000,000 {may cause problems with bank loan covenants).

LAY

Gopwins Booke & DICKENSON
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MEDICAL PLAN COST CONTAINMENT MEASURES

Highlights of Medical Plan cost savings measures in the plan years 1992, 1993, 1994 and 1995
are outlined below:

January 1, 1992 Plan Year

A number of plan design and coverage changes were implemented in 1992 to offset the trend of
escalating medical inflation. Some of the most significant changes are listed as follows:

1. Employee Deductibles were increased from $100/$300 to $200/$600 with no 4th quarter
carry-over allowed.

2. Co-insurance, was not allowed to be carried over from the 4th quarter to the next calendar
year.

3. Dental Deductibles were increased from $50/$100 to $100/$300.

4. The waiting period for new employee participation in the medical insurance plan was
increased from 30 days to 90. Also, a six month waiting period was introduced for
receiving basic and major dental treatment pre-existing conditions clause changed from
3 months to 6 months.

January 1, 1993 Plan Year

SSU’s medical plan claims experience and total costs as of year end 1992 had decreased by
10.5% from 1991 total year costs. As aresult, in 1993 the employee premiums were unchanged
from 1992 levels.

Further cost containment measures were undertaken in the plan design and medical coverages in
1993 as follows:

L. The amount of benefits immediately payable for pre-existing conditions was decreased
from $1,500 in the first year of coverage to $0.

2. Benefits payable for mental/nervous disorders and substance abuse were decreased from
$10,000 per calendar year/$25,000 lifetime to $2,500 calendar year/$5,000 lifetime. Plan
participants were required to be referred for in- or out-patient treatment by an Employee
Assistance Program gatekeeper in order to receive any paid medical benefits.
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3. Supplemental accidental death benefit of $750 was eliminated.

4. Pre-certification penalty for failure to obtain advance authorization prior to hospitalization
and/or surgery was increased from $250 to $750.

January 1, 1994 Plan Year

For the year 1993, medical costs had increased by only 2.2% over 1992 levels. In 1994, SSU
did not effect changes in plan design and coverages, but instead took steps to improve life
insurance benefits which at .3% of payroll were substantially below the .5% of payroll level
provided on average by employers reported in the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Employee
Benefits Survey of 1992 data. Life insurance was increased from a flat $20,000 of term life for
all employees regardless of level, to one time annual salary up to $100,000. Additionally,
survivor income benefits were introduced.

January 1, 1995 Plan Year

Effective January 1, 1995, SSU converted to a more economical self funded plan with stop-loss
insurance and plan claims administrative services provided by Great West Health and Life
Insurance Company. Were SSU not a large company, it would not have had the economic means
to self fund. Medical consultants indicate that for employers with 500 or more employees, self
funding is known to provide considerable savings over insured plans. Prior to this change, the
SSU Medical Plan was an insured, minimum premium agreement plan, insured and administered
by Great West. The Self Funded Plan contains a number of cost saving features. It is now
governed under the federal ERISA guidelines rather than by the State Division of Insurance.
Under this plan, SSU is no longer subject to paying state sales tax on the administrative services
and stop loss insurance portion of the premium. This will result in ongoing savings of $28,000
or more per year in sales tax. SSU also is no longer subject to the State of Florida insured plan
coverage mandates. This allows the plan to drop expensive coverages such as child health care
supervision and substitute custom preventive and wellness coverages, thus offering the flexibility
to offer coverages tailored to the needs of its workforce.

An Exclusive Provider Option (EPO) which is similar to an HMO, is expected to resultin a 12%
reduction in overall claims cost. The second 1995 Medical Plan option, which was offered
beginning in 1992, is the Preferred Provider Option (PPO). The PPO uses the network of Private
Health Care Systems (PHCS). PHCS’s PPO network of hospitals, physicians, surgical and testing
facilities offer discounts of up to 30% below non-network providers.
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In 1995, a calendar year deductible of $150 (single)/$450(family) was applied to all medical
plans. Prior to 1995, only those who used the services of non-network physicians had to pay a
deductible. Preventive care was added with a $300 calendar year maximum per individual. A
Preferred Pharmacy Program is also in place which provides substantial discounts at a network
of pharmacies. A summary of the 1995 Plan provisions follows this page.
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GREAT-WEST CARE MULTI-OPTION MEDICAL PLAN SUMMARY
; EPO ‘ SOUTHERN STATES UTILITIES PPO

APPROVED NON-APPROVED
BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFITS
$150 $150 §150
$450 $450 $450
None $250 None $250
$7,500/$15,000 $20,000/$75,000 $7,500/$15,000

Unlimited

Unlimited Unlimited

90% After Deductible 60% After Deductible 85% After Deductible 70% After
Deductible
90% After Deductible 60% After Deductible 85% After Deductible 70% After
Deductible
90% After Deductible 60% After Deductible 50% After Deductible 50% After
Maximum 20 Visits/Year $1,000 Calendar Year Maximum Deductible
Maximum 20 Visits/Year $1,000 Calendar
Year Maximum

11gIHx3
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GREAT-WEST CARE MULTI(-OPTIOI:IDMEDICAL PLAN SUMMARY
continue
SOUTHERN STATES UT]LITIES

APPROVED NON-APPROVED NETWORK BENEFITS NON-NETWORK
BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFITS
Preferred Pharmacy Non-Preferred Pharmacy .
100% After $10 Gencnc and | 50% After $10 Generic and 80% After Deductible 80% After Deductible
$ISN rand Co-P. $15 Name Brand Co—Pa

SRl

H% 70%
H% 85% 70%
H% 85% 0%
9% After Deductible 80% 80%

W% 0% 80% After Deductible .60% Alfter Deductible
If approved by employee If approved by employee If approved by employee If approved by
assistance go&m assistance r%ﬂm assistance mo&am employee assistance
$2,500/35, $2 5001?5, $2 500/{’5, Ogmm
. $2,500/$5,000
0% 60% 85% 70%
H% 60% 85% 70%
HN% 60% 85% 70%

BOTH PLANS INCLUDE LIFE, AD&D INSURANCE, DENTAL & MAIL-ORDER DRUG BENEFITS

20 § 39vd
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An international fiem of consultants and sctuaries specializing in the design, financing, communication, and administration of emplover benefit and compensation programs

Adelaide ¢ Amsterdam + Atlanta * Auckland » Bangkok = Bedminster » Boston « Brisbane » Brussels * Buenos Arres » Charlotte » Chicago » Christchurch « Cleveland =
Datlas » Davton » Denver * Detroit « Dublin * Eindhoven » Geneva » Houston » Lincolnshice » Los Angeles « Madrid = Melbourne » Mexico City « Milan » Milwaukee »
. Minneapolis ¢ Montréal » Neuchdtel « New York « Newport Beach « Paris « Perth o Philadeiphia » Phoenix * Pitsburgh » Richmond « Rotterdam » Ruwayton «
f St. Atbans * St. Luuis * San Antonio » San Franciscu * San Juan * Seattle » Singapore « Sydacy = Tampa © Tukvo « Toronto » Utrecht » Watnut Creek = Washington, DC. »
Wellington = Wiesbaden = The Woodlands « Zdirich



http:interndtlOn.l1
http:AssociJ.ti

|.4.; %

1
—

L.._._.-

EXHBIT _____ (DGL3)

PAGE__ 2 OF %\

Ahout This Material

Hewitt Associates LLC was asked by Southern States Utilities (SSU) to compare
SSU’s current compensation levels and salary structure to targeted pay levels
in the market place. This analysis is designed to measure the market
competitiveness of both the salary structure and SSU’s actual pay levels and to
provide information for adjusting the structure if appropriate. The process
involved collecting competitive market compensation information from
published surveys for 46 positions; conducting a custom survey for 4 positions;
and using variance, regression, and graphic analyses, to compare SSU’s current
compensation information to market compensation information.

Of the positions where we used published survey to collect competitive market
compensation information, we found solid data for 42 positions. These
positions are classified as “benchmark” jobs. For the other four positions, we
found some matches that provide useful reference information; however, the
job matches for these positions are not as strong as for the others. We have
classified these four positions as “reference points.”

This report is divided into three sections:

* Summary of Results

* Market Pricing

* Custom Survey

| 6952CCPDO02/06-B 04795 Hewitt Associates
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Summary of Results

Market Pricing Summary

A description of the methodology for developing the Estimated Market Values
(EMV’s) for SSU’s jobs and detailed worksheets for each job are contained in
the section headed Market Pricing. This section provides a summary of the
findings.

General Observations

Using available published surveys and a custom survey, market data for

50 jobs was complied and compared to SSU’s base salaries and salary range
midpoints. This analysis shows that most of the SSU jobs (39 of 50) are paid
base salaries below the “market.” SSU’s base pay levels on average are 8.8%
below the market for this group. However, the range of SSU pay levels in
comparison to the market is quite wide—from 40.1% below market to 31.4%
above market.

A similar situation was found when comparing midpoints to market. For
midpoints, SSU is 13.3% below the market on average, with a range from
36.9% below to 22.7% above market.

This information is summarized in Exhibit #1 on page 3. When developing the
EMV’s, in most cases, several surveys were referenced for each job. Exhibit #2
on page 4 also shows the lowest and highest market values reported for each
job.

As a general rule, when actual midpoints and/or pay levels are within a range
of 5% of the market, pay can be considered to be fully competitive. Over one-
half of SSU’s actual pay levels and midpoints fall outside the +10% range. The
conclusion that can be drawn from this is that while SSU pay rates and
midpoints, on average, are relatively low when compared to the market, some
rates are significantly high or low. Since the salary structure has not been
adjusted in some time, this finding is not surprising. Likewise, since the
structure likely has an influence on actual pay levels, it also is not surprising
to see the pay levels fall behind market levels.

Another factor that influences these findings is the way SSU has valued jobs in
the past. The current findings compare SSU pay practices directly with the
market. The existing system places considerable emphasis on internal
relationships rather than external comparisons. The difference in these two
approaches undoubtedly account for some of the wide variations between
SSU'’s practices and the EMV’s. -

6952CCFD.002/068 04/95 - 1 Hewitt Associates
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Some Specific Observations

» The Corporate Receptionist’s base salary and midpoint are significantly
above the market.

* The Customer Service Representative I's base salary is significantly below
the market and the midpoint is relatively low.

» The Welder's base salary is significantly above the market.

* The Design Drafter I's base salary is significantly below the market and the
midpoint is relatively low.

* The PC Support Specialist’s base salary is relatively low versus the market,
and the midpoint is significantly low.

» The Supervisor of Billing’s base salary and midpoint are significantly
below the market.

* The Programmer Analyst I's base salary and midpoint are significantly
below the market.

* The Communication Manager’s midpoint is significantly below the market.

* Al of the Rate positions’ base salaries and midpoints are significantly _ -
below market.

6952CCPD.002/06-8 04/95 2 - Hewitt Associates
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Actual Pay and Midpoints Compared to Market
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- Exhibit #1

SsU 58U EMV 85U Actual vs. SSU Mid vs.
SSU Position Base Midpoint  Base Market +/~ Market +/-
Office Clerk 16.1 14.9 16.1 0.0% - 7.5%
Corporate Receptionist 213 211 17.2 +23.8% +22.7%
Data Entry Operator | 16.0 16.0 175 - 8.6% — 8.6%
Maintenance Tech I 17.5 183 182 - 3.8% + 0.5%
Meter Reader | 16.1 17.1 189 ~14.8% - 9.5%
Secretary | 19.4 19.6 19.3 ~- 0.5% +1.6%
Accounting Clerk | 18.3 183 19.5 - 62% - 6.2%
Customer Service Rep 1 16.6 18.3 2.7 -23.5% ~15.7% - -
Assistant Buyer 20.6 19.6 234 ~12.0% - ~16.2% -
Computer Operator | 212 211 23.7 ~10.5% - -11.0%
Secretary 1 214 211 240 -10.8% . ~121% "~
Operator 1 21.9 228 244 ~10.2% - 66%
Sr Maintenance Tech* 21.5 211 254 ~154% ~16.9%
Senior Computer Operator 24.0 26.6 26.0 = 77% . . +23% °
Customer Service Rep Il 217 21.1 264 -17.8%. . =20.1%.
Welder" 35.6 287 271 +314%. . - +59%%
Design Drafter I 19.6 24.7 27.3 “282% . 295%.
Supervisor, Admin Services  26.1 24.7 277 = 58% " “108%. =
Operator II 24.8 247 279 ~111%: ~115% . .
Executive Secretary 24.1 238 281 -142% -18.9%: - -
HR Assistant 247 26.6 28.4 -
Accountant | 275 28.7 302
Electrician 27.9 26.6 307
Chief Drafter 36.3 311 317
PC Support Spec 27.0 22.8 320
Operator I 270 266 - 330
Accountant I 333 36.2 — 339 S
Sprvsr, Customer Service 34.1 28.7 344 -16.6%..
Supervisor of Billing* 28.3 26.6 349 -23.8% *.
HR Analyst—Benefits — 36.2 35.0 +73.4%
Project Engineer I 35.1 362 362 00% .
HR Analyst—Generalist 29.8 31.1 3717 -162% -
Programmer Analyst | 30.2 31.1 38.5 ~19:2%"
Purchasing Administrator 36.2 391 415 -58%
Tmg and Dvlpmnt Admin 43.1 423 43.6 -30% .. -
Rate Analyst I 26.3 28.7 43.9 —34.6%
Sr Programmer Analyst 49.1 42.3 48.1 “121% -
Sr Systems Analyst Engin® 51.0 49.3 50.1 - 1.6% ..
Manager, Admin Services 45.2 423 51.7 £ ~182% -
Mgr, Gen Acet/ Asst Ctrir 60.2 53.3 52.0 +15.8% +2.5%
Rate Analyst 11 353 36.3 522 -32.4% -30.5% -
HR Administrator 51.0 426 523 - 25% -18.5%
Sr Project Engineer 53.8 493 52.4 - 2.7% - 59% .
Mgr, Fin Plng/Asst Treas 49.2 493 57.0 -13.7% - -13.5%
Manager, HR 59.9 493 59.7 + 0.3% —17.4% -
Communications Manager 65.0 49.3 625 + 4.0% - -21:1%.
Manager, Info Services 65.1 533 628 + 3.7%: ~15.1%

- Sr. Rate Engineer 55.7 49.3 62.9 ~11.4% - ~21,6%. .
Staff Attorney 60.7 57.0 67.9 -10.6% ..~ -16.1%" .
Director Rates 60.0 57.0 90.4 ~336%. .. -369%
Average - 88% .. ~18.3%-. -

* Represents a “reference point” position—data presented for reference only. This is not a

benchmark position.

6952CCPD.O0 /068 04/95
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- Exhibit #2
7 Actual Pay and Midpoints Compared to High & Low Market Values
! SsU  SSU EMV  Lowest Highest
S$SU Position Base Midpoint Base Mkt Value Mkt Value
o Office Clerk 16.1 149 161 141 172
i Corporate Receptionist 213 211 172 169 183
Data Entry Operator | 160 160 175 172 176
. Maintenance Tech [ 17.5 183 18.2 170 ~ 20.7
j Meter Reader | 16.1 171 189 184 211
Secretary 194 196 193 1638 206
Accounting Clerk 1 183 183 195 175 210
? Customer Service Rep 1 16.6 18.3 217 205 - . 237"
:} Assistant Buyer 206 19.6 234 255 240 .
Computer Operator I 212 21.1 237 209 - 258
- Secretary Il 214 211 240 192 254
: Operator 219 228 24.4 248
- S Maintenance Tech* 215 211 254 e
Senior Computer Operator 24.0 26.6 260
Customer Service Rep III 217 211 264
Welder* 356 287 271
Design Drafter 1 19.6 247 27.3
Supervisor, Admin Services  26.1 247 277
1 Operator 11 248 247 279
Executive Secretary 241 228 281
HR Assistant 247 26.6 28.4
.'i ) Accountant I - 275 287 302
: Electrician 27.9 266 30.7
Chief Drafter : 363 311 317
- PC Support Spec 27.0 228 320
] ) Operator Il 270 26.6 330
Accountant II 333 36.2 339 -
Sprvsr, Customer Service 341 287 344
] Supervisor of Billing* 283 266 349
HR Analyst-—Benefits — 36.2 35.0
- Project Engineer I 351 362 36.2
‘ HR Analyst—Generalist 298 311 37.1
3 Programmer Analyst I 30.2 311 385
Purchasing Administrator 362 39.1 415
-y Tmg and Dvipmnt Admin 431 423 436
S Rate Analyst I 26.3 287 439 -
— Sr Programmer Analyst 49.1 423 48.1 51.8
Sr Systems Analyst Engin® 510 49.3 50.1 —
: Manager, Admin Services 452 42.3 51.7 546 -
J Mgr, Gen Acct/Asst Cirlr 602 53.3 520 o 5eY e
Rate Analyst I 353 36.3 522 L e o
- - HR Administrator 510 426 523 476 660
} Sr Project Engineer 538 493 524 476 . . 548
<3 Mgr, Fin Ping/Asst Treas 492 493 570 562. 577
Manager, HR 599 493 597  560. 0 . 650
7l Communications Manager 65.0 493 625 536 . - 758. .
: Manager, Info Services 65.1 53.3 62.8 549 - 694
Sr Rate Engineer 557 493 629 — —
Staff Attorney 60.7 570 67.9 633 - 735,
Director Rates 600 57.0 504 —_

* Represents a “reference point” position—data presented for reference only. This is not a
benchmark position.

Vil e
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Details concerning the custom survey of rate positions are contained in a
subsequent section headed Custom Survey, but the results are summarized
below. The results of the custom survey indicates that SSU base salaries and
midpoints are significantly below the market.

Overview of Survey Results

88U r
Actual va, SSU

# # Avg  Avg SSU  ssU  EMV Market - Mid vs.
Position Title Co’s Incumb  Sal Mid Base Mid Base* . 4/~ -  Market+/-
Rate Analyst | 4 6 $42.9 $433 $26.3 $28.7 $435 ~40.1% L -34.6% -
Rate Analyst [{ 4 7 $59.4  $55.1 $353 8§363 $52.2 ',,—32,434’:5 R -305% -
Sr. Rate Engineer 4 7 $60.1  $57.2 $55.7 3493 §629 . 711;4‘?/;;- - -21.6% °

Director—Rates 4 4 $86.4 827 $60.0 $57.0 $90.4 - -336%  -369%
Average B -294% B -30;9%;‘:‘5‘,'

¥

Rate Analyst I contains a private source of data in addition to the custom survey data.

The survey data has been aged forward to 7/95 to be consistent with the market pricing data. The EMV for

Bonus Results

In most cases, bonuses were paid to at least one of the rate positions. Where
bonus data was reported, the average annual bonus ranges from

$2,100-$15,000.

Considerations

The market indicates that SSU’s base pay and midpoints for rate positions are
significantly below the market; however, several factors need to be considered
before making adjustments. Similar positions typically will be found only in
other utilities, and the target market for these positions has been identified by
SSU as electric utilities. While this may be the marketplace where these jobs

exist, electric utilities traditionally have been relatively “high” payors..

Although this strategy is changing, pay levels in electric utilities may be higher

than needed to attract and retain qualified employees.

Therefore, SSU may want to consider a different pay philosophy for setting -
compensation levels for rate positions. For example, the pay philosophy for the
rate positions might be to pay below (e.g., 15% to 20%) the electric utility

market average. The objective is to find a level that will give SSU management

a level of comfort that they can attract and retain qualified employees in the

rate jobs while not paying more than necessary. This same judgement could be
applied to other jobs where the primary “market” has been defined as utilities,

especially electric utilities.

6952CCPD002/06-B 04795
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Summary of Data Analysis

Using the information developed from the market pricing process, we
conducted three other analyses. Exhibit #3, on page 8, shows a graphic analysis
using trend lines to compare SSU’s actual pay and midpoints to the market
data. This analysis illustrates the relationship between three lines: SSU average
salaries, S5U midpoints, and market average base salaries.

The graph shows that average salary is low throughout all grades, with the
gap between SSU average pay and the market becoming wider as the grade
level increases. The midpoint line shows that the lower grade midpoints are
consistent with market, but as the grade levels increase, the relationship
between midpoint and market becomes progressively wider.

The graph also shows that S5U’s midpoint values fall below average salary
levels in Grade 9 and above. This could be an indication that while SSU’s
salary structure is low, efforts have been made to keep actual pay levels at a
more competitive position.

We also conducted a statistical analysis of the data. Overall, the R? (an
indication of the-relationship between two variables, with 1.0 being “perfect”) -
indicates that SSU’s current midpoints, while somewhat low, move in a
consistent relationship to the market. Likewise, actual salaries follow the same
trend-—both in relation to the market and to SSU’s midpoints. The chart below
presents the results of the statistical analysis.

R? Summary

Variables R?

SSU Midpoints vs Grades 96% -
SSU Average Salary vs Grades 93%
Market vs Grades 91%

Exhibit #4, on pages 9 and 10, shows the market ratio (average salaries divided
by EMV’s) and compa ratio (midpoints divided by EMV’s) by salary grade.
The chart shows the midpoints for grades 10, 12, 13, and 22 to be 15% or more
below market. The midpoints in other grades were relatively close to market.
The chart also shows the actual pay for jobs in Grades 6, 16, and 22 to be 15%
or more below market.

6952CCPDO02/06-B 04/95 6 Hewitt Associates
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Indicated Actions

The findings from this study point out several possible actions SSU may want
to consider. The findings show that SSU midpoints are approximately 13.3%
below competitive pay levels, on average. However, midpoint values for jobs
in lower grades are closer to market averages than those in higher grades.

This indicates that simply raising the structure by a constant percentage will
not bring pay targets (midpoints) to the desired level (market average). Rather,
to have midpoint values reflect market averages, lower graded jobs should be
moved less than higher graded jobs.

However, the situation is complicated further by the distribution of midpoint
values around the market values. While average midpoint values are about
13.3% below the market, there are a number of jobs that are graded
considerably higher or lower than the market. The current grade assignments
represent a combination of influences that include the use of an internally
oriented point factor job evaluation system, some historical considerations, and
the time that has passed since the structure was adjusted to the market.

Costing - .

For your convenience, we have provided Exhibit #5, which shows the average
percentage cost to bring benchmarks and reference points to market. The
overall percentage cost to bring the surveyed positions to market is 17.3%;
however, this is an average and should be used with caution. Factors such as
number of incumbents in each position and where pay is positioned in the
salary range for the incumbents need to be considered when determining
actual costs. Additionally, the rate positions, as mentioned earlier, may not
require adjustment to the EMV we calculated, and they are significantly
influencing the overall percentage. If the rate positions are removed from the
calculation, SSU would need to adjust the salaries of the remaining jobs by
12.9% to bring them to “market averages.”

Next Steps

Based on our discussions with selected members of SSU’s management team,
we understand that SSU’s objective is to maintain a structure that correlates
with external market averages. Using this structure, jobs can be slotted into
appropriate grades by comparing the EMV’s to the midpoint values in the
structure. Since the midpoint is designed to reflect SSU’s desired competitive
position, each job is placed into the salary grade with the midpoint closest to
the EMV.

The section beginning on page 12 provides a proposed salary structure and
shows how the benchmark jobs could be assigned to salary grades. Exhibit #7
then compares these new midpoints to market values.

6952CCPD.002/06B 04795 ) 7 Hewitt Associates
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Cost to Bring Actual Pay to Market

ExriT ____ (DGLC2)

PAGE_ 1S oF _ 3|

% Cost to Bring

SSU Position SSU Base EMY Base to Market
Office Clerk 16.1 16.1 —
Corporate Receptionist 21.3 17.2 e

Data Entry Operator | 160 17.5 5.4%
Maintenance Tech | 17.5 182 4.0%
Meter Reader | 161 189 17 4%
Secretary | 194 19.3 —
Accounting Clerk I 18.3 19.5 6.6%
Customer Service Rep 1 16.6 21.7 307%
Assistant Buyer 206 234 13.6%
Computer Operator 1 21.2 237 11.8%
Secretary 11 214 240 12.1%
Operator 1 219 244 114% -
Sr Maintenance Tech* 215 254 18.1% .
Senior Computer Operator 240 260 B3% .
Customer Service Rep Il 217 26.4 21.7%.
Welder* 356 271 —_
Design Drafter I 196 273 39.3% . .
Supervisor, Admin Services 26.1 277 61%
Operator I 248 279 12:5%
Executive Secretary 241 28.1 16.6%:
HR Assistant 247 284 15.0% - .
Accountant 1 275 30.2 98%..
Electrician 279 30.7 1

Chief Drafter 36.3 317

PC Support Spec 270 320

Operator III 270 330

Accountant I 333 339

Sprvsr, Customer Service 34.1 344

Supervisor of Billing* 283 349

HR Analyst—DBenefits — 35.0

Project Engineer | 351 36.2

HR Analyst—Generalist 298 371

Programmer Analyst | 302 385

Purchasing Administrator 36.2 415

Trmng and Dvlpmnt Admin 43.1 436

Rate Analyst | 263 439

Sr Programmer Analyst 49.1 48.1 —_

Sr Systems Analyst Engin* 51.0 50.1 —
Manager, Admin Services 452 517 14.4%
Mgr, Gen Acet/ Asst Ctrlr 60.2 52.0 —-
Rate Analyst II 353 522 47.5%
HR Administrator 51.0 523 '2.5%

Sr Project Engineer 538 524 ——

Mgr, Fin Plng/Asst Treas 49.2 57.0 15.9%:
Manager, HR 59.9 597 -
Communications Manager 65.0 62.5 —_
Manager, Info Services 65.1 62.8 —
Sr Rate Engineer 55.7 62.9 12.9%
Staff Attorney 60.7 679 11.9%
Director Rates 60.0 90.4 50.7%
Average 17.3%

not a benchmark position.

* Represents a “reference point” position—data presented for reference only. This is

6952CCPD.002/06-B 04795
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Proposed 1995 Salary Structure and Grade Assignments

Salary Structure
Based on the results of the market pricing analysis, a new salary structure was
created for SSU using the established EMV's as the basis for determining the
new midpoints. A constant 10% midpoint to midpoint differential was used,
which determined the number of grades in the new structure. Finally, a range

spread of 50% was applied to all grades. The revised structure contains

16 grades as shown below:

New Salary Structure

EXHIBIT ey ~3_:)

PAGE__ 17 oF %\

Salary Range

Midpoint Range

Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum Differential Spread
16 $54,300 $67,900 $81,500 10.05% 50%
15 $49,400 $61,700 $74,100 9.98% 50%
14 $44,900 $56,100 $67,300 10.00% 50%
13 $40,800 $51,000 $61,200 9.91% 50%
12 $37,100 $46,400 $55,700 9.95% 50% .. -
11 $33,700 $42,200 $50,600 10.18% 50%
10 $30,700 $38,300 $46,000 10.06% 50%

9 $27,900 $34,800 $41,800 9.78% 50%

8 $25,300 $31,700 $38,000 10.07% 50%

7 $23,000 $28,800 $34,600 9.92% 50%

6 $20,900 $26,200 $31,400 10.08% 50%

S $19,000 $23,800 $28,600 10.19% 50%

4 $17,300 $21,600 $26,000 9.64% 50%

3 $15,700 $19,700 $23,600 10.06% 50%

2 $14,300 $17,900 $21,500 9.82% 50%

1 $13,000 $16,300 $19,500 50%

Grade Assignments

Each benchmark and reference point job was assigned to a grade by comparing
the EMV to the closest midpoint value. Exhibit #6 shows the grade and range
assignments for the benchmark and reference point jobs.

Exhibit #7 compares SSU’s actual pay and revised midpoints to the market.
While the percentages for actual pay to market is the same as the previous
analysis in Exhibit #1, the revised midpoint versus marketpercentage has

changed. The revised midpoints are less than one-half a percent below the

market, on average, and the largest deviation from the market is 4.6%,

indicating the revised midpoints are consistent with the market. By utilizing

the revised structure, SSU could have a true market driven structure.

6952CCPD.OMR /068 04/95
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Grade

Minimum

Midpoint |Maximum

Paosition Title (EMV})

16

54,300

67,9500

81,500

Staff Attorney ($67.9)
Director Rates**

, 4
b

15

49,400

61,700

74,100

Sr Rate Engineer ($62.9)
Manager, Info Services ($62.8)
Communications Manager ($62.5)
Manager, HR ($59.7)

14

44,900

56,100

67,300

Mgr, Fin Planning/ Asst. Treasurer ($57.0)

40,800

51,000

61,200

Sr Project Engineer ($52.4}

HR Administrator ($52.3)

Rate Analyst I ($52.2)

Mgr, General Accting/Asst. Controller ($52.0}
Manager, Admin Services ($51.7)

Sr Systems Analyst Engin (*R-$50.1)

12

37,100

46,400

55,700

Sr Programmer Analyst ($48.1)

11

33,7900

42,200

50,600

Rate Analyst I (*R-$43.9)
Training & Development Admin ($43.6)
Purchasing Administrator ($41.5)

10

30700

38,300

46,000

Programmer Analyst I ($38.5)
HR Analyst—Generalist ($37.1)

]
]

27,900

34,800

41,800

Project Engineer [ ($36.2)
HR Analyst—Benefits ($35.0)

Supervisor, Customer Service ($34.4)
Accountant II ($33.9)

Supervisor of Billing (*R-$34.9) -

25,300

31,700

38.000

Operator III ($33.0)

PC Support Specialist ($32.0}
Chief Drafter (331.7)
Electrician ($30.7)

23,000

28,800

34,600

Accountant [ ($30.2)

HR Assistant ($28.4)

Executive Secretary ($28:1)
Operator II ($27.9)

Supervisor, Admin Services {$27.7)

Cpiid
o~

| N

20,900

26,200

31,400

Design Drafter I ($27.3)

Welder (*R-$27.1)

Customer Service Rep [l (*R-$26.4)
Sr Computer Operator ($26.0)

Sr Maintenance Tech (*%-$25.4)

19,000

23,800

28,600

Operator [ ($24.4)

Secretary I ($24.0)
Computer Operator [ ($23.7)
Asst. Buyer ($23.4)

17,300

21,600

26,000

Cust Sve Rep ($21.7)

15,700

19,700

23,600

Accounting Clerk I ($19.5)
Secretary I ($19.3)
‘Meter Reader I ($18.9)

JDURVeY

14,300

17,900

21,500

Maintenance Tech I (318.2)
Data Entry Operator I ($17.5)
Corporate Receptionist ($17.2)

13,000

116,300

19,500

Office Clerk ($16.1)

* Represents a reference point.

T SE
13

ik

L
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Exhibit #7
Actual Pay and Revised Midpoints Compared to Market
SSU New SSU  EMYV  S5U Actual vs. New SSU Mid
5SU Position Base  Midpoint  Base  Market +/~ vs. Market +/-
Office Clerk 16.1 163 16.1 0.0% +12%
Corporate Receptionist 21.3 17.9 17.2 +23.8% +41%
Data Entry Operator | 16.0 179 17.5 ~ B.6% +2.3%
Maintenance Tech I 175 179 18.2 - 3.8% - 1.6%
Meter Reader I 16.1 19.7 189 ~14.8% + 4.2%
Secretary [ 194 19.7 19.3 ~- 0.5%" +21%
Accounting Clerk I 18.3 19.7 13.5 ~6.2%. +10%
Customer Service Rep | 16.6 216 217 -23.5% - 05%
Assistant Buyer 206 238 234 -120% . . +17%
Computer Operator I 212 238 237 “10.5% +04%
Secretary II 214 238 240 —108% 0T ~0.8% ¢
Operator | 219 23.8 244 ~10:2%: - s :
Sr Maintenance Tech* 215 262 254 s
Senior Computer Operator 240 26.2 260
Customer Service Rep Il 217 262 264
Welder* 356 262 271
Design Drafter I 19.6 262 27.3
Supervisor, Admin Services  26.1 28.8 277
Operator 11 248 288 279
Executive Secretary 241 288 281
HR Assistant 247 288 284
Accountant | - 275 28.8 30.2
Electrician 279 317 307
Chief Drafter 363 317 317
PC Support Spec 270 317 320
Operator III 270 317 330
Accountant [I 333 34.8 - 339
Sprvsr, Customer Service 341 348 344
Supervisor of Billing” 283 34.8 34.9
HR Analyst—Benefits B 348 350
Project Engineer I 35.1 348 362
HR Analyst—Generalist - 298 383 371
Programmer Analyst [ 30.2 383 385
Purchasing Administrator 362 422 415
Trng and Dvlpmnt Admin 431 422 436
Rate Analyst [ 263 422 43.9
Sr Programmer Analyst 491 46.4 48.1
Sr Systems Analyst Engin® 51.0 51.0 50.1
Manager, Admin Services 452 510 51.7
Mgr, Gen Acct/Asst Cirlr 60.2 51.0 52.0
Rate Analyst II 353 510 52.2
HR Administrator 510 510 523
Sr Project Engineer 53.8 51.0 524
Mgr, Fin Plng/Asst Treas 492 %61 57.0
Manager, HR 599 617 597
Communications Manager 65.0 61.7 62.5
Manager, Info Services 65.1 617 62.8
Sr Rate Engineer 55.7 617 62.9 :
Staff Attorney 607 679 67.9 ~10.6%.5
Director Rates 60.0 679 90.4 =33.6%
Average - 8.8%

* Represents a “reference point” position—data presented for reference only. This is not a

benchmark position.

** Director Rates slotted into Grade 16; EMV was not used.
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Market Pricing

S

A Methodology
This section describes the process used in collecting the market information. -

Survey Sources

Published salary surveys have been used to develop the market data package.
A list of the published surveys we have used is included in the “Survey
Sources” section of this material. We primarily used data from “general
industry” and where applicable the utility industry.

U
[

Job Matching

The market data package was developed by matching SSU’s jobs with those
included in the salary surveys. The matches were established on the basis of
job duties and responsibilities, not on the basis of job titles. Job matches were
reviewed and verified by SSU personnel. An adjustment was made to one SSU
job to reflect additional responsibilities in the survey job which were not
included in the SSU job.

Scope Measures

The scope measures represent the different categories in which the market
information is collected and reported in the published surveys. These factors
allow us to compare SSU to the survey participants and to ensure that the
organizational matches, as well as the position matches, are valid.

|

]

Based on SSU’s definitions of the market, where possible we used the -
appropriate geographic locations for each position. In some cases, information ’

on the specific market identified was not available and we used the closest

geographic region where data was available.

Updating Compensation Values

— Because the effective dates of market data vary according to the surveys, all
data have been updated to a common date, July 1, 1995. The annual
adjustment factor used was 4.0%. This percentage is based on Hewitt
Associates’ annual salary increase survey.

'} Estimated Market Value

The Estimated Market Value is the single number representing a close
approximation of the market value of a job. Since multiple survey sources and
scope measures have been used for each job, we collected a range of market
information by job. All of the market values collected were weighted based on
the degree of job match and numerically averaged to calculate the Estimated
Market Value for each job.

o

e
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Survey Sources
/ The following is a key to the survey source abbreviations, and a brief

| description of each published survey used in the analysis.

j ALT-LAW Altman Weil Pensa, Inc.: Law Department Salary Survey.
This is a study of the compensation of lawyers, paralegals,

- and administrators employed by business corporations and

} institutions in the United States. The survey includes data

on 11 positions from 252 companies and provides infor-
- mation by size of department, industry, and geographic
) j location. (Data effective October 1994.)

AMS AMS: Foundation Salary Report. This annual salary
survey reports data for 76 office, secretarial, professional,
data processing and management jobs for nearly 850
companies. Data is presented by National, Regional,
Metropolitan, Industry and Company size with both U.S.
and Canadian data represented. (Data effective March
1994.)

BLR-NE Nonexempt Compensation. These surveys present data
from over 2,700 employers-representing hourly and annual
pay rates in 42 exempt and 39 nonexempt positions across
the United States. The data is displayed in individual
editions by state. Each state edition contains national,
regional, state, and major city data. (Data effective
February 1994.) ) ;

] BLR-E and Business & Legal Reports, Inc.: Surveys of Exempt and

3 BLS (National) U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics:
Area Wage Survey. Conducted on an annual or semiannual

3 basis by the BLS, these surveys contain salary data for up

' to 130 clerical and technical positions in each standard

metropolitan statistical area. Effective dates and number of

jobs with data vary by city.

/

Dietrich—E Dietrich Associates, Inc.: Engineering Salaries Survey.
The semi-annual edition of this survey contains data from
207 firms reporting salaries on nine levels of engineering
jobs. The data is reported by industry as well as major
metropolitan area. Within each industry, data is reported
by staff size, geographic region, and maturity curve.

— - Engineering disciplines are also reported by maturity

curve. (Data effective March 1994.)

L
{
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Dietrich Associates, Inc.: Support Services Survey.

This publication provides salary information for 116
administrative jobs in 243 firms across the United States.
Data is reported by industry group based on employment
size, geographic region, and metropolitan area. (Data
effective May 1994.) :

Executive Compensation Service, Inc.: Middle Management
Report. This two volume survey presents compensation
data on 121 middle management positions from 1,849
organizations. Data is included for 21 selected industries;
within the industry breakouts, jobs are scoped primarily
by sales volume. Regional information is included in a
separate volume. (Data effective February 1994.)

Executive Compensation Service, Inc.: Office Personnel
Report. The annual edition of this report presents
compensation data on 72 nonexempt office personnel
positions. Information was provided by 2,590
organizations. The data is displayed nationally, regionally,”
by state, and metropolitan areas. (Data effective May 1994.)

Executive Compensation Service, Inc.: Professional and
Scientific Personnel Report. This survey contains
compensation data on 115 professional and scientific jobs;
that is, jobs which require special training and/or
experience. Information was provided by 1,901 companies
representing 165,785 incumbents. The data is displayed on
a national, regional, sub-regional, and city-wide basis.
Industry-specific data is included in a separate volume.
(Data effective March 1994.)

Executive Compensation Service, Inc.: Supervisory
Management Report. This report contains cash
compensation data on 94 supervisory level positions. Each
position reported has three levels of responsibility
including Lead, Shift Supervisor, and Assistant
Pepartment Head. Information was provided by 1,510
companies representing more than 46,972 supervisors. The
data is displayed on a national, regional, and metropolitan
basis, as well as by industry. (Data effective January 1994.)

17 Hewitt Associates
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ECS—TST Executive Compensation Service, Inc.: Technician and

i Skilled Trades Personnel Report. This study presents

A compensation data on 86 technical and skilled trades
positions. Information was pravided by 995 companies
representing 159,641 incumbents. The data is displayed on
a national, regional, sub-regional, and city-wide basis.
(Data effective June 1994.)

i Soenids

FLC—CSS Florida League of Cities—Cooperative Salary Survey. This
survey is printed in three sections based on population.
The survey provides data on 140 positions generally
representative of a city or county. (Data effective
October 1, 1993.)

LANG—Legal Abbott, Langer and Associates: Compensation of Legal &
Related Jobs. This three volume survey reports data on 13
jobs from 445 organizations in business, industry,
government, and nonprofit organizations. Data is reported
by geographic area, type of industry, size of organization,
and size of department. (Data effective May 1994.) -

TP—FBS Towers Perrin—The Florida Benchmark Survey. This report
provides base, bonus, and total compensation information
for 130 positions. The data is presented by revenues,
industry, and geographic location. The survey contains
data from 132 organizations covering 62,620 incumbents.
(Data effective January 1, 1994.)

- WMM—FAL William M. Mercer, Incorporated: Finance, Accounting &
Legal Compensation Survey Results. This report contains
cash compensation data for 95 jobs in the finance,
accounting, and legal professions. In addition,
compensation information is displayed for 12 executive
general management jobs. Compensation information was
submitted by 1,370 reporting locations representing 51,564
individual salary rates. Data is displayed for each job on a
nationwide basis, by type of industry, as well as for
individual cities where sufficient data is available. (Data

} effective March 1994.)

{
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EXHIBIT (D=2

PAGE__ 3 OF

%\

Society for Human Resource Management/William M.
Mercer, Incorporated: Human Resource Management
Compensation Survey Results. This study reports compen-
sation data for 58 jobs in the area of human resource
management. Information was submitted by 1,385
participants reporting more than 20,000 individual salary
rates. Data is displayed for each job on a nationwide basis,
by type of industry, as well as for individual cities.

(Data effective February 1994.)

William M. Mercer, Incorporated: Information Systems
Compensation Survey Results. This report contains
competitive salary information for 117 positions in the
information systems area. Compensation information was
submitted by 1,098 reporting locations representing 138,747
individual salary rates. Data is displayed for each position
on a nationwide basis, by type of industry, by type of
environmental complexity, as well as for individual cities.
(Data effective April 1994.)

William M. Mercer, Incorporated: Materials and Logistics
Management Compensation Survey Results. This report
contains compensation information for 61 positions in the
area of materials and logistics-management. Data was
submitted by 169 firms reporting 5,901 individual salary
rates. The salaries are displayed for each position on a
nationwide basis, by type of industry, as well as for
individual cities. (Data effective January 1994.)

19 Hewitt Associates
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Market Pricing Worksheets

EXHIBIT (DGL-3)
PAGE_Jl, OF __ %l

The market pricing worksheets used to generate the EMV for each position are
provided beginning on page 20. Explanations of the market pricing worksheets

columnar headings are listed below:

Survey Source:

Survey Position Title and Industry
Classification:

Survey Scope:

Number Reported:
Cos. (Companies):

Inc. (Incumbents):
Data Type:

Survey Effective Date:

Unadjusted Data “Base”:

Update Factor:

Compensation Data "Base”:

Weight:

6952CCPD.002/06-8 04795

The source of the salary information.

The position title and industry cut
from the published survey.

The parameter data that details the
relative size of the comparator
companies, or other section of the
data.

The number of companies that
responded to the survey position.

The number of position incumbents™
for which survey information was
reported.

The median, average, weighted = ~ -
average, regression, or third quartile
value, as noted.

The date as of which the
compensation data reported in the
survey is effective.

The raw base salary data reported for
the position.

The percentage factor used to adjust
the data from the effective date of the
survey to July 1, 1995.

The “aged” or adjus;ted base salary
data.

The weight assigned to each survey
to be used for calculating the
estimated market value for the
position.

20 Hewitt Associates



MARKIZT PRICING WORKSY I32T FSTIMATED MARKIT VALUN (3 0001)
{DATA TITECTIVE 7/94)
NASE $16.1
JORITILE  OFFICE CLERK
BENCHMARK x
COMPANY SsY _ RETERENCE POINT
SURVHY INPORMATION © | surv | UNADL COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY PFOSITION TIILE SURVEY #REPCRIED | DATA | IF | DATA UPDATE | © DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIIICATION sCorn | Cox. e | TYPB* |DATE ["BASG" | PACTOR |7mAss~ | wmcnr
BR CLERK FLORIDA 33 883 M 2/94 $113 1.05667 $14.1 i
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
ps GENERAL CLIRK I ORLANDO NI M 1194 $14.8 1.06000 $15.7 3 |
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS GENERAL CLERK - LIVEL | SOUTHEAST 8 BloA 494 $14.7 1.05000 $15.4 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
= E
m E
TP -FBS GENERAL CLERK (INTERMEDIATE) ORLANDO 15 mpr M 1194 $16.2 105000 $17.2 3 :l.
~GENERAL INDUSTRY W,
TP ~1TS GENERAL CLERK (INTERMEDIATE) ILORIDA 65| 2060 M 194 $16.0 1.06000 s110 i ..?l
.
~GENERAL INDUSTRY 2
4 T
<) r
a——— i
* M=MIDMAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=ROGRESSION; 3RD=TH IRD QUARTILE
21 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET TRICING WORKSUEET

(DATA BPPECTIVE 7/95)

BSTIMATIH) MARKET VALUEL (3 0004}

BASEE $172
JOBTILE  CORPCRATERECEPTIONIST
MENCHMARK ) X :
COMPANY SSU REITRENCE POINT
!
. SURVEY INFORMATION o SURV | UNADY. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILRt SURVEY #RIPORTED | DATA | mr | DATA UPDATE . DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRRY CLASSIFICATION scory Cor.  Ime. | TYeEe |DAm |mAss® | kacroe |mAssr |weiont
BLR RECEPTIONIST- SWITCHBOARD OPERATOR | FLORIDA ssi ] M 2094 5163 1.05667 t172 1
—~GENTRAL INDUSIRY
1r-rus RECEPTIONIST ORLANDG 14 166 M 1794 5163 1.05000 5113 2
~GENERAL INDUSIRY
'
TP-FBS RECEPTIONIST FLORIDA &l ] M 1794 $35.9 1.06000 $169 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
.
1
BLS SWITCHBOARD OPERATOR ~RECEPTIONIST | ORLANDO NN ns] M 1794 $15.9 1.06000 $169 2
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
ECS-OPR | RECEPTIONIST/TFLEPHONE OPERATCR FLORIDA 30 ny M 5194 $163 1.04667 $17.1 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
.
DIEIRICH ~§§ RECEPTIONIST/SWITCHEOARD SOUTHEAST 37 6l M 519 $17.5 1.04667 5183 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
1 e J
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVIRAGE; W=WEIGHTTD AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
22 Hewitt Associates
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MARRET PRICING WORKSIFGT ESTIMATUD MARREGT Y ALUE (5 0001)
(DATA BITECTIVE 7/94)
BASE $115
JORTTILE  DATAENTRY OPERATOR I
BENCHMARK x
COMPANY SSU RGPERENCE POINT
SURVITY INFORMATION - SURV | UNADL. COMPENSATION
SURVITY SURVEY POSIION TTHLI SURVITY '#REPORTED | DATA | BIT |DATA | uPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPD Cot. Ie. | TYFE* |DAM |"BAs | raciom |masyr |weonT
|
BLS KEY ENTRY OPFRATOR ~ L EVEL( ORLANDO NIA 342 M 1794 316.6 1.06000 $17.6 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS DATAENTRY OPERATOR SOUTHEAST 12 66| A 4194 $16.4 105000  $172 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
t
H
|
i
; e
+ MeMEDIAN; AmAVERAGE: WeWEKGHTED AVERAGH; R-REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
1
B5XCCPDL002/06-8 D4/95 23
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+ MARKIIT PRICING WORES IPIT ' TSTIMATUL MARKITE VALUT (3 0005}
(PATA BIAVECTIVIE 7795) .
. nasy 1z
KINTHLE  MAINTENANCITECHNICIAN |
MINCITMARK X .
' [N —
COMPANY SSU ' ] RIFTIRENCH FOINT
!
'
SURVITY INPORMATION || sutv fuNAtL | COMIIINSATION
SURVItY SURVEY POSIITON 17118 SURVIY FROPONTED | DATA | BT |DATAT | UrbAie | . DATA L coMMENIS
SUURLYY AND INDUSTRY CLASSITICATION scorn Cor.  Inev ¥ PAm® | rAcion | weshT
i , ‘
AR GENERAL MAINTENANCE WORKISU LOMDA sl s3] M 1794 $17.2 103667 $18.2 ?
~GENERAL INDUSTIY
1
nes GENFRAL MAINTINANCE WISKER EAUANI N A 691 M 1794 3180 1.06000 LI 14
~GENITAL INDUSTIRY ’
ECS-TSF | MAINIENANCI MECHANIC - VL | LOVIR S STATES 3 13 M 694 $19.4 1.04333 $20.7 1 .
~GENIRAL INDUSTRY ) . ¥3 Q
A
“ '
o
1
i
v i
* MeMEINAN; AmAVERAGE; We=WEKIH 1 TIHI AVIRAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE . . .
24 Hewilt Associates
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ESTIMATED MARKET VALUU (3 0001) I

MARKET PRICING WORRSHIET

Bk el e it

(DATA EIFECTIVE 7/95)
BASE s189
JORTINE | METER READER |
BENCIIMARK X
COMPANY 55U REFERENCE POINT
SURVITY INFORMATION _ SURV | UNADY. COMPMINSATION
SURVEY SURVEY FOSITION TII1LB SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | EPF | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIENTS
SOURCE ARD INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPRB Cor.  Ine. TYPE* | DATE [*BASE* | PACTOR |"BASE" | WEIGHT
) )
PLC-CSS | METER READER | ORLANDO AREA 10 36 A 10493 $112 1.07000 $18.4 3
~CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION
!
"
F.C-CSS | MEIERREADER FLORIDA 49 134 A 10/93 $172 1.07000 $18.4
—CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION
LC-CSS | METERREADER FLORIDA 36 278 A 10793 $19.7 1.07000 $21.1 1
~CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
50,000 + POTULATION
t
1
* M=MEDIAR; A=AVERAGE; W=WIHIGHTED AVERAGE; R=RIGRESSION; IRD="THMD QUARTILE
25 Hewilt Associates
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ESTIMATED MARKET VALUL (§ 0001)

(DATA ITVECTIVLE 7/95)

MARKET FRICING WORKSHECET

g3

3 40¢¢ 39vd
-

BASY $19.3
JOBTITLE  SECRETARY |
BENCIHMARK X
COMPANY SSU REFGRENCH POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION ) ' SURY | UNADI. COMIBNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILE SURVEY | #REFORTED | - DATA | EIT | DATA © | UrDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSTFICATION scor Cor.: Inc. | .‘ryrwr |bats [masm® | ractor |wAss' | wecnr
BLR SECREETARY B FLORIDA 80 1,755 M 2i94 3159 105667 $16.8
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
g
s SECRITTARY T ORLANDO NN 290 M 1794 $19.4 1.06000 3206 2
—GENERAL INDUSTRY:
i
[
i
* M=MEDIAN: A=AVERAGE; WeWRIGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
26 Hewitt Associates
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i e (weor Ry " N U 0/ R WRPR RORPR P O T - G
- MAREIT PRICING WORKSHFT ESTIMATED MARKRIT VALU!”;’(;&;’;;) N
{DATA ETPECTIVE 7/95)
BAST, $195
JOBTITTLE  ACCOUNTING CLERK!
MINQIMARK ~ _X
COMPANY  SSU RITTRENCY POINT
:
SURVHY INFORMATION - SURV | UNADL COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY * REPQ{TED DATA | BT | DATA UPDATE - DATA COMMUNTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPB Cot ~ame. | rees {pame TAS® | PACTOR |BAsE" | wEKGHT
PLC~CSS ACCOUNT CLERK FLORIDA 41 762 A 10793 $19.6 1.07000 $211.0 2
CHY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
50,000 + POPULATION
AMS ACCOUNTING CLERK-LEVELT SOUTHEAST [ 13 A 4794 $16.7 1.05000 $17.5 1
~GENIRAL INDUSTRY I
(L) ACCOUNTING CURKH ORLANDO N/A 1,167 M 1794 $18.0 1.06000 $19.1 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY

¢ M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEKGHTID AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=T1IIRD QUARTILE

695X PD.002/06-B 04795
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(RSSO SN SRS SV - Oovut JUSPRY VPO R+ -+ T - [P S TS [y v S S S R RO U Y S
MARKET PRICING WORKSHRET ESTIMATID MARKET VALUE (5 000s)
(DATA LFFUCTIVE 7795)
BASL 217
i
JOBTTILE  CUSTOMER SERVKCE REPRESENTATIVE
BENCIIMARK X
COMPANY SSU RIFERENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION ! SURV | uNADL - | COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTTLE SURVEY FREPORIED | DATA | I |DATA | urpAT2 " DATA COMMENTS
. SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPE Coi.  lue. | TYPE* [DATR |"BASE PaCTOR |BAsE: | waigHT
TP-FIS | CUSTOMER SRVKE REFRESENTATIVE FLORIDA st 3aes] M 1794 sea|  tesom| 220 2
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
TP-TBS | CUSTOMFR SERVICE REFRESENTATIVE ORLANDO sl 24 M 1794 s193]  resom|  $205 1
~GHNPRAL INDUSTRY
FLC-CSS | CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVEL FLORIDA n| s A 10493 s192]  wetem| 5203 2
~CITY/COUNTY GOVIRNMENT
10,000 59,000 POPULATION
i
FLC-CSS | CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE ORLANDO AREA 8 A 10/93 s205]  eremj st 1
~CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
16,000 50,000 POPULATION
FLC-CSS  |CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE FLORIDA ] | A 1013 s196]  ronm| S0 2
~CITY/COUNTY GOVER NMENT
50,000 + POPULATION _
[CS-P&S | CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE FLORIDA Bl us| M 3res s2s| nesam| s 2
1LEVEL}
~GENERAL INDUSIRY B L
I
T M=MEDIAN; A=AVIRAGE; W-WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R-UEGRESSION; RD=THIRD QUARTILE , T o T
69520CPD.002/06.B 04795 28
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L. emeslill [T ‘ PO S fodidd i feweed oded Mg heresad
MARKET PRICING WORKSHIPET ESTIMATED MARKIIT VALUIL($ 0008}
{DATA EMTECTIVE 1/95)
nASE $23.4
JOBTINLE  ASSISTANT BUYER
BEHNCOIMARK X
COMPANY SSU REFERINCE POINT
SURVEX INPORMATION - SURV | UNADY, COMPHNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY " # REPORTED DATA | BENMF | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSTIICATION sCoPB Cot.  Ine. | TYPB* |DAIR |"BAsr | PACTOR [WASE | wncHT
- PURCIIASING CLIRK ORLANDO 3 “ M 1194 5225 1.06000 $23.9 3
~GEMERAL INDUSTRY '
TP -1 PURGHASING CLERK FLORIDA 1 190 M 1794 112 1.06000 $22.3 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
ECS-OPR | PURCHASING CLERK-SENIOR FLORIDA 1 1] M 5194 5229 1.04667 $24.0 2
~OENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS PURCHASING CLERK-LEVEL 3 SOUTHEAST 1 19 A 4794 5216 1.05000 $12.7 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
: I
o M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W= WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=RBGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
! 29 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET PRICING WORKS T
(DATA EFTGCTIVE 7/95)

JOBITILE  COMPUTER OPERATOR |

COMPANY SSU

ESTIMATID MAREGT VALUI (3 0005)

BASE $23.7

BENCHMARK X

REFERENCH PFOINT

SURVEY INFORMATION SURV | UNADV. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITILE SURYEY #REPCRTED | DATA | BIF | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCRH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIMCATION sCor Cos, ) ine. TYPE® | DATR | 'BAS* PACTOR | "BASE" WHIGHT
BILR COMPUTER OPFRATOR FLORIDA 8 234 M 2194 5198 1.05667 $209 1
—GENERAL INDUSIRY i
H.C-CSS COMPUTIR OPFRATOR ORLANDO AREA 6 9 A 10793 $24.1 1.07000 $25.8 2
—CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 FOPULATION
FLC-CSS COMPUITR OPERATOR FLORIDA at 37 A 10/93 $22.8 1.07000 $24.4 1
~CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
18,000~ 50,000 POPULATION
1
ALC~CSS COMPUTER OFERATOR FLORIDA 12 123 A 10793 $22.2 1.07000 $23.8 1
~CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
50,000 + POPULATION -
,
ns COMPUTER OPERATOR - LEVEL It ORLANDO N/A 143 M 1794 213 1.66000 1226 2
—GENERAL INDUSIRY
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEKI'TID AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=TI IRI} QUARTILE
30 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET FRICING WORKSHEET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE ($ 0901)
(DATA FETECTIVE 7/95)
BASIL $240
JORTINIL  SECRETARY I
AENCIIMARK X
COMPANY SSU REI'ERENCE POINT
SURVEY INPORMATION - {surv | uNADl. COMPRNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILB | suURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | T | DATA UFDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSIRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPR Cor.-  lee. | TRPDY |DATe |Asy | pactom |BAse | weont
LR SECRETARY A TLORIDA 6] 1om M 294 5182 105667 5192 1
~GENFRAL INDUSTRY
1
1T -Fus SECRETARY (SENIOR) ORLANDO 15 991 M 1794 $13.1 1.06000 5245 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY *
T - Fus SECRETARY {SENIOR) FLORIDA Bl 2361 M 1794 $23.1 106000 $245 1
" |-GENERALINDUSTRY
8LS SECRETARY Il ORLANDO NiA 7l M 1% $23.1 1.06000 $24.5 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS SECRETARY SOUTHEAST 24 §75 A 4794 $242 1.05000 $25.4 1
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
'
i
© M=MEIDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R-REGRUSSION; JRD=TUIRD QUARTILE
3 Hewitt Associates
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MARRET PRICING WORXSHEIIT ESTIMATIID MARKIET WALULL {3 000s)
(DATA FINTCTIVEL 7/95)
BASE $24.4
prTmn OPERATOR ]
PEINCIIMARK x
COMPANY 5SU REFIRENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION - SURY | UNAEY. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLA SURVEY #REFORTED | DATA | BT |[DATA | urDAIE DATA COMMENTS
SOURER AND INDUSTRY CLASSTICATION scors Cos.  me. | TYPE® |DAIR | WASE* | PACTOR |WAs® | wrGHT
[R5 oRl o) PLANT OPERATORC FLORIDA 44 137 A 10793 $22.5 1.07000 $24.% 3
—CTIY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION
f1.0-CSS | PLANT OPERATOR C ORLANDO AREA 8 saf A 10793 s12.1] 107000 $238 1
~CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
. | 10.000-50.000 POPULATION o
—
FLC-CSS | PLANTOPERATORC FLORIDA | se] A 10793 sl rovmeel s 3
~CITY fCOUNTY GOVERNMENT
50,000+ POPULATION
1
i
B
& — g~
— T O N
» M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGIITED AVERAGE; R-REGRESSION; 3RD=TH IRD QUARTTLE
32 Hewitl Associales
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"
MARKET PRICING WORKSHEET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (8 0001)
(DATA BTUECTIVE 7/95)
BASE $254
OB TN SENIOR MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN
BENCIIMARK
COMPANY  SSU REFTHENCE POINT X
SURVEY INFORMATION SURY | UNADU. COMFENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY FREPORTED | DATA | EFF | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMINTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSINCATION SCOPT Cos. Inc. TYFR® | DATR | “BASE* FACTOR | "BASE® | WEIGHT
BES-TST MAINTENANCE MECHANIC - LEVEL 1 LOWER SZSTATES 18 442 M 6/%4 $24.3 104333 $25.4 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY ;
'
I
i
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGH: R=RBGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILR
S95ICCPD.002/06-8 04795 33 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHELT

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUT (3 000s)

Kb

(DATA EFTECTIVE 7795}
BASE $26.0
JORBTITLL  SENIOR COMPUTER OPERATOR \
PENCIIMARK X
COMPANY SSU RIITRENCT POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION . | SURV | UNARDM. COMPRNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILI SURVEY # REPORTID DATA | T |DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scor Cos.  Iae. | TYPE' | DATH |DASE' | PACTOR |DASE" | wHIGHT

™-Is COMPUTHER OPERATOR (SENIOR) ORLANDO ] 51 M 1794 5246 1.06000 $26.1 3

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
TP -FitS COMPUTER OPERATOR (SENIOR) FLORIDA 61 285 M 1/94 $24.6 1.06000 $26.1 2

~GENERAL INDUSIRY

'
EC5-OPMR | COMPUTER OPERATOR -SENTOR FLORIDA 13 n M $194 $24.8 104667 526.0 2
i

—GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS COMPUTER OPERATOR ~LEVEL 1t SOUTHEAST 20 81 A 4794 $24.6 1.05000 3258 1

~GENFRAL INDUSTRY

H
{
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; WeWEIG HTED AVERAGH; R=RIGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
6952CCPD.002/06-B 04/95 34 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHERT HISTIMATED MARKET VALUT (3 000s)
{DATA EPTLCTIVEL 7/94)
BASH 3164
JORITILRE  CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE Nl i
BUNCIIMARK
COMPANY SSU RIZTRONCE POINT X
SURVEY INFORMATION SURV |uUNADI COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLR SURVEY #* REPCRTED DATA HrP DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOorPs Cot. inc, TYPE® | DATR | "BASH* FACTOR | TIASI" WHIGHT
PCS-P &S CUSTOMER SERVICE REP - LEVEL It SOUTHEBAST 42 344 M 3794 5216 105333 $29.1 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
;
AMS CUSTOMIR SERVICE REP - LEVEL G SOUTHEAST 0 148 M 4794 $243 1.05000 $215.3 A
CENFRAL INDUSIRY
‘¢ M=MIEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHITED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=TIIIRD QUARTILE
i
6952CCPD.002/06 B 0479 35 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSIEGT BSTIMATED MARKET VALUR {$ 0005}
(DATA [FTGCTIVIL 1/95)
]
BASE $27.1
ODTITLE  WELDER
BENCHMARK
COMPANY  SSU RIFTRENCE POINT x
SURVEY INPORMATION SURV | UNAIM. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLR SURVEY #ROFORIED | DATA ] 21% | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSTICATION scory Cos. e, | Tyrr [ bATR |BASE | rAacTor |mase | wimcHT '
FCS-IST WELIIR -1 EVEL 2 .S, 65 934 M 694 5260 1.04333 $21.1 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
I S
i
i
'
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEK: LITED AVERAGE; R-REGRESSION; JRD=TI1IRD QUARTILE

36 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHIET

ESTIMATED MARKITT VALUT (3 000:)

[

(DATA FFTECTIVIL 7795)
DASE $27.3
JOBITILE  DESKGN DRAFTERI
BENCHMARK X .
COMPANY SSU REFEREMCE POINT -
SURVEY INPORMATION SURY |UNADI COMPBRSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION 1TILE SUBRVEY # REPORTED DATA mr DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIUINTS
SOURCH i AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scorg Cos. Ine, TYPE* | DAIG | "DASIT" FACTOR | BASI"® WEKGHT
LR DRAFTER FLORIDA 30 133 M /94 $25.7 105667 3272
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
ms PRAFTER ~-LEVEL 3 N ORLANDO N/A 114 M 1794 $15.9 1.06000 3215 .
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
!
ECS-P &S DESIGN/DRAFTER FLORIDA H 1] M 3794 $26.0 1.05333 $17.4 1
I ~GENERAL INDUSTRY
t
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE: W=WEIGHTUD AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THRD QUARTHLE
37 Hewitt Associates
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L. . G aeeid | — S wriond Protmicl H R w (S — w Wlownnd M b - i —-
MARKET PRICING WORKSUETT ESTIMATID MARKIT VALUI {$ 0005}
(DATA EFTTICTIVE 7/95)
BAST $27.7
JOBTIIILE  SUPERVISOR, ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY  SSU ‘ REIGRIINCT POINT
SURVEY INPORMATION SURV | UNALM. COMPBNSATION
SURVRY SURVIZY POSITION TTTLE SURVEY #F REPORTED |  DATA Erp DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPR Cot. Ine. TYPE* [DATH [ pASH PACTOR | "DASE" | WEIGHT

-85 MAIL ROOM SUPERVISORU ORLANDO [ H] M 1194 5246 1.06000 $26.1 3

—~GENERAL INDUSTRY
P -1us MAIL ROOM SUPERVISOR FLORIDA 33 38 M 1494 $27.2 1.06000 $18.8 3

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS MAIL ROOM SUPERVISOR SOUTHEAST 1 14 A 4794 3276 1.05000 $19.0 1

—GCENERAL INDUSTRY

i
!
, -
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; WeWEIGHTED AVERAGL; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=T1IRD QUARTILIE
38 Hewitt Associates

£952CCPD.002/06-8 04/95
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— JR— —
MARKET FRICING WORKS IERT ESTIMATID MARKHT VALUT (£ 000¢)
' (DATA EFIFICTIVE 7/95)
pASH 3279
JOBTITLE  OPERATOR I
BINCQIMARK X
COMPANY SSU REMERENCE POINT
SURVHY INFORMATION SURV | UNAI, COMPENSATION
SURVYEY SURVEY POSTTION TTILE SURVEY # REPORTED DATA | BEFT | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIENTS
SOURCE AMD INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scorm Caos, Ine. TYPEY | DATR | DASE® PACTOR. | "BASE™ | WHIGHT
.C-CS$ PLANT OPERATOIRL B FLORIDA 36 133 A 10793 $28.3 107000 $27.3 1
]
—CITY 7 COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION
M.C~CSS PLANT OPERATOR R FLORIDA 37 197 A 10793 $26.7 107000 $28.6 1
~CITY ICOUNTY GOVERNMENT
30000+ POPULATION
!
i
+
* MeMEDIAN; A=AVERAGE WeWEIGHTED AVERAGHE:; R=REURESSION; SRD=THIRD QUARTILH
£953CCPD.002/06-B 04/95 39
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e

- .
MARRET PRICING WORKSHEIET ESTIMATED MARKIIT VALUT (5 000s)
(DATA EPFICTIVE 7/95)
BASH, $28.1
JORTTTLE  EXICUTIVE SBCRETARY
BENCITMARK X
COMPANY  SSU RIFIRENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION SURV | UNADJ. . COMPENSATION !
SURVEY SURVIZY POSITION TITLE suRvEY #RBPORTED | DATA | mrp | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCSE AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCorR Coi.  Inc TYPEY | DATE | "BASE" | PACTOR |'BAST' | wmionT
MR EXECUTIVIE SECRETARY FLORIDA 7 s M 2/94 $232 105667 5245 1
. ~GENERAL INDUSTRY
4
TP -IBs SECRETARY (EXUCUTIVIEY ORLANDG 17 270 M 1194 s8R0 1,06000 529.8 H
~GENTRAL INDUSIRY
s SUCRETARY (UXHCUTTVE) FLORIDA 89 827 M 179 $273 1.0600 5289 1
—~GENFRAL INDUSIRY
BLS SECRETARY IV ORLANDO NiA o8 M 1/94 3216 1.06000 $293 H
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
FLC-CSS ! | EXHCUTIVE SICRETARY ORLANDO AREA [ 1 A 10793 5254 1.07000 5272 2
~CITY [COUNTY GOVERNMENT i
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION o
NC-CSS EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FLORIDA 51 146 A 10793 $25.5 107000 $273 1
~CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000 50,000 POPULATION e
FLC-CSS | EXBCUTIVE SBCRETARY FLORIDA 4 56 A 10793 $27.2 1.07000 $20.1 1 '
—CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
50,000 + FOPULATION L

* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGI I TED AVERAGE; R=-REGRESSION; SRD=THRD QUARTILE--

69520CPD 00T/ 06-B 04795
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f.. g | — O o { P , : Liiad s harind enid elinini Micevill Y. ol Baed [ e
MARKET PRICING WORKSHEITT ESTIMATRD MARKIT VALUTL (8 0005)
(DATA EFFECTIVE 7/95) '
BASD 3284
JOBTTILE MR ASSISTANT
MINCIIMARK X
COMPANY SSU ' REPERENCE FOINT -
SURVEY INTORMATION ) SURY | UNADL COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLI SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | EIT | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCE ANUD INDUSTRY CLASSITCATION scorg Cot. _Ine, |+ TYFB® | DAIE |"pAsy FACIOR. | TASE® | WEIGHT
WMM -HRM | ENTRY LEVEL GENERALIST U.s. 14 20 M 2794 527.8 1.05667 $19.4 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY 250630 EMPLOYEES
ECS-P &S | HUMAMN RESOURCES GENERALIST ~LEVEL L u.s. , 200 n2 M 1ds $25.1 105333 5264 1
—OENERAL INDUSTRY'
AMS PERSONNEL ASSISTANT SOUTHEAST 14 20 A 4794 §27.5 1.05000 $28.9 2
—GEMERAL INDUSTRY
* M=MEDIA N; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
s9siocwn.wz/os-a 5.1 41 Hewitt Associates
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PR

4 : e . = g e % .
' MARKET PRICING WORKSHERT PSTIMATED MARKET VALUL (X 0001)
(DATA EIECTIVE 7/95)
BAS 1302
1 [P—— i et 8 e
JORTILE  ACCOUNTANTI(
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY 55U REFFRENCH POINT
SURVHY INIFORMATION sury | UNADI COMPENSATION
SURVIEY SURVEY POSITION TIILE SURVEY #REFORTED | DATA | EF¥ |DATA | ueDATE DATA COMMINTS
SOURCT AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION sCors Cot,  Inc, TYrE* | DATE |"pAST® | ractor | wAsge | waGHT
' i
FCS-P &S ACCOUNTANT -LEVEL FLORIDA 7 11 M 3/94 $28.1 1.05333 $29.6 2
~GENIRAL INDUSIRY
!
WMM -PAL | ASSOCIATE ACCOUNTANT u.s. 33 $s M 3/94 $26.6 1.05333 $28.0 1| AVERAGE REVS = $RA.4 MIL
—GENFRAL INDUSTRY me\ $200 MIL REVS
AMS ACCOUNTANT~LEVEL2 SOUTHEAST 14 50 A 4794 $29.3 1.05000 $30.8 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
RC-CSS | ACCOUNTANT ORLANDO AREA 1 9 A 10/ ‘93 $28.7 1.07000 $30.7 3
—CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT '
10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION o
LC-CSS | ACCOUNTANT FLORIDA a5 59 A 10193 $27.1 1.67000 $29.0 2
~CETY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,500 POPULATION i
MC-CSS | ACCOUNTANT TLORIDA 37 187 A 10493 5298 1.07000 $31.9 2
—CITY/COUNTY GOVERNMENT
. 50,000 + POPULATION ) o
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE: W=WEIG HTED AVERAGE: R-REGRESSION; JRD=T1HRD QUARTILE
12 Hewitt Associates
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. . R . M - . Lt ' 1 P - H
_______ P ) | — e o TSN S A Lo Gadd e bnainalll Lo deitl Wt~ v
MARKET PRICING WORKSI IEITT ESTIMATED MARKITT VALUE (3 000s)
(DATA EXTRCTIVE 7/98)
.
BASE $30.7
JORITILE  ELECTRICIAN
PGNCGHMARK x
COMPANY SSU RENTRIENCH POINT
! .
SURVHY INFORMATION SURV | URADL, COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TrILI SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | EFF | DATA UFDATE DATA COMMINTS
SOURCY AND INDUSTRY QLASSIMTCATION scorg Cor.  Inc. TYPI® | DATB |BAsz® | racror | BAase | woenr
TP-rus BUILDING ELECTRICIAN ORLANDO 7 170 M 1794 5298 1,06000 1316 2
—~GENERAL INDUSIRY
10~ 11s BUILDING ELECTRICIAN FLORIDA 18 262 M 1794 529.8 1.06000 $316 1
—GENTRAL INDUSTRY
LC-CSS | ELECTRICIAN-JOURNEY LEVEL FLORIDA P 53 A 10/93 $23.4 1.07060 $25.0 i
—~CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT
10,000~ 50,000 FOPULATION
ML-CSS | ELECTRICIAN - JOURNEY LEVEL FLORIDA 39 24 A 10793 5268 1.07000 5287 1
—CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMINT
50,000 + POPULATION
ns MAIN ELECTRICIAN ORLANDO N/ 1T M 1194 $312 1.06000 $33.1 1
~GENERAL INDUSIRY
)
* M=MEDIAN; A~AVERAGE; W=WEIG HTID AVERAGE; R-REGRESSION; JRD=THIRD QUARTILE
69520CPD.002/06-B 04/95 43 Hewitt Associates
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MARKIT PRICING WORKSIHT

{DATA EFTECTIVE 7/95)

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (§ 0002)

NASE T
xn T\Tiﬂ CHIEP DRAFIER
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY 5SU RIFTRENCH POINT
SURVIY INITORMATION SURV | UNADY, COMPRNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION 1TTLG SURVEY # REFORTED DATA | BT DATA UrpAtg DATA COMMUNTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOrR Cos. Ine, CEYPRC | DA | BASI PACTOR | "BAST® | WRIGHT
!
TT-us DRAFTER (SEMNIOR) ORLANIX} 10 44 M 1794 318.6 1.06000 $30.3 3
~GENERAL INDUSIRY
wr-ms DRAFITR (SENIOR) FLORIDA 19 94 M 1794 $28.6 1.06000 $30.3 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY:
ECS-P &S | CHIEP DRAFTER SOUTHEAST 16 101 M 3794 3365 1.05333 $38.4 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
)
¢ M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE: WaWEIGHTED AVERAGHE; REREGRESSION; IRD=TIIRD QUARTILE
£95ICCPD.002/06.8 01/95 44 Hewitt Associates
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Whidneod

T . ) . R i X . . . i A PR PRt '
L. it — T "W R VO Lo flid e b o W it L Ui SR WU B et
MARKET PRICING WORKSURET BSTIMATED MARKET VALUT (§ 0001)
(DATA EIGCTIVE 7/95)
BASH $320
JOBTINE  PCSUPPORT SPECIALIST
BONCHMARK X
COMPANY 5SU REVERENCT POINT
SURVITY INFORMATION SURV | UNADY, COMPINSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY #REFORTED | DATA | me | DATA UFDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSIRY CLASSIPICATION SCOPT Cos,  Ine. TYPB* | DATE | "BASE" PACTOR | "BASE"™ | WIIGHT
TP-1BS ;[ PCIGCHNICIAN ORLANDO 3 6 M 1794 $35.3 1.06000 $37.4 1| SMALL SAMPLESIZE
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
TP -FBS PCTECHNICIAN FLORIDA 35 124 M 1/94 $24.7 1.06000 $26.2 H
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
, I
AMS PCSPECIALIST SOUTHEAST i 15 M 4794 $317 1.05000 $35.4 b3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
+ 3
"
WMM-IS MICRO SYSTEMS SUPPORT ASSISTANT u.s. 163 199 M 4794 5299 1.05000 $31.4 1 | NO SCOPE DATA AVAILARLE
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
! e
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W-WEIG I1TED) AVERAGE: R=REGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
S452CCPD.0N2/06-B 04795 45 Hewitt Associates
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£952CCPDO0T/06-B 04795

- ] . ' ) n . . A , - IS . L. FAE ] £ 2. < K X 1 §
il M L e b Lo Uk s e B M Rl O G Geed e e
MARKET PRICING WORKSUEET HSTIMATED MARKIIT VALLURL (§ 000s)
(DATA ETTGCTIVE 7/95)
BASY $33.0
KOBTILE  OPFRATOR it
BENCIHMARK X
COMIARY S5 RIJTRENCH POINT
SURVIY INPORMATION SURY L UNADY COMPINSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TrILit SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | EIF - | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPR Cot. Ine. TYPE* | DATR | "BASE" PACTOR | DASE* | witGIIT -
AC~CSS PLANTOPERATOR A TLORIDA 29 68 A 10/93 5299 1.07000 $12.0 ]
—~CIT¥/COUNTY GOVIRNMENT
10,800 $0,000 FOPULATION
FLEC -CSS PLANT OPERATOR A PLORIDA n 154 A 10/93 $31.7 1.07000 1339 1
~CITY/COUNTYGOVERNMENT
50,000 + POPULATION
- — R
;
i
!
|
"
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERACHE: W=WEK:HTED AVERAGE; R=RBORESSION; 3RD=T1{IRD QUARTILE
46 Hewitt Associates
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I Suvelbienhd | S— T Soerasinal T ! ! W L] | Va—1 Soead Wnaitt Lndm 0" y.n-d l--..k SO
e e 1
MARKLT PRICING WORKSHITET ESTIMATED MARKHT VALUR (§ 0005}
{DATA FITECTIVIL 7 (95)
" BASE $33.9
JOBTITIIE  ACCOUNTANT
MENCIMABRK X
COMPANY  5sU REPERGENCU POINT
SURVITY INFORMATION SURY | UNAD), COMPTNSATION ’
SURVRY SURVIELY POSITION TITLR SURVIYY # RUPORTRID DATA EF!' DATA UPDATE DATA COMMUNTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scorg Cot. Ine. TYFE® | DATE | “nAS* PAC‘W A" WHIGHT

7 - IS ACCOUNTANT (INTERMEDIATE) ORLANDG it 61 M 1794 $32.3 1.96000 $34.1 3

~GENERAL INDUSTRY

i

1w [‘US’ ACCOUNTANTH wa!z!)mm; FLORIDA 59 264 M 17194 $3).2 1.06000 $33. 2

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
ECS-T &S ACCOUNTANT-LEVEL N FLORIDA 12 37 M 3194 $31.4 105333 $33 2

~GENERAL INDUSTRY

;

WMM -FAL | ACCOUNTANT u.s. 63 137 M 3/94 $30.5 105333 $32.1 1

—~GENERAL INDUSTRY UNDER $200 MIL REVS

I

AMS ACCOUNTANT~1EVEL 3 SOUTHBAST 17 88 A 494 $36.2 1.05000 $38.0 H

—GENERAL INDUSTRY

i
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVIRAGE; WeWEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=RBORESSION; IRD=THRD QUARTILE
47 Hewitt Associates
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Lo el bbeme Lol et beene L) Lk e el Beed e LGl L U I e urer: ST B |
MARKLT PRICING WORRSHIET ESTIMATED MAREIT VALUTL ($ 0001)
) (DATA EFTECTIVE 7/95)
H
RASH $34.4
JORTITLE  SUPERVISOR, CUSTOMER SERVICE
DENCITMARK S
COMPANY SSU REVERENCTL POINT
SURVILY INPORMATION SURV [ UNADM, COMIMNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY £ REPORTED mm BT | DATA UFDATE DATA [COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPG Cot. Ine. | TErBY | DATH | "BASY FACTOR |mAsz™ | wEIGHT
|
l il
FCS-SMR | CUSTOMER SERVICH SUPERVISOR FLORIDA H M M 1794 §36.0 1.06000 $39.3 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY l
b
'
AR CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPERVISOR | FLORIDA 23 64 M 2194 $28.0 1.05667 $29.6 1
—GENTRAL INDUSTRY |
H
3
* M=MEDIAN; A~AVERAGHE; W=WEIG HTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION: 3RD=TIRD QUARTILE
48 Hewitt Associates
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N ) _ ST . . ) Loy, . : L t 1
........ ook e L weeed w0 kil wess Jeemw eewad e bl [ i e
MARKET PRICING WORKSHERT ESTIMATIL) MARKIZE VALUR (§ 0005)
(DATA BTECTIVE 7/95)
RASH $34.9
1
JOBTTILE  SUPERVISOR OF BILLING
BENCIIMARK
COMPANY  SSU REFERENCE POINT X
SURVEY INI'ORMATION i SURV | UNADL COMPBNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTTLR SURVEY #REPORTOD | DATA | 1w | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSIRY Q1 ASSITICATION scorg Cor.  Mne, | Tvrne |Datn |wAss | racror [mAss | wmonT
DIZTRICH ~ 59 BILLING SUPERVISOR u.s h%) w ' M 5194 $33.4 1.04667 $249 1| RAW DATA REDLCED BY 10% TO REFLECT
~GENERAL INDUSIRY IFUTHES NOT POUNI HN SSU POSTION
;
i
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WRIGI ITED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
49 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICIHG WORKSIEET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (3 000))
(DATA BITRCITIVE 7/95)
i
BASKE 3350
JOBTITLE HR ANALYSI-BENEFTTS
BEINQIMARK X )
t
COMPANY 3SU REFEREMCE POINT )
\ SURVEY INPFORMATION . . SURV | UNADE COMPENSATION
SURVILY SURVEY POSTTION TITLE SURVEY # REFORTED DATA | @'F. | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY CLASSTRICATION scorg Coe.  Ine. _Teegr | DATE | BASE® FACTOR | MASE" | WHIGHT -

TP -1Bs BENEFTTS ANALYST ORLANDO 6 10 M 1794 1318 1.560800 $317 3

~GENERALINDUSIRY

'

Te~1HS DBENEFITS ANALYST FLORIDA 28 3% M 1794 $36.7 1.06000 389 1

~GENERAL INDUSTRY |
WMM -HRM | BENEFITS ADMINISTRATOR U.s. 12 12 : M 2794 $333 105667 $35.2 1

~GENERAL INDUSTRY §30 MIL - $100 MIL REVS

1

ECS-P &S BENEFITS ADMINISTRATOR-LEVEL 2 ML.ORIDA 3 7 M 3754 $31.4 1.05333 $334 2

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
AMS BENEGFITS SPECIALIST SOUTHEAST 1] 22 A 4/94 $33.4 1.05000 $35.¥ i

~GENERALINDUSTRY , '

¢ M=MIEITHAN; AAVERAGE; WeWEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=ROGRESSION; JRD=T11IRD QUARTILE

$5ACCPD.002/06-B 04795 50 Hewitt Associates
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Lo s L et Beesee D B et eeed Beed e beadd P it aaad O
MARRET PRICING WORKS IEIET ESTIMATTID MARRET VALUE (5 000:)
(DATA EFVECTIVE 7/95)
BAST 5362
JOBTITUE  PROMCTENGINEER |
' HENCHMARK x
COMPANY  SSU RIPERENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION SURV | UNADY COMIBNSATION
SURVIZY SURVIEY POSITION TTILE SURVEY #rerortED | DATA | mr |pATA | urDAIE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSHICATION sCoPn Cot.  Ime. | TYPE* |DATE |ASH" | PACTOR |"mAsz | weicnt
FCS-P &S | CIVIL ENGINEER - LEVEL | SOUTHEAST 14 | M 3794 5296 105333 $317 P
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
]
CCS-P &S | MECHANICALENGINEER - LEEVEL | SOUTHEAST n 131 M Ny 535.3 1.95333 $372 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
DEETRICH - | CIVIL ENGINEER - LEVEL | U.s. il O NIA A 1794 $35.9 1.05333 $378 1 |
—JTILITES
DETRICH - £ | MECHANICALENGINEER ~LEVEL ] us A A a 3194 5362 1.05333 5381 1
Y Juntmns
1
BR ENGINEGR C FLORIDA 35 s M 2194 £35.6 1.05667 5378 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; WeWEKGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRISSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
t
51 Hewitt Associates
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I
MARKET PRICING WORKSUBHT ESNMATED MARKIIT VALUT {§ 0004}
(DATA IITECTIVE 7/95)
BASE $37.1
OB FTTLE MR ANALYST-GENERALIST !
BENCIIMARK x
COMPANY  SSU REFERENCE POINT
SURVEY INPORMATION o SURV | UNADL COMPINSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLR SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | HXF |DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIICATION scorg Cot,  Ine, TYPE® | DATE | "DASH* PACTOR | DASY" | WEIGHT
1P -TRS HR GENFRALIST ORLANDO 3 4 M 1794 $34.7 1.06000 $36.8 1 | SMALL SAMPLE SIZE
~GENERAL INDUSIRY
w-ms HR GENERALIST FLORIDA 5 45 M 1794 3406 1.06000 3430 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
ECS~PAS §{HROENERALIST FLORIDA 8 10 M 3794 $28.8 1.05333 $30.3 H
LEVEL?
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
WMM -HRM { GENERALIST U.5. 16 29 A 2/94 370 105667 $39.1 1
| ~GENERAL INDUSTRY $30 MIL~$100 MIL REVS
t
* M=aMEDIAN; AmAVERAGIL WaWEKGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; ARD=THIRD QUARTHE
!
52 Hewilt Associates
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i
F— MARKET PRICING WORKSHIEET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUT (¥ 0005)
(DATA IITECTIVE ?i;)i)
, nAStH 1385
JORTTILE  PROGRAMMIR ANALYST!
| i
INCITMARK X
COMPANY SSU REFTCRINCE POINT
SURVIY INFORMATION SURV | UNADE, COMIINSATION
SURVHY SURVEY POSITION TTILE suURvoY FREPORTED | DATA | HIT | DATA UPDATY " DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIPICATION scorg Cot. Ine. TYFE* | DATR | "pAs FACTOR, | DASE” | wriGHT ]
ECS-P &S | PROGRAMMER ANALYST-LEVEL I FLORIDA 8 60 W kI $33.9 105333 $35.7 1
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
i
WMM-I? APFLICATIONS SYSTEM ANALYST/ U.s. 484 374 A 4794 £34.7 £.05000 $36.4 1
PROGRAMMER D
—GENERAL INDUSTRY B
AMS APPLICATIONS PROGRAMMER/ANALYST SOUTHEAST 6 k A 4794 $342 1.05000 $359 H
LEVEL i
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
]
TP - FBS PROGRAMMER ANALYST (INTERMEIHATE} ORLANDO 7 95 M 1194 $40.3 1.06000 $42.7 k]
—GENERAL INDUSTRY
f
TP -Fus PROGRAMMER ANALYST (INTERMEDIATE) FLORIDA 61 528 M 1794 $36.2 1.06000 $38.4 2
~GENFRAL INDUSTRY

* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE,; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=RIXFRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
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MARRET PRICING WORKSHEET LSTTMATED MARKUIT VALUL (§ 0001)

{DATA EFTICTIVE 7/95)

BASG $a1s
0B TILE ! PURCHASING ADMINISTRATOR
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY  SSU REITRENCE POINT -
SURVITY INFORMATION SURY | UNADS. COMPENSATION
SURVEEY SURVEY POSITION TITLB SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | EXT | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scory Cor. e | Ty |pATe |WAmr | rAcror [wasr | wmonr
L
1.0 -C8S PURCHASING AGENT ORLANDG ARUA 7 7 A 10793 $33 1.07000 33154 3
CITY I COUNTY GOVERNMENT i
10,000 50,000 POPULATION .
"
|FLCACSS | FURCHASING AGENT FLORIDA 38 8 A 10793 $32.9 1.07000 $35.2 2
~CITY /COUNTY GOVERNMENT

10,000~ 50,000 POPULATION

.C-C38 PURCHASING AGENT FLORIDA 44 63 A 10793 $46.2 1.07000 $49.4 1
~CITY ) COUNTY GOVERNMENT

50,000 + POPULATION

WMM-MLM | SENIOR BUYER FLORIDA 11 NN M 1194 $46.4 106000 $49.2 2

~CGENERAL INDUSTRY

AMS ! PURCHASING AGENT SOUTHEAST 10 22 A 4794 339.4 1.05000 $41.4 1

—GENERAL INDUSIRY

* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE: W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=RIGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE

[
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MARKITT PRICING WORKSUIEET

(DATA FI'PECTIVE 7/95%

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUY ($ 000:)

i BASE $43.6
JOR TR TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR
MENCIIMARK x
COMPANY 5SU REFFRENCLE POINT
]
SURVEY INCORMATION SURV | UNADMS. COMPENSATION
SURVILY SUSVEY POSITION TTILB SURVEY FREPORTED | DATA | BOP || DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCTE AND IRDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scorg Cor. e, TYFE* | DATH | BASE® | PACTOR |"Ase® | wiGHT
¥
FCS-P &S | BMPLOYEE TRAINING SFECIALIST SOUTHEAST 4 66 M 3194 $419 105333 $46.2 1
LEVEL 3
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
WMM - 1{M | SENJOIUTRAINING SPECIALIST u.s. 18 26 M 2/94 $39.4 1.05667 416 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY - 250~ 650 FITS'S :
AMS TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST SOUTHEAST 14 u A 4794 $40.8 1.05000 $42.8 ]
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
;
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGH TED AVERAGH: R=REGRESSION; JRD=THIRD QUARTILE
55 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSIIEITT ESTIMATED MARKET VALUY (§ 000s)
(IDATA EFFECTIVE 7/95)
' BASE $43.9
JOBITILE  RATE ANALYSTI
BENCITMARK
1
COMPANY SSU REITRENCI POINT x |
SURVIZY INPORMATION SURV | UNADI. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVIZY #BECORTED | DATA en' DATA UPDATE DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCEB AND INDUSIRY CLASSIICATION SCOrs Co. Inc. . | TYFE* | DATH | "BASE® FACTOR | "BASE® | wEiGIIT
CUSTOM RATE ANALYST 1 FLORIDA 4 A 5194 3429 1.04667 $44.9 k]
~UTILITIES ’
TP-UnL ASSOCIATERATE ANALYST LL5. 13 M 9193 $382 107333 $41.0 !
~UTILIMWS 1
.
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE: R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE .
69520CPD.002/06-B 04/95 56 Hewitt Associates
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69520CPDO02/06-B 4795

MARKIZF PRICING WORKSI ITIT ESTIMATID MARKET VALUR (§ 0001)
(DATA EXFECTIVE 7/95)
NASE $48.1
JORTIME  SENIOR PROGRAMMER ANALYST
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY  SSU REITRENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATIONR sury |UNADL COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE SURVEY FRUPORTED | DATA | EIT | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCEH AND INDUSTRY CLASSHICATION SCOPR Cos. Ine. TYTE* | DAIE | "BAS” PACTOR | "BASE™ | WRIGHT

MR SENTOR PROGRAMMITR  ANALYST ORLANDO 15 1 M 2/94 $44.6 105667 $47.1 3

~GENERAL INDUSIRY
WMM - 15 APPLICATIONS SYSTEM ANALYST/ u.s. 6717] 16,589 M 494 3475 1.05000 $49.9 1

PROGRAMMIIR SENIOR

—GENERAL INDUSIRY !
ECS-P &S PROGRAMMIR ANALYST - LEVEL IV FLORIDA 7 18 w 3794 $40.1 1.05333 3518 b3 |

~GENERAL INDUSIRY

!
” .

AMS APPLICATIONS FROGRAMMER ANALYST SOUTHEAST 9 105 A 4194 $44.0 1.65000 $46.2 2

LEVEL IV |

—~GENERAL INDUSTRY o
I -I1s PROGRAMMIR ANALYST (SENIOR) ORLANDO 8 104 M 1494 $44.9 1.06000 $47.6 1

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
TP -PRS PROGRAMMER ANALYST (SENIOR) FLORIDA $7 657 M 1794 $44.9 1.06000 $47.6 b

~GENFRAL INDUSIRY

* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEKHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
57 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHTUT ESTIMATEL) MARKIIT VALUH (3 0001)
{DATA BEITUCTIVLE 7/95)
BASH $50.1
XHUITIIE  SENIOR SYSTEMS ANALYSTENG INEERING
BENCIIMARK i o
COMPANY SSU REITRENCE POINT X
1
SURVEY INFORMATION SURY [ UNADI, COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVELY POSTTION TITLE SURVEY #FREPORIED | DATA | EIV | DATA UEDATL | DATA COMMIINTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSHICATION SCOrS Cot, [ LTN TYPE® DAm *pAS® PACTOR | "DASE" WHEIGHT
WMM-IS | ENGINEER/ ANALYST SENIOR u.s 231 1,109 ™M 4194 $47.7 1.05000 $50.1 1
~GENTRAL INDUSTRY
1
H
i
T .
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEHIGIITED) AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
58 Hewitt Associates
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MARKIIT PRICING WORKSUEET BSTIMATED MARKET VALUTE (3 000s)

{DATA RITECTIVE 'HPS)
BASH $51.7

i

J JOUATILE  MANAGER, ADMINISTRATIVE SFRVICES i

MENCIIMARK x’

COMPANY 55U RITTRENCE POINT

SURVEY INFORMATION SURV | UNADI COMPENSATION
SURVILY SURVEY POSITION T SURVEY # REPCRTED DATA | @ DATA UPDATE DATA COMMUNTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSITCATION scori Cos, inc. TYPR | DATE |'BASy” PACTOR | "DASE™ WEIGHT
ECS~-MMR | ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER SOUTHEAST 1] 15 M 2/94 $517 1.05667 $54.6 ]
~CGENERAL INDUSTRY
£
DETRICH - 5 MANAGER, ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES SOUTHEAST 18 21 M 5/94 §46.6 1.04667 $48.8 1

~GENFRAL INDUSIRY -

39vd
1189IHX3

“ M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGH:; WaWEKHTED AVERAGE: R=RBORCESSION; 3RD=TIIRD QUARTILE

BSICPD.001/06-B 01/95 59 Hewill Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKS IEET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (3 0005)
(DATA EFTGCTIVE 7/95) !
BASG $52.0 i
OBTITLE  MANAGER, GENERAL ACCOUNTING / ASSISTANT CONTROLLIR
BENCHMARK X
COMPANY  SSU REERENCEE POINT
'
SURVEY INFORMATION sURV {UNADY. COMPHEMSATION
SURVEY SURVIEY POSITION TTILI " SURVEY # REPORTED DATA o DATA UPDATR DATA COMMIENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION - scors Cot, fne TR | DAtE | pasy PACTOR | "DASE* | WEIGHT
i
..
WMM -FAL | GENERAL ACCOUNTING MANAGER U5 81 7 M 394, $54.0 1.05333 $369 1
‘ ~GENERAL INDUSTRY UNDER 5200 MIL REVS
ECS-MMR | GENERAL ACCOUNTING MANAGER u.s. 164 m M 2/94 $49.0 1.05667 $51.8 1
—GENERAL INDUSTRY INDER $100 MIL REVS
IMETRICH -S4 GENERAL ACOOUNTING MANAGER SOUTHEAST 24 2 M 5794 3452 1.04667 $472 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
1
1
i}
* M=MEDIAN; A*AVERAGE: WaWEKGITED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=T1{IRD QUARTILI
8952CCPD.L01/06.8 04795 60 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHIEITT ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (8 0005)
{BATA BXTLCTIVE $7935)
i
. BASE $522
JIOBTTILE  RATEANALYST I
BENCHMARK x |
COMPANY SSU REFERENCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION , - SURV |UNADN, | COMPENSATION
SURVIEY SURVEY POSITION TITLE . SURVEY #REFORTED | DATA | &r¢  {DATA | UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSIRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPE Cor.  imé. | TYPE' |patd [Das® | racrom |asr | weonT
PRIVATE RATE ANALYST (JOURNEY) SOUTHEAST 12 14 M 6492 $42.1 1.12300 $47.3 2
~UTILITIES
!
CUSTGM | RATEANALYSTH FLORIDA 4 7 A 5/94 $59.4 1.04657 $62.2 1

~UTILITIES

* M=MEDIAN: AAVERAGE; WeWEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=TIIRD QUARTILE

69520CPD.002/06.B 14/95
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHELT ’ ESTIMATIID MARKET VALUE {$ 000x)
(DATA EFTECTIVE 7/95)
BASE $523
0B TR HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATOR
BINCHMARK X
COMPANY SSU , REVERENCE POINT
T
SURVEY INPORMATION ) SURV | UNADL COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY FOSITION T(TLE SURVEY #REFORIED | DATA | BFT | DATA UPDATE DATA. COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSHICATION scopd Cos. Ine. TYPE* | DATH | "pASt® FACTOR | "DASH* WHIGIIT
WMM - HEM | EMPLOYIE BENEFTS MANAGER u.s. 14 13 M /%4 $51. 1.05667 $540 H
~GENERAL IMOUSTRY 250- 630 EMI'"LOYUES
|
i
ECS-MMR | EMPLOYER BENEFITS MANAGER SOUTHBAST 10 11 M 1/94 $49.0 1.05667 3518 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY UNDER 2,000 EMPLOYEES
!
H
' TT’ ~FBs BENEFTTS MA NAGER FLORIDA 17 17 M 1194 $44.9 1.06000 $47.6 3
~CENERAL INDUSTRY
TP ~FRS BENEFITS MANAGER ORLANDO 3 3 M 1794 $52.3 1.06000 $56.0 1] SMALLSAMPLESIZE
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
:
H
* MrMEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHITED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3IRD=THIRD QUARTILE
62 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSITERT ESTIMATID MARKIIT VALUE (8 0001)
(DATA EPHECTIVEL 7/95)
DASH $52.4
JORTITLE  SENIOR PROXCTENGINEIR
BENCHMARK x
COMPANY  SSU REITRINCE POINT B
SURVEY INIORMATION SURV | UNADY. COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION $TTLE SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA | BT | DATA UPDATL DATA COMMENTS
1
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION scort Cos. Ine. TYPE® | DATB | BASG PACTOR | "DASZ™ | WHIGHT
PR PROKGCT ENG INITR souTH 106 715 M 2494 $51.9 1.05687 $34.8 2
~GENFRAL INDUSTRY
DIEIRICH ~E | ENGINEER ~ LEVEL TV u.s 83| 19472 M 3/94 3452 1.05333 $47.6 1
~GENERALINDUSIRY
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIK HTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=TTIIRI? QUARTILB
695ICCFD ON2/06.B (4795 63 Hewitt Associates
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MAREET PRICING WORKSIIFET

(DATA EMTCTIVE 7/95)

ESTIMATED MARKIT VALUR ($ 000s)

NI
lobnictorin

~GENTRAL INDUSTRY -

DASE $57.0
JODTITILE MANAGER, FINANCIAL PLANNING 7 ASSISTANT TREASURER
PENCHMARK _)fh_
CTOMFPANY  SSU REFTRENCH POINT )
SURVEY INFORMATION . . SURV i}RAD!. COMPBNSATION

SURVHY SURVEY POSITION TITLR SURVITY #* REPORTED DATA | P | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMINTS

SOURCH AND INDUSTRY (LASSIFICATION scorn Cor.  Ine. TY'E* | DATH | BASH YACTOR. | TASE* | WINKGHT
ECS~ m«’m FINANCIAL ANALYSIS MANAGER 115 91 105 2794 $53.2 1.05667 $56.2 1

~GENERAL INDUSTRY UNEER $300 MIL SALES

WMM-PAL | FINANCIALANALYSS FROECTLEALTR u.s all 70 3794 $548 105333 $57.7 1

i

* M=MEDIAN; AsAVERAGE; W=WEIKIHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; JRD=TII[RD QUARTILE
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MARKET PRICING WORKSIIEET ESTIMATUD MARKET VALUE (§ 000+)
{DATA EFTECTIVE 7/95)
BASIL $59.7
JONTITLE  MANAGER, HUMAN RESDURCES
BENCIIMARK. x
COMPANY 55U ROPGRONCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION SURY | UNADJ, COMITNSATION
SURVRY SURVEY POSITION TTTLR SURVEEY #REPORTED | DATA | BFT ] DATA UPDATR DATA COMMIENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSTRY CLASSIICATION SCOPR Cos.  Imec. TYPE* | DAIE | DASE PACTOR | 'BAsE* | wicHT
T -Fis JIUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER FLORIDA 53 80 M 1/94 $55.2 1.06000 $58.5 3
~GENGRAL INDUSTRY
ECS-MMR | | HUMAN RESOLRCES MANAGER SOUTHEAST 4 4 M 2794 $53.0 1.05667 $56.0 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY * UNDER 2,000 FYE'S
~
WMM -HRM | HR DIRECTOR (iN SMALL ORGANIZATION) u.s. 30 2 M 2194 3571 1.05667 $60.3 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY $30 MIL ~$100 MIL REVS
1
|
AMS HR DIRECTOR SOUTHEAST 1 4 A 4194 $61.9 1.05000 $65.0 2
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
i
b
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=-RIGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
EH5CCPD02/ 068 (M/95 65 Hewitt Associales
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MARKET PRICING WORKS IEIT ESTIMATED MARKET VALUT (§ 009}
{DATA BMTECTIVE 7/94)
BAST 1628
OB TITLE  COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER
BENCIIMARK X
COMPANY SSU REFERENCI POINT _ »
SURVEY INFORMATION SURV | UNADS. COMPIINSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILE SURVEY #* REPORTED DATA ) BRI | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSIRY CLASSITCATION scors Cor.  Ine. TYPB | DATE | sAasst | rActom |{rmasy | wmonr o

ECS~ MMR PUBLIC RELATIONS MANAGER u.s. 143 154 M 2794 $59.3 1.05667 $62.7 1

~GENERAL INDUSIRY !
ECS-MMR GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS MANAGER U. 8. 7% 95 M 2/94 sn.? 1.05667 $75.8 1

—GENTRALINDUSIRY
DIETRICH ~59 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS u.s. 4 50 M 5794 $55.2 1.04667 $57.8 i

~GENERAL INDUSTRY
TP -FBS PUBLIC RELATIONS MANAGER FLORIDA k] 13 M 1/94 $50.6 1.06000 $53.6 ]

~GENFRAL INDUSTRY

; —
* M=MEDNAN; A=AVERAGE; WeWERIGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; IRD=THIRD QUARTHH
! . .
66 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHIET

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (3 0005)

s shs 0w

(DATA EITECTIVE 7/95)
RASE $62.9
JOU TITLE  SENIOR RATE ENGINEER I
! BENCHMARK
COMPANY 551 REITRENCHE POINT X
.
SURVEY INPORMATION , ; : cE svnv UNADI. COMITBNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILI SURVEY V #Rﬂrumzn ) DATA. BIT | DATA UPDATE DATA COMMENTS
SOURCH AND INDUSIRY CLASSITCATION SCOPE Cor.  ine TYPE' | DATH | "BASE® | PACTOR |'mAs | wiicHT
CUSTOM | RATEENGINEER If FLORIDA s 1 A 5794 $60.1 1.04667 5629 1
~UTILITIES
;
i
]
i
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W=WEIGHTID AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE, !
&7 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHERT

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE (3 000¢)

~GENERAL INDUSTRY

(DATA EFFECTIVE 7/95)
BASE 5628
JOBTITLE  MANAGER, INFORMATION SERVICES
: BENCHMARK x
1
COMPANY  SsU REFERIINCE POINT
SURVEY INFORMATION " . . L o ) URADY, | | COMMIRSATION -
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TITUR SURVEY - - | ‘#REPOHTED DATA .| UrDATR| 0.0 BATA © ’ COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSIRY CLASSIFICATION SCOPR o] cor e | |mmase® | pAcTOR. WRIGHT
TP ~FBS MIS GROUP MANAGER FLORIDA 39 2j M 1794 $65.5 106000 $69.4 1 )
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
ECS-MMR | INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER u.s. 18 o M 2494 s600]  1.05667 $63.4 2} AVERAGE REVS = $45 MIL.
" ~GENERAL INDUSTRY AINDER $100 MIL REVS
BLR DATA PROCESSING MANAGER u.s. 199 L109) M 2/94 $520| 105667 $549 1

* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGI; WeWEIG HTED AVERAGE; R=RBGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILR

§952CCPD.002/06-B 04795

Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHIET OSTIMATED MARKITT VALUTL (§ 0001)
(DATA GUTECTIVE 7/93)
BASI $67.9
JORTITLE  STAFF ATTORNEY
HENCHMARK X
COMPANY SSU REFERENCE POINT
1
SURVEY INFORMATION : L SURV | UNADY, _*: | COMPBNSATION
SURVEY SURVEY POSITION TTILR SURVEY #REPORTED | DATA- | EXF |DATA | UrDATE | . DATA_ - COMMENTS
SOURCE AND INDUSTRY ULASSIICATION SCOrs Cor. -Ine. | 'TYIB* |DATR |7ASP | FACTOR |BAsE" |wmIGHT
|
CS-F &S | ATFORNEY-LEVEL 2 u.s. 163] 4l M T seos| 108333 sex3 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
WMM-FAL | ATTORNEY u.s. 81| 158 M 3794 s698] 105333 573 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
DIETRICH ~8Y ATTORNEY u.s. “| us| M 5794 ss1o|  1odee7|  seas 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY '
LANG ~LEG | ATTORNEY U.s. NI/A 132 M 5793 $65.2 1.08667 $70.9 1
~GENERAL INDUSTRY
* M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGT; We=WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R=REGRESSION; 3RD=THIRD QUARTILE
69 Hewitt Associates
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MARKET PRICING WORKSHET ESTIMATED MARKET VALUIL($ 0005}
(DATA EFTECTIVE 7/95)
BATE $90.4
JOBTITLE  DRECTORRATES
DENCIMARK
COMPANY SSU REFFRIINCE POINT X
.
SURVEY INFORMATION , . | SURV. JUNADI. | COMPENSATION
SURVEY SURVEY FOSITION TIILE SURVIY. | #RoPORTED | DATA |'Bre |DATA- | UPDATE | . DATA COMMENTS
SOURLR AND INDUSIRY CLASSIFICATION scors | Cor. e | TyPE A | PACTOR |TASE | wooit |
CUSTOM DIRECTORRATES FLORIDA 4 4 A 5194 $86.4 1.04667 $90.4 H
—UTILITIES '
'
|
.
,
« M-MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; W~WEIGIITED AVERAGE; R-REGRESSION; JRD=THIRD QUARTILE
70 Hewilt Associates
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Custom Survey

Why a Custom Survey

Four rate positions were identified to be included in the market pricing
activity. These positions included:

Rate Analyst I
Rate Analyst I
Rate Engineer
Director of Rates

Because there was a lack of data in published salary surveys for these
positions, SSU requested that Hewitt Associates conduct a custom survey from
selected organizations. Because of short time frames, it was determined that a
fax survey would be the most effective way to collect the data.

Survey Companies

SSU developed a list of seven companies to target for participation in the
Custom Survey. The following Companies provided data for the survey:

Avatar Ultilities

Florida Power Corporation

Florida Power & Light Company

Gulf Power Company

Seminole Electric Cooperative Incorporated
Tampa Electric Corporation

One company, Palm Coast Utilities, did not participate in the survey, because
they do not have rate positions.

Survey Methodology

A survey questionnaire was developed by Hewitt Associates and sent by fax to
each participant. The questionnaire provided a brief description for each of the
four rate positions. The information requested included:

Number of incumbents;

Salary range midpoint;

Lowest salary;

Average salary;

Highest salary; and

Bonus or incentive eligibility and amount.

« » o & * @&

A copy of the survey questi‘ormaire is included in Exhibit #8 on pages 73 and
74.

The participants were requested to supply compensation information effective
May 1994. Each participant was requested to return the survey via fax within a
few days. : -

6952CCPD.002/06-B 04/95 71 Hewitt Associates
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As the completed questionnaires were received, Hewitt Associates reviewed
the data for consistency. In general, the data was closely related for all the
survey companies.

- The data collected in the survey was used to determine an Estimated Market
Value (EMYV) for each rate position. The methodology used to determine the
EMYV is the same as described in the previous section under methodology.
Some published data was used in the calculation of the EMV for the
Rate Analyst I and Rate Analyst Il positions. The market pricing worksheets
are included in the Market Pricing worksheet section.

6952CCPD.002/06-8 04795 . 72 Hewitt Associates
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Exhibit #8
Survey of Rate Pasitions in the Utilities Industry

Rate Analyst |

Responsible for conducting rate design studies, cost of service studies, running
the department’s computerized Revenue Requirement Account System and the
rate design system programs to develop the data necessary to file rate
applications and reports before the State and County regulatory authorities.
This position requires a four year college degree in Business, Accounting,
Finance, or related area with one to four years of utility experience.

Number of Incumbents:

Salary Range Midpoint: $

Actual Salary Data:

Lowest Salary Average Salary Highest Salary
$ $ $
Bonus or Incentive Eligible? Amount: $ -

Rate Analyst Il

Responsible for conducting rate design studies, cost of service studies, running
the department’s computerized Revenue Requirement Account System and the
rate design system program. Utilizes data associated with the
purchase/modification/acquisition of plants and capital equipment to file rate
applications before State and County regulatory authorities. Assists in the
administration of rate applications. This position requires a four year college
degree in Business, Accounting, Finance, or related area with a minimum of
three years of utility experience.

Number of Incumbents:

Salary Range Midpoint: $

Actual Salary Data:

Lowest Salary Average Salary . Highest Salary
$ $ $
Bonus or Incentive Eligible? Amount: $ )

§952CCPD.002/06-B 04795 73 Hewitt Associates
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Responsible for conducting engineering, evaluation and rate studies relating to
company revenue requirements. This position utilizes data associated with the
purchase/modification/acquisition of plants and capital equipment to submit,

support and complete rate applications and annual engineering and other

reports before State and County regulatory authorities. Assists with billing and

rate administration. This position requires a four-year college degree in

Business, Accounting, Economics, Finance, or Engineering and two to four
years experience in utility accounting, rates or engineering.

Number of Incumbents:

Salary Range Midpoint: $

Actual Salary Data:

Lowest Salary Average Salary
$ $

Bonus or Incentive Eligible?

Director, Rates

Highest Salary

$

Amount: §

Monitors and directs the research, analysis and preparation of rate cases, -
indexing and pass-throughs, consistent with State regulations and in
accordance with established company policies and procedures. This position
requires a four-year degree in Accounting, Finance, Business, Economics,
Mathematics or related field and a minimum of eight years of rate making and

design experience in a regulated utility environment.
Number of Incumbents:

Salary Range Midpoint: $

Actual Salary Data:

Lowest Salary Average Salary
$ $

Bonus or Incentive Eligible?

6952CCPD.002/06-B 04/95 74

Highest Salary
$

Amount: $

Hewitt Associates




EXHIBIT (OGL- 1)

PAGE__| OF __\(

SSU
COMPANY-WIDE GENERAL
TRAINING SCHEDULE

Developing
Potential

January - March, 1995

Registration>>>Be sure to fill out the Registration Form (attached as the last page) and
return it to Jim Blondin before February 3rd. It is your best way to help in determining

what training courses will be offered and when they will be offered.

Training Registration Form

How would you like to influence the training
at SSU? You have that opportunity in your
hands right now. Autached are descriptions
of some coursed that are available and a
Course Registration Form, Please take a few
minutes to fill out the form and return it to
Jim Blondin by February 3rd. It will help
shape our training efforts for years o come.
Future training schedules will reflect your
“votes” on the forms that are received.

Windows Training
The Company is continuing to upgrade to

Windows based software. The Microsoft
Office “suite” includes Windows 3.1, Word

for Windows 6.0,
Excel 5.0 for \
Windows and
PowerPoint 2.0,

Basic Windows

training for those in
Apopka is near completion. Other areas will

Page 1

be trained near the time when the upgrade
takes place.

One-hour training sessions are planned for
Apopka regarding various subjects related to
the Microsoft Office Suite. For example, a
session regarding “mail merging” with
Microsoft Word 6.0.

In some cases, learning on our own to
perform a task in this software takes a
considerable amount of tme to perfect.
However, with the guidance of someone who
already invested the time, the amount of time
to learn such a task can be shortened
considerably. In addition, people gain
confidence if they know they can try new
things under the guidance of another. Are
you are willing to share something that you
believe would help others with this sofiware?
If you are willing to share with others, let Jim
Blondin know right away. Don’t worry if
you’ve never made a presentation. Jim will
help you prepare for it.

January 24, 1995 SSU




If you have a topic that you would like to see
presented in one of these one-hour sessions;

" or if you have questions regarding Windows ..

training, contact Jim Blondin at Ext. 202.

Mid-Fiorida Tech Training

The training that we obtain from Mid-Florida
Tech is very cost effective. It costs only
$0.75 per person per hour if 10 or more
people attend for a particular session. That
amounts to $45 for a six-hour training
session. If less than 10 people attend, the
price structure changes to the rate of $30 per
hour ($180 for a six-hour day). Even at the
latter rate, the training is a bargain.

Training & Development will be happy to
continue to coordinate sessions for anyone
who wants to obtain this inexpensive training.
However, as mentioned in the 1/6/94 High
Pressure Bulletin, payment for attendees will

be allocated to the respective cost centers.
The form (on page 8) should be completed

by the attendee and signed by the cost center
supervisor and returned to Barbara Valdez
before we will sign you up.

Employee Orientation

Human Resources will continue to provide
orientation training on a quarterly basis. The
next orientation for new employees will be on
March 14th.

Kaset Training

"Everybody Has A Customer” (EHAC)
training helps us deal better with each other.
The two-day course gives tools for
understanding behaviors; building rapport
with others; recovering from others’ actions
so that future actions are not affected; and
giving service in ways that let employees in

Page 2
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other departments know that we care and are
trying to cooperate. It is essential training for
everyone.

What Operations and Maintenance
Employees Need to Know About the New

SSU Safetv Plan and Safe Operating
Procedures (SOP#1,2& 3)

Jim Barratt will be providing this safety
mraining to all operations and maintenance
employees and their supervisors. Emphasis
will be placed on iy
the training
required to
implement
Bloodborne
Pathogens SOP
and initial
training on the
requiremenis of the Respiratory Protection
SOP. He plans to provide the 2.5 hour
training session in each of the regions as well
as in Apopka in January.

Myers - Briggs

Myers-Briggs is a personal questionnaire. It
asks you to answer questions about your
preferred ways of (1) doing things, (2) taking
in information and (3) deciding things. Most
people find it a revealing and fun experience.

Why take the MBTI? <>

Most organizations like
SSU offer it to show
people how to work
more effectively with people who take in
information and  process  information
differently from ourselves. It is very useful in
(1) understanding why others don't think the
way we do, (2) understanding why others
don't do things the way we think they should
and (3) how to deal with others more
effectively.

January 24, 1995 Ssu



The MBTI is most effective when given to a
" relatively large group. Since the minimum
group size is 15, be sure to sign up right
away.

Page 3
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Train-the-Safety-Trainer

The intent of this maining is to assist our
Safety Training Coordinators. This seminar
was well received by those who attended last
August.

The session will be conducted in the Kravitz
Training Room from 8:30 1o 3:30 on March
28. K you have any questions or a problem
with this schedule, contact Jim Barratt at Ext.
292,

January 24, 1995 SSuU
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Registration>>>You may register for any of the sessions below by calling our receptionist {Barbara Valdez) at

Ext. 0. Dates (and times) are subject to change -- so be sure to call before attending. Please have the courtesy
to give notice 24 hours in advance if you are unable to attend a course for which you signed up so we can
get someone else in your place.

DATES

January 26
January 26
January 27
January 27
January 31
January 31
February 1
February 2
February 3
February &
February 8
February 8
February 9
February ¢
February 9
February 14
February 15
February 16
February 21
February 22
February 22
February 23
February 23
February 23
Fcbruary 24
February 27
February 28
March 7
March 14
March 14
March 28

ITLE

Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training

Excel 5.0 (beginning)
Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training
Introduction o Windows
Intermediate Excel

Safety Training

Safety Training

Advanced Excel

Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training

Everybody Has A Customer (day 1 of 2)
Safety Training

Safety Training

Safety Training

Everybody Has A Customer {day 2 of 2)
Safety Training

Safety Training
Intermediate Word
Advanced Word

MBTI (Myers-Briggs) in Organizations
Safety Training

Safety Training

New Employee Orientation
Train the Safety Trainer

Additional Sessions

LOCATION

Deitona

Deltona

Apopka {(modified sched)
Apopka (1.5, Conf Rm.)
Seaboard

Lakeland

University Shores

Pamona Park

Rm 261 Mid- FL Tech

Rm 261 Mid- FL Tech
Marco Island

Marco Island

Rm 261 Mid-FL Tech
Lehigh

Lehigh

Martin County

Apopka (makeups)
Apopka (Kravitz Tng Rm.)
Marion Oaks

Citrus Springs

Citrus Springs

Apopka (Kravitz Tng Rm.)
Spring Hill

Spring Hill

Rm 261 Mid-FL Tech

R m 261 Mid-FL Tech
Apopka (Kravitz Tng Rm.)
Sunny Hills

Apopka (makeups)
Apopka (Kravitz Tng Rm.}
Apopka (Kravitz Tng Rm)

TIME

8:00 -- 10:30
1:00 -- 3:30
7:00 -- 8:00
1:30 -- 4:30

9:00 -- 11:30
1:30 -- 4:00

9:00 -- 11:30

8:30--11:00
8:30 -- 3:30
8:30-- 3:30

8:00 -- 10:30
1:00 -- 3:30
8:30 -- 3:30

8:00 - 10:30
1:00 -- 3:30
1:00 -- 3:30

8:00 -- 10:30
8:30 - 4:30
1:00 -- 3:30

8:00 -- 10:30
1:00 -- 3:30
8:30--4:30

8:00 -- 10:30
1:00 -- 3:30
8:30--3:30
8:30 -- 3:30
1:30 -- 4:45
1:30 -- 4:00

8:00 -- 10:30
9:30 -- 3:00
8:30-- 3:30

If you are planning training sessions of interest to others, please forward the information so
it can be included in the next edition of this schedule. Please give suggestions about such
sessions and any other comments about this Bulletin to Jim Blondin.

Page 4
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Descriptions of Available Courses

T‘r ining for New Empl

Employee Orientation

This training is comprised of a review of SSU’s compensation practices and benefits, an introduction to
organizational development, a tour of Apopka Offices and issuance of ID badges, and overviews of key
company functions such as rates, customer service, purchasing, environmental services, corporate
development and safety.

Everybody Has a Customer

"Everybody Has A Customer" (EHAC) training helps us deal better with each other. The two-day course
gives tools for understanding behaviors; building rapport with others; recovering from others’ actions so that
future actions are not affected; and giving service in ways that let employees in other departments know that
we care and are trying to cooperate. It is essential training for everyone.

General Emplovee Training

Corporate Economics

This is a nuts-n-bolts course is based on CareerTrack’s “Finance for Nonfinancial Professionals.” The video
tape enhanced course is separated into three sessions (Speaking Accounting, Reading Financials). Videos:
approximately 1 hour and 30 minutes each.

Managing Stress

Is stress bad for us? What's the relationship between stress and personality types? How does stress affect
the organization and what are stress management techniques that can be applied at work? What can 1
personally do about my own stress? This workshop offers answers to these and other questions that affect
our lives both at work and away. Video: Managing Stress -- 26 minutes.

Myers-Briggs (Personality Types)

Myers-Briggs is a personal questionnaire. It asks you to answer questions about your preferred ways of (1)
doing things, (2) taking in information and (3) deciding things. Most people find it a revealing and fun
experience. It is very useful in (1) understanding why others don't think the way we do, (2) understanding
why others don't do things the way we think they should and (3) how to deal with others more effectively.

Problem Solving

Have you ever felt overwhelmed by a project and wondered if there was a systematic way for groups to
analyze problems and situations and arrive at consensus? Based on The New Rational Manager, this half-
day workshop is an overview of problem solving and decision making principles. It describes: (1) how
resolving problems falls into four specific thinking patterns, (2) the four basic steps in each pattern and, (3)
the process questions for each thinking pattern. Videos: Creative Problem Solving -- 26 minutes and
Problem Solving Strategiew: The Synectics Approach -- 28 minutes.

Speaking in Public

This workshop is designed to help those who are new to speaking in public. It will help those who will be
making presentations outside the company (e.g., speakers bureau) and inside the company (e.g., managers
meetings). It provides tips for dealing with fear and things you can do in advance of your presentation, just

Page § June 2, 1995 ssuU
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before your presentation, during your presentation and when you’ve finished your presentation. Video: Be
Prepared to Speak -- 27 minutes.

" Telephone Etiquette
Because people cannot observe facial exprcssmns and body language via telephone conversations, less than
50% of the potential message is communicated. Telephone etiquette will help anyone who uses the
telephone (1) create a positive, professional image, (2) enhance listening skills and, (3) increase confidence
and competence when dealing with people by telephone. Vieeos: Who Are You, By the Way? -- 10 minutes
and Professional Telephone Skills -- approximately 2 hours.

Time Management

Have you ever wished for more than 24 hours in a day? Would you like to know how can you get more
done? How effectively do you manage your time? Are you doing things that you like to do at the expense
of things that are more important to do? How many of our activities occupy most of our time? Learn
answers to these and other time saving questions in the Time Management workshop.

upervisor ainin

Coaching

Getting the best out of people in today’s uncertain world means empowering employees by involving them in
decision-making and that means assurning a leadership role emphasizing “helping” and “facilitating” rather
than “assigning” and “controlling.” This workshop helps leaders (1) understand the importance of coaching
as a managerial tool, (2) learn the five steps in the coaching process and, (3) identify potential barriers to
coaching and suggests some strategies for overcoming those barriers.

Delegating

One of the most important of all organizational skills is the leader’s ability to delegate authority among those
who work for him/her. Most all of us can recall examples of improper and ineffectual delegating from our
experience. If there is no question that delegating is beneficial 1o the organization, why is it so often
mishandled? This workshop examines the hidden traps that can undermine our efforts and provides basic
steps that will aid the leader in building a swonger and more efficient department. Video: Delegating -- 28
minutes.

Effective Meetings

Much tme is wasted by many people in meetings. This happens because the wrong people are at a meeting,
the wrong number of people are attending, conflicts slow down the process, there is a lack of leadership
and/or there has been too little preparation for the meeting. Learn how to conduct meetings that don’t
waste the time of many.

Managerial Impact (The Sid Story)

The purposes of this workshop are twofold: first, to highlight the personal impact that leaders have on
productivity and second, to develop the leaders’ recognition of themselves as motivators. It is based on the
film titled “The Sid Story.” Its objectives are for viewers to: (1) establish a positive work climate in which
employees know what is expected, (2) see the advantages of being out in the operations they supervise
looking for things being done right and, (3) provide Planned Spontaneous Recognition.

Page 6 June 2, 1995 Ssu
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Positive Discipline

Virtually all employees come to work to do a good job. Sometimes, however, there becomes a need to deal
with an infraction. Do you know the process to effectively (and properly) respond to a disciplinary
situatdon? Corrective action should be viewed as part of a learning process designed to encourage an
individual to improve performance or to become more aware of the need to conform with established
Company policy. This workshop discusses the theory and shows how the use of SSU’s policy can help
bring about change(s) that affect both the company and the employee in a positive manner. Video:
Discipline Without Punishment -~ 21 minutes.

Team Building

Good teams don’t just happen! Team building involves trust building which usually takes time to develop.
There are several stages through which teams evolve before they generate synergy. You should be able to
recognize and understand these in order to proactively change your group into a team. This workshop
provides insight into the stages of team building and strategies to enhance the team’s development. Video:
Tearn Building -- 21 minutzes.

Page 7 June 2, 1995 SSuU
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Mid-Florida Technical Institute

Name of Class:
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Southern Bkates Ukiies

Date of Class:

Cost Center:

Supervisor Approval:

Sign-Up Form

Mid-Florida Technical Institute

Name of Class:

s Bouthern Btates Ukities

Date of Class:

Cost Center:

Supervisor Approval:

Sign-Up Form

Mid-Florida Technical Institute

Name of Class:

e
@Sﬂ
Bouthorn Gtatos Litiites

Date of Class:

Cost Center:

Supervisor Approval:

Page 8
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Course Registration Form
Please complete and return this form to Jim Blondin by February 3rd.
1st 3rd
or or
2nd 4th
Otr. Otr. Never
Trainin I rrently Available
New Employee Training
Employee Orentation Q i Qa
Everybody Has A Customer g Q Q
General Employee Training
Corporate Economics W] a Q
Managing Stress a Q Q
Myers - Briggs (Personality Types) g a Q
Problem Solving Q Q ]
Speaking in Public a n] a
Telephone Etiquetie Q a "]
Time Management a a Q
Windows Software Q a a
Supervisory Training
Coaching Q d Q
Delegating Q g 0
Effective Meetings ] Q (]
Management Impact (The Sid Story) 4 ] ]
Positive Discipline Q g 3
Team Building Q - "]
Training that could be obtained (if sufficient interest is shown)
EAP (Employee Assistance Program) “Brown-Bag” Workshops
Aids Facts ] a a
Assertiveness Training a - a
Better Management of Your Time ] d g
Co-Dependency Q A Q
Coping with Difficult People a L Q
Coping with Teenagers d ] ]
Divorce Issues a a O
Drug-Free Workplace Training Q -] Q
Holiday Stress a a Q
Parenting ] | i
Personality & Work Styles Q Q a
Skills to Help You Cope Diring a Crisis - i .|
Stress | -] i

Page 9 June 2, 1995 SSu
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Effective Supervisory Methods
Communications
Dynamics of Diversity
Empowemmnent
Group Dynamics
Handling Conflict
Leadership Skills for Women
Managing Organizational Change
Motivation
Project Management
Setting Goals and Objectives
Technical Person in a Leadership Role
Total Quality Management (TQM)
Other

Other

Business Writing Skills

Company policies and procedures
Other Department's Functions
Other

1st 3rd

or or

2nd 4th

Otr, Otr. Never
Q 0 a
a -] 0
Q . -/
Q Q 0
a Q Q
Q a a
a Q 0
Q Q Q
a Q 0
Q Q o
Q Qa Q
a Q a
Q '} a
Q a Q0
g O Q
Q ] Qa
Q Q Q
(Your Name and SSU Location)

Page 10

June 2, 1995

Ssu



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

AET QIS WS
ITNE, 193
Lo N0._GL-0425T

“In re; Application for a rate
increase for Orange-Osceola
Utifities, Inc. in Osceola County,
and in Bradford, Brevard, Charlotte,
Citrus, Clay, Collier, Duval,
Highlands, Lake, Lee, Marion,
Martin, Nassau, Orange, Osceola,
Pasco, Putnam, Seminole, St. Johns,
St Lucie, Volusia, and Washington
Counties by Southern States
Utilities, inc.

Docket No. 950435-WS

e M M et T e e et Mt e e e

Cross Examination Exhibit Zé 5

Excerpt from Fiorida League of Cities Cooperative Salary Survey
Group !: Cities over 50,000 Population
February, 1994

FLORIDA PY
FLORDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

N0 _ G309 <
COMPANY/ EXHeT N0 43
WITWESS:

oAte _F[JIG7T
; ) »




- i !4“"‘#“ 'm!l(-g“ ¥ 4 0 . i

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES
COOPERATIVE SALARY SURVEY

GROUP I:
Cities Over 50,000 Population

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
201 West Park Avenue
Post Office Box 1757
rallahassee, Florida 32302-1757
(904) 222-9684 Suncom: 278-5331

February 1994
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Responding Group I Cities and Counties Over 50,000 Population

City or County Name _Population
"Alachud COUNLY ..o.veoiviie e 186201
BaY COUNLY 1.vvvceoeecremcerieiat s sicsme e 131347
BOCE RALON oo eveeeetee et s eeeamse e eeane e an s 03224
Brevard COUNLY ..o .. 417740
Braward COUDLY ...cooveceies e r e 1294090
CUEUS COUNLY oovoveceiecieeeeere et ene e 98623
ClEATWALET oo oot eiee oot bbb 99856
COMIEE COUNLY weovevirr s cieceeevenr e 168514
COTAl SPHIGS «.ovveoveerever et 86327
ESCAMBIa COUDLY ©.oivivoeiiieeesevasceeee e oreetece e sinneanes 267800
Fort Lauderdale ... 147678
GaINESVINlE oo 85587
Flernando COUNLY ..o 108112
[lighiands COUNLY ..o 72157
Hillsborough COUNt ..o 853990
HOlYWood ..o s 123296
Indian River COUMLY .....o.oeeioiinrraieememne s sraesec s 94091
JACKSONVILLE (1.t 653206
£aKe COUNUY ... oviereriiie et sb e s 162579
Lakeland ... ..ot e e s 71896
LATBO covvveeeeeetreenetecmsenrs st 66513
Lauderhill ... 50034
L€ COUNLY .ooovieerricemien et 350809
LEON COUNLY «ocvvnerieicerinesiens ettt st 202570
MANAtee COUMLY covviereecieererneiiraseersanss et nsesss s 219313

Marion COUNLY ...vooverereeeceere s 206642

City or County Name Population
Marlin COURLY ..voveoorveereceec it eae s 105031
MEIDOUINE ..o e e er e 62426
Metropolitan Dade County ..., 1982901
Miami Beach ..o 93461
MONEOE COUNEY «...vvvrriereriasieemeiees et acmaas oo e 80968
TNOID MM Loovvc ettt 50090
Okaloosa COUNLY ... ooviveiieeimreciemrcanbinensaie s 149997
OranNZe COUNTY ....ovveiervierretimirssimissoe s 712637
OANAO oot e e 169675
Paim Beach COUuntY ..o eemiesrecc e BHHT0
Pembroke PIines ..ot 70009
PENSACOIE oottt 59833
Pinelas COUNLY ...ooooviieecieiieeeiieeeceeriiins e s 860736
PLANEAUON +-ooveeeeee e ees e e e s semeaeceemren st 70544
POmpano Beach ... ..o 72671
POML SU LCIC v eceiee s emee e teeeastare it 62813
SE LUCIE COUNLY ooeeieieriiciciicieen s s 158937
SL PELErSDULZ ...ocoiiccririscceeeritei e 239132
SALASOLA ovvveeooereerreiaesoseeseseesessesraseamsasaaseanras st an s e sen s s inearns 51058
SaraSOta COUNLY ...c.orvomicrcncieiiriananserrsse st eseries s sans 287203
Seminole COUNLY ....ovovviercicrienr it s 305872
GUIIEESE -eonseeeeeereeeeeeeeee oo eestssstemsmmese s e sasemses s eer s 69187
Tallahassee ...oooooveeieeicrei e et 129258
TAMPA .o s SO 281837
VOluSia COUMLY .. v.vreeeeeccremirimraeenis st st 383983
West Palm Beach ..o 68270



R

512 PLANT OPERATOR B

ACTUAL L/S/H

CITY MINIMUM MAXIMUM AVERAGE MATCH INC ABOVE TITLE
Bay County 18512 27872 18741 S 1 Y Water Trt Plt/Lead Opr
Boca Raton 23150 37460 S 5% add'l for B only
Brevard County 22027 30846 25311 L 2 Chief Treatment Plt Opr B
Broward County 19695 32272 28580 L 41 Y Plant Opr II
Clearwvater 22547 32650 R Y Plt Opr B
Collier County 21216 31491 27884 S 15 Y Sr Plt Opr
Escambia County 18920 28380 27315 S 13 N WW Trt Plt Opr I1
Fort Lauderdale 25542 33488 33488 S 5 Y W Trt Plt Opr II
Gainesville 23566 30921 28868 S 1 N WW Plant Opr II
Hernando County 18762 27206 23899 5 1 Y Water Plt Opr II
Hollywood 23944 35163 S N Operator II
Indian River County 23733 32032 24771 S 15 Water/WW Plt Opr B
Jackeonville 27804 43716 40371 S 4 Y Water Opr Supv
Lakeland 21403 30118 26021 S 7 Y W/Plant Opr II
Lauderhill 21600 30000 S N Plt Opr B
Lee County 21034 30498 24469 S 10 Utl Plt Opr B
Manatee County 20904 34445 22235 S 11 N W/WW Plt oOpr 11
Martin County 19989 29994 24078 S 10 Y Treatment Plt Opr II
Melbourne 21705 26188 25919 4 WTP Opr B
Metro Dade County 20278 30983 32129 S 29 Treatment Plt Opr II
Okaloosa County 15329 30389 21757 S 3 Y WWTP Opr II
Orange County 20384 29411 25002 29 Opr I B
Orlando 22360 29452 23366 5 10 . Trt Plt Opr B
Palm Beach County 23662 35895 30630 S 12 N Utl Plt Opr II
Pembroke Pines 21830 32880 24569 S 8 Y W/Plt Opr II
Pinellas County 19722 30603 24190 H 2 Y W/Plant Opr
Plantation 25237 35360 33280 S 8 N Plt Opr B
Sarasota 18839 28258 23661 S 5 Sr Plt Opr
Sarasota County 21110 31807 22483 S 3 Y Treatment Plt B Opr
Seminole County 19697 29244 21008 S 3 Treatment Plt Opr B
St Lucie County 19240 27684 21316 S 5 Y Plant Opr B
St Petersburg 25792 34694 32271 S 8 W Plt Opr III
Sunrise 25721 34593 S 8 N Sr Utl opr
Tallahassee 18970 30326 25123 S 7 Y ' WW Treatment Opr B
Tampa 24398 34715 29821 S 8 Y W/Plant Opr II
volusia County 19344 28995 S Treatment Plt Opr B
West Palm Beach 28829 40456 33976 H 9 Y Lead W/WW Plt Opr

105
Avorane 21805 33905 26662
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FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES
COOPERATIVE SALARY SURVEY

GROUP II:
Cities 10,000 - 50,000 Population

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
201 West Park Avenue
Post Office Box 1757
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1757
(904) 222-9684

April 1994
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Group II Cities and Counties Between 10,000 and 50,000 Population

City or County Name Population

Altamonte Springs . . .. ... i 36380
Apopka ... . 15037
AtlanticBeach ... ... . .. . i 12495
Bartow . oot e 15002
Bradenton .. .... ...t 46342
Bradford County ....... ... ... ... cve... 23056
Casselberry . ... ... . i 22227
Coconut Creek . .. .. . . i 30009
Cooper Cily . .. .t 23955
Coral Gables .. ... i 40700
CrestvieWw . .. e e 10942
Deerfield Beach . ... ... . .. . i hn 47320
Deland .. .. e 17048
Delray Beach .. ... .. v, 48346
Dunedin .. ...t 34771
Edgewater ... ....... ..., 16394
Bustis .. ittt i e 13654
Flagler County .............. ... ... .. 31999
Fort Myers ... .......o. o viiiiuinnnenen. 45043
Fort Pierce ... ... .. . i o 36722
Fort Walton Beach . ...... ... .. ... ....... 21745
Gadsden County ......... ..o, 42472
Greenacres . .. v v v et T 19442
Gulfport ... .o i 11761
Haines City .. ... ..t 12037
Hamilton County ... ...... ... ... 11535
Holly Hill ... ... ... i 11198
Jackson County . ....... ... ... ... . . 42577
Jacksonville Beach . ........... ... ... .... 19199
Jupiter ... 25898
Kissimmee . . .. .o n i i i e 30984
Lady Lake ... ... .. .. .. i, 10109
Lake City .. .. ... e 10087
Lake Worth . . ... .. ... . i e 28387

iv

City or County Name Population

Lauderdale Lakes ... ... ... ... 27577
Leesburg ... ... 15063
Lighthouse Point . .......... . ... ...... 10391
Miami Springs . .. ... o 13230
MIFAIMAL o v e e e vt e e et e e 41872
New Smyrna Beach ........ ... .. ... ..... 17231
Niceville . ..o e 10915
North Lauderdale ........ ... ... ... .. ... 26554
North Palm Beach ... ... ... ... .0, 11747
North Port . .. ... e e 13038
Ocala . e 41863
O00BE ot e e e 15107
Opa-Locka . ... 15255
Ormond Beach . ... ... .. . 30570
Panama City ... ..o 35427
Pinellas Park . . . . .. it i i e 43652
Plant City . ... ..ot 24033
Port Orange .. ... ..ot 37311
PuntaGorda ...... .00 viniininnnnn 11587
Rockledge ...... ..o, 16753
Safety Harbor .............. .. ..ot 15427
Sanford ... ... .o e 34156
SebaSEIAT . vttt e e e 11569
South Daytona . .........oviieninnonnn. 12632
StAugustine ........ ... i 11679
SELCloud ..t e e e 14297
SLUAFL ot e et e e e et et e e e e 12195
SWCCEWALEE .« . o v vt et e e 14096
TAMATAC « 0 o v e e e e et et ettt e e e 46875
Temple Terrace ... .. . ... .ot 16976
Titusville . oo 0 oo e 43405
VEnICe o ot e e e e e 17491}
Vero Beach ... .. . i 17443
Winter Haven .. ... . oo 24852




Apopka

Bartow
Bradenton
Cooper City
Crestview
Deerfield Beach
Delray Beach
punedin
Edgewater
Eustis

Fort Myers
Fort Walton Beach
Haines City
Holly Hill
Jupiter
Kissimmee

Lake City

Lake Worth
Leesburg
Miramar

Nerth Lauderdale
North Port
Ocala

Ormond Beach
Panama City
Port Orange
Punta Gorda
Rockledge
Sanford

5t Augustine
Stuart

Tamarac

Temple Terrace
Venice

Vero Beach
Winter Haven

Averaqge

MINIMUM MAXIMUM AVERAGE MATCH INC ABOVE
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Plt Opr II

Opr B

Treat Plt Opr
Plt Opr B

Water Opr II
Treatment Plt Opr B
Water Plt Opr I
W/WW Plt Opr B
Utl Foreman

Plt Opr B
Treatment Opr II

W/WW Trt Plt Opr
Water Plt Opr II

Water Plt Opr B
Plt Opr B
W/WW Opr B

Asst Ch W/Tr Pl Opr

Treat Pl Opr Mech
Plt Trt Opr B
WTP Opr II

Shift Supv

Treat Pl Opr B

B Opr/Tech

Utl Water Plt Opr IX
W/WW Pl Opr B

+ $900/yr for Lic
Plt Opr B

Plant Opr II

Plt Opr B

Trt P1 Opr 11
W/WW Plt Opr B
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May, 1994
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FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES

COOPERATIVE
SALARY SURVEY

GROUP III:
Cities Under 10,000
Population

Florida League of Cities, Inc.
201 West Park Avenue
Post Office Box 1757
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1757
(904) 222-9684

May 1994




Group III Cities Under 10,000 Population Responding

AN MUri e 1789
Apalachicolu 2680
ATCICT L 1406
AUEOLES L e 1673
Avon Park e 8101
Bal Tiarbour Village 3033
Hay Harbor [s1ands oo e 4721
BT (e 3981
Belleair Beach e 2090
BeHeair BIudTs oo 2221
Belleview e 3051
BUSCayne Park ... e ..... 3081
Bradenton Beach o s 1653
Brooksville Lo 7485
Bushnell . U ROUR N UURUTI 2107
Cape Canaveral e 8100
Carmabelle s 1219
Chauwahoochee ..o, 4334
Chielland et 1997
Chipley oo 3898
ClermMONL et ar e 6904
CLEWISLON oo eeeraeee e 6154
Dade City o 5652
Defuniak Springs ..o 5082
DUNACE o 2397
Lagle bake . 1909
Eatonville e 2513
Edgewoou 1102
Fellsmere e e 2279
Fernanding Beach 9089
Flagler Beach e 3986
Florida City oo, e ————————— 6067
FOm Meade e 5241
Froitland Patk 2830
Graceville 2637
Green Cove Springs ... e 4671
GHECLIN Lo e e e e 2015
Groveland e 2362
Gl ez e 5740
Thalecahv Gardens 9259
Phighland Beacly o 1746

illshoro Beach 1746

HOIMEs BeaChh .o 4892
FIyPOIUKXO oo 117
InJian BeaCh SBOMES oo 2366
Indian Rocks Beach . 3970
Fncddian ShOres o L 1442
Juno Beach L2185
Kenneth Gy o 4299
Key BISCAYNE oo 88497
Key Colony Beach ... 1011
Keystone Hleights. ... 1311
Lake TTelen oo e 2374
Taake MATY oo 6426
Lake Park o RO T U T T TP PR 06639
lake Placid e 1210
LK e Al o e e e e L9759
Lanlana oo e B306
Lauderdale-By-The-Sea . 2974
LAve K oo e 6334
LONEDOAL KEY oottt 6260
Lynn FLAVEN ... 9757
Madeird Beach oo 4251
Maitland ..o e —————— 8981
Malabar .o e 2147
MalONE ..o e 1442
MASCOILC L e e e 1870
Melbourne Beach .o e 3090
MiIdWay o, L1118
MINNCOI 1710
Moore Haven . TR PR UTURRURRRROUR 1537
MUDDOFA oo e 7535
Mulbierry o0, 3039
Neptune Beach o 7135
NEWDCITY (i 1885
North Bay Villuge ... 5550
Ocean Ridge LT OURTRRPTT 1593
Okeechobee BT 491U
Oldsmar ... TP RO HA8S
Orange CIY o 5734
Qrange Park ST TS TURURTURTT TR 9444
Pahokee e 0BT
Palm Beach . ORI PR RRUURREUNRL £ < § 1
Palm Beach Shores e 1031




512 PLANT OPERATOR B
: 74

ACTUAL L/S/H §

CITY MINIMUM MAXIMUM AVERAGE MATCH INC ABOVE TITLE
son Park 17374 24904 24904 H 1 N Chief Opr
:lleair 19084 27768 21503 S 1 Water Plt Opr II
1pe Canaveral 18204 24814 5 Y Class B Opr
lermont 14248 21268 14248 5 1 N WW Plt Opr
lewiston 25376 1
:rnandina Beach 262213 27449 26836 S 5 N WW Opr II
lorida City 20000 25000 21800 5 2 Y Plant Opr B
reen Cove Springs 17624 24903 19230 S 3 Utl Plt Opx B
ighland Beach 22402 31346 29081 S 1 Y Plant Opr B
sunt Dora 18200 26506 19313 4 WW Plt Opr
ilberry 18346 18346 3 Sewer Opr
:ptune Beach 17487 262131 20152 S 6 Y W/WW Opr
ieechobee 20000 20000 s 2 N Plt Opr B
ldsmar 20592 29661 25126 S 2 N WW Plt Opr B
-"ange Park 20489 34009 26647 S 1
ithokee 25043 26748 25896 S 2
\Im Springs 24876 39742 5 Plt Opr 11
Yry 15908 21395 16591 S 3 Y Plt Opr W/WW
-arke 29390 29390 5 N
wvares 18200 26506 S 2
questa 23987 33078 s N Plt Opr II
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in re: Application for a rate
increase for Orange-Osceola
Utilities, Inc. in Osceola County,
and in Bradford, Brevard, Charlotte,
Citrus, Clay, Collier, Duval,
Highlands, Lake, Lee, Marion,
Martin, Nassau, Orange, Osceola,
Pasco, Putnam, Seminole, St. Johns,
St. Lucie, Volusia, and Washington
Counties by Southern States
Utilities, Inc.
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Excerpt from Hewitt Study: VP Finance & Administration
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{DATA BIFBCTIVE 7794}

BAST 185.0 )
JOBTITLR VP FINANCH & ADMINISTRATION TOTAL si0L6
COMPANY SSU BENCHMARK X
REPERENCE POINT

BAY-MMS | TOP FINANCIAL OFPICER, u.8 106 106 4793 v 13 $963 10362 FETRY $101.7 1| RAW DATAREDUCED BY 10%FOR DIVISION
—OENERAL INDUSTRY 328 MIL~-}30 MIL REVS

CS-TMR | TOPFINANCIAL EXBCUTIVE u.s 127 137 5 $85.5 51064 105150 $83.9 $1119 1| RAW DATAREDUCED BY 10% POR DIVISION
—OENBRAL INDUSTRY $45 MILREVS '

PRIVATR TOP FINANCE & ACCOUNTING EXBCUTIVE u.s 9 92 LY23) $TA 5788 1.060m 3793 3832 2 | RAW DATA REDUCED BY 10%FOR DIVISION
~UTILITY INDUSTIY $43 MILRBVS

WMM-FAL | TOP DIVISION FINANCIAL OFFICER U.s 19 0 39 $90.6 FT1AS 1.06000 3961 $1103 1 { RAW DATA REDUCPD BY 10% POR SCOPB
—ORNERAL INDUSTRY UNDER 5100 MILREVS

EAW TOP FINANCIAL EXECUTIVER s 17 ’;?;'1 /9 973 11073 oy 3984 $10838 3| RAW DATA REDUCED BY 10% POR DIVISTON
~IWATER UTLITIES 345 MILREVS

CUSTOM- | VP~FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION FLORIDA 7 7 12793 3612 $767 1.02625 $55.9 3787 1| AVERAUGBREVE = $46IMIL

INFORMAL | ~WATER UTLITES RAW DATA REDUCED BY 10% FOR DIVISION

¢ M=MEDIAN; A=AVERAGE; WA>WEIGHTED AVERAGE; R~RBGRESSION; SRD=THIRD QUARTILE
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St. Lucie, Volusia, and Washington
Counties by Southern States
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Docket No. 950495-WS

R I o T e et

Confidential

Cross Examination Exhibit

Calculation of 1994 Executive Bonuses
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MAR 15 95 18:53 FR MN POWER EXEC.COFFICE 218 723 33968 TO SSU

48 "384d

Ie:68 SB. pT 2l
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Southern States Utilities, Inc.

Calculation of 1994 Bxecutive Bonuses

Calculation:
VGU Portion: VP

Goals FPostion: vr:

ﬁ;.

L0

o

= CONFDENTY

(Base Pay x (50% x 20%)/x 50) + (2% of Base Pay for earh $.01 gain > $.35)
Non-VP:  (Base Pay x (50% x 10%) + (2% of Base Pay for each 8.01 gain > §.35)

Basze Pay x (20% x 50% x Achievement Faclor) ([.e. 100%, 75%, elc.)

Non-VP:  Base Pay x (10% x 50% x Achlevement Faclor) {.e. 100%, 75%, ele.)

VGU GainEstimate: § 0.42

1994 Base VvGU Tolal Total
Base  Bstimaled Bonus VGU Addon VGU Projected  Est. Goals Esl.
Salary VGUGain Portion Bonus Bonus  Bonus Goals  Factor  Bonus Bonus
Scott Vierima $ 90,000 % 042 § 007 § 4500 $ 12600 § 17,100 576 75% § 6,750 $-/ 23,850
Karla Teasley 90,000 0.42 007 4500 12600 17,100 576 75% 6,750 /23,850
Porrest Ludsen 89,010 0.42 0.07 4451 12,461 16912 576 75% 6,676 J/ 23,588
Chuck Wood B4,378 0.42 0.07 4,219 11,813 16,032 576 75% 6,328 s 22,360 x
Charles Sweat 82,760 0.42 007 4138 11586 15724 5/6 75% 6,207 / 21,93
Judy Kimbatl 65,526 0.42 0.07 1,638 9,174 10,812 5/6 75% 2457 J 13,269
Morris Bencini 62,696 0.42 0.07 1572 8,805 10,378 5/6 75% 2358 J 12,736
Brian Armstrong 84,078 0.42 007 2102 11771 13873 576 75% 3,153 /17,006
Ralph Terrero 82,265 0.42 007 2,087 11517 13574 576 75% 3,085 v 16,659
Karen Shofter 59,080 0.42 0.07 1477 8,271 9,748 576 75% 2,216 J/ 11,964
$ 789,993 $30,654 $.10,599 § 141,253 $ 45,980
Total Acerual Necessary 187,233
15,800 Reserve @ 12/31/94 (249.122)
Adjustment Necessary 8 (61,889)
Morris Bencini 94BONUS.XLS 3/1/%
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Southern States' 1994 Incentive Compensation Plan
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SOUTHERN STATES UTILITIES, INC.

Incentive Compensation Plan

Incentive Pay Plan for 1994:

Designed to reward executives for working together to achieve joint goals in 1994.
Plan components will provide monetary reward for:

Factor Component

50% .. 1)  Contribution as part of grolp effort to achieve key SSU goals.

50% 2) "‘ Achieving targeted financial results from the sale of VGU.

Payments will be made in April, 1995 for 1994,
All participants will receive same rating for components 1) and 2) of plan.

% of Target Incentive

Performance Level Opportunity Earned
Target 100%
Superior 75%
Threshold 50%
Below Threshold 0%

Aggregate Awards will be limited to the following groups:
Vice Presidents 20%
Assistant Vice President, Controlier,

Environmental Services Manager, Director
Legal Service, and Director Rates 10%

CONFIDENTIAL




Performance level criteria for each component are defined as follows to facilitate
computation of the award.

Component 1
Key Organizational Goals

o} A&G and O&M expenses at or below $30,880,000 budget.

0 Update Customer Service Policy & Procedure Manual.

o] Conserve and protect natural resources by reducing unaccounted for water
amounts by 5%; providing conservation education and developing reuse
projects. s e

e~

o Maintain a uniform rate structure for SSU.

o] Reduce total companywide short term sick time to a total of 1,330 days for
the year.

o) Reduce companywide, nonexempt overtime to 36,000 hours or less. This

032494

represents an additional 3% reduction from 1994 budget, and a 9% overall
reduction from the estimated 1993 overtime experience rate (adjusted for
vacant positions).

Target Achievement of all key goals identified.
Superior Achievement of 5 key goals identified.
Threshold Attainment of the majority of goals identified.

Component 2
Targeted Financial Results

Budgeted EPS From Sale of VGU - $.35 (Approx. $9.8MM after tax/28.3MM ave.
shares)

Target 2% of Pay For Each $.01 Per Share Additional Gain

Threshold 100% of Budgeted EPS






